Public Document Pack

Argyll

Argyll and Bute Council

Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid %Bute
COUNCIL

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604444
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

e.mail —nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Corporate Services
Director: Nigel Stewart

2 December 2005

NOTICE OF MEETING
A meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,

LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY, 9 DECEMBER 2005 at 2:30 PM, which you are requested to
attend.

Nigel Stewart
Director of Corporate Services

BUSINESS
1. APOLOGIES
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)
3. MINUTES
(@) AUDIT COMMITTEE 2 SEPT 05 (Pages 1 - 6)
(b) AUDIT COMMITTEE 29 SEPTEMBER 2005 (Pages 7 - 8)
4. AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2004/2005: MEMBERS LETTER/AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS
AND CERTIFIED ACCOUNTS
Report by Head of Strategic Finance (Pages 9 - 86)

5. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2005 - 2006
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 87 - 90)

6. ADAPTING TO THE FUTURE 2003 - 2004
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 91 - 96)

7. MAINTAINING SCOTLAND'S ROADS
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 97 - 116)



8. RECENT EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 2004 - 2005
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 117 - 136)

9. EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2004 - 2005
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 137 - 154)

10. REVIEW AND CONSOLIDATION OF OUTSTANDING AUDIT
RECOMMENDATIONS RELATED TO BUDGETARY CONTROL
Report by Head of Strategic Finance (Pages 155 - 156)

11. ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
Report by Chief Asset Manager (Pages 157 - 160)

12. HMIE ACTION PLAN
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 161 - 172)

13. STRATHCLYDE PENSION FUND
Report by Head of Strategic Finance (Pages 173 - 176)

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Councillor Donald MacMillan Councillor John McAlpine
Councillor Gary Mulvaney (Chair) Councillor Elaine Robertson
lan M M Ross Councillor John Tacchi

Christopher Valentine

Contact: Fiona McCallum Tel. No. 01546 604401



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3a

MINUTES of MEETING of AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,

Present:

Also Present:

Attending:

Apologies:

LOCHGILPHEAD
on FRIDAY, 2 SEPTEMBER 2005

Gary Mulvaney (Chair)

Councillor Donald MacMillan Councillor Elaine Robertson
lan M M Ross Councillor John Tacchi
Christopher Valentine

Councillor William Petrie

Charles Reppke, Head of Democratic Services and Governance
Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance

Stewart Turner, Head of Roads and Amenity Services

lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager

Steve Keightley, KPMG

Jim Cumming, Audit Scotland

David Jamieson, Audit Scotland

Councillor John McAlpine

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and extended a special welcome to David Jamieson
and Jim Cumming from Audit Scotland.

The Chair ruled and the Committee agreed to consider agenda item 8 — Recent External Audit
Reports 2004 — 2005 after the Minutes.

1. MINUTES

The Minutes of the Audit Committee of 3 June 2005 were approved as a correct
record subject to the following amendment:

The decision at item 2 “Strathclyde Pension Fund — Further Information” should

read

1) To note the contents of the report;

2) To note that an officer had been appointed to maintain a watching brief over

the Strathclyde Pension Fund; and

3) To note that a further report would be brought to the Audit Committee in

December 2005.

Christopher Valentine joined the meeting.

2. RECENT EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 2004-2005

A report containing an Executive Summary and Action Plan for new reports
issued by Audit Scotland since the last Audit Committee together with details of

the

progress made by management on implementing the report

recommendations was considered.



Page 2

Decision

1)

2)

3)

4)

To note the contents of the report and request that this be followed up by
Internal Audit;

To note that as at 8 August 2005 out of the 7 recommendations contained in
the Action Plan for the report entitled “Information Management Review”, only
one remained to be implemented and it was expected that this would be
implemented by September 2005;

To note that Audit Scotland has issued a report in April 2005 entitled
“Improving Customer Service Through Better Customer Contact” and that
once an approach to identifying those report findings that require
implementation was defined, Internal Audit would report back to the Audit
Committee; and

To note that implementation of all 9 recommendations contained within the
Action Plan for the report entitled “Web Overview” was progressing to
timetable.

(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 18 August 2005, submitted).

STRATHCLYDE PENSION FUND

A proposed response to a Consultation Document received from Glasgow City
Council that reshapes representation within the Strathclyde Pension Fund was
considered by the Strategic Policy Committee on 11 August 2005.

Decision

To note that

1)

2)

the Strategic Policy Committee had agreed the proposed response to the
consultation document and that comments received from the Chair and Vice
Chair of the Audit Committee had been noted; and

a further report would be brought to the next meeting of the Audit Committee.

(Ref: Extract of Minute of the Strategic Policy Committee of 11 August 2005,
submitted and report to SPC by Head of Strategic Finance dated 3 August 2005,
tabled).

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2005-2006

The Committee were asked to give consideration to an interim progress report
which had been prepared regarding the audit work performed by Internal Audit
up to 22 July 2005.

Decision

The Audit Committee agreed

1)

To approve the progress made with the Annual Audit Plan for 2005-2006;



Page 3

and

2) To request that Internal Audit look at including the Licensing Section of the
Council in future Audit Plans.

(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 18 August 2005, submitted).
ADAPTING TO THE FUTURE 2003-2004

A report detailing progress by Community Services Department Management
with the implementation of recommendations contained within the national report
entitled “Adapting To The Future” which had been issued by the Accounts
Commission — Audit Scotland was considered.

Decision

The Audit Committee agreed to note

1) the contents of the report and request this be followed up by Internal Audit;
2) that all 16 recommendations will be complete by November 2005; and

3) Councillor Robertson’s concern that implementation of the report's
recommendations would have an impact on professional staffs’ time.

(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 18 August 2005, submitted and
report by Internal Audit Manager dated 2 September 2005, tabled).

MAINTAINING SCOTLAND'S ROADS

Audit Scotland issued a national report towards the end of November 2004
entitled “Maintaining Scotland’s Roads” which contained the findings of a recent
study of the steps taken by the Scottish Executive and Councils to monitor the
conditions Scotland’s roads network and to manage structural maintenance.

The Audit Committee at their meeting on 3 June 2005 requested that the
Strategic Policy Committee give further consideration to their initial question on 4
March 2005 asking the Strategic Policy Committee if they were satisfied that the
Council had the necessary resources to address the issues highlighted in the
Audit Scotland National Report.

Decision
The Audit Committee agreed

1) To note the contents of the report and request this be followed up by Internal
Audit;

2) To note the extract of the minute of the Strategic Policy Committee of 7 July
2005 which advised the Audit Committee that there was insufficient budget
resource available to address the £38m backlog for structural maintenance
and that a request had been made to the Scottish Executive through COSLA
for further measures to be taken in an attempt to increase funding to address
the roads maintenance backlog;



Page 4

3) To note that the Head of Roads & Amenity Services will be preparing an
updated report to Strategic Policy Committee in December 2005 and that a
copy will be made available to the Audit Committee; and

4) To acknowledge that the speed of response to the Committee’s request by
the Head of Roads and Amenity Services was excellent.

(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 22 July 2005, submitted and
Extract of Minute of the Strategic Policy Committee of 7 July 2005, submitted).

EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2004-2005

A report setting out the results from a review performed by Internal Audit for
recommendations due to be implemented by 30 June 2005 was considered.

Decision

1) To note the contents of the report and request this be followed up by Internal
Audit;

2) To note that the recommendation contained on page 58 of the report (ref D4
— Review of Purchase of Equipment & Materials) had a revised
implementation date of mid September 2005;

3) To note that the revised implementation date for the recommendation
contained on page 61 of the report (ref H5 — Review of HRA Rents) should
read “ongoing process”;

4) To note that the revised implementation date for the recommendation
contained on page 70 of the report (ref B14 — 2002/03 Performance Audit —
Management of Community Equipment and Adaptations) should read
“‘December 2005”; and

5) To note that progress with the recommendations contained on page 55 of the
report (Ref A1, A2 and A3 — Review of Budgetary Control) had moved on
since the original audit. It was agreed to request that Internal Audit produce
a revised action plan for these recommendations as the revised
implementation dates contained within the report reflected the new processes
put in place since the original audit.

(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 8 August 2005, submitted).
Councillor MacMillan left the meeting.

FERRY SERVICES REVIEW

The Audit Committee at their meeting on 3 June 2004 requested that a report be
brought to the next meeting detailing the monitoring arrangements that have
been put in place to ensure the operators of the Jura-Lismore Ferries were

adhering to the terms of their contracts.

A report prepared in response to the Audit Committee request was considered.



10.

Page 5

Decision

The Audit Committee agreed

1) To note that a customer feedback form was being produced to allow
passengers to make comments/complaints and that this would be available to
passengers travelling on the Cuan — Luing and Port Appin — Lismore ferries
and will be displayed in the waiting rooms at Easdale and Ellenabeich;

2) To note that the Lismore service transferred back to Council control in April
2005 and is monitored by the Harbour Master in Oban;

3) To note that ASP Ship Management who operate the Islay — Jura service
submits to the Council monthly details of the sailing information log book; and

4) To request that the Head of Roads and Amenity Services make available to
the Audit Committee the financial cost of operating the ferry services.

(Ref: Report by Director of Operational Services, submitted).
ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

A report identifying the main elements of Asset Management Planning and
progress to date was considered.

Decision
1) To note the contents of the report; and

2) To note that a Progress Report will be brought to the next meeting of the
Audit Committee.

(Ref: Report by Chief Asset Manager dated 23 August 2005, submitted).

HMIE REPORT 2004-2005

The Educations functions of Argyll and Bute Council were inspected during the
period December 2004 — January 2005 by HM Inspectorate of Education as part
of a 5 year National Inspection Programme of all Local Authorities in Scotland. A
report outlining service key strengths plus areas requiring improvement was
considered.

Decision

The Audit Committee agreed

1) To note the contents of the report and request that this be followed up by
Internal Audit;

2) To note that a further update will be provided to the Audit Committee on 9
December 2005; and

3) To congratulate all the staff in Community Services for a very good report
from HMIE.



1.

Page 6

(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 22 July 2005, submitted).
ICT INFORMATION SECURITY

A report detailing the Executive Summaries from two recent reports prepared for
the Council by a Specialist Consultant commissioned to carry out reviews on
Information Security and GSX — Code of Connection’s state of readiness along
with a report prepared by the Head of ICT and Financial Services for the
Strategic Management Team which highlighted the current position relating to
ICT security within the Council was considered.

Decision

To note the contents of the report and request this be followed up by Internal
Audit in due course.

(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager, dated 22 July 2005, submitted and
Report by Head of ICT and Financial Services dated 28 June 2005, submitted).

The Chair closed the meeting and reminded Members that a special meeting of
the Audit Committee would take place on Thursday 29 September 2005 at 2.00
pm in Helensburgh to consider the External Auditors report on the 2004/5 Annual
Accounts.



Page 7 Agenda Item 3b

MINUTES of MEETING of AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the THE MARRIAGE ROOM, 25 WEST
KING STREET, HELENSBURGH
on THURSDAY, 29 SEPTEMBER 2005

Present: Councillor Gary Mulvaney (Chair)
Councillor Donald MacMillan Councillor John Tacchi
Councillor John McAlpine lan Ross (V-Chair)

Councillor Elaine Robertson
Also Present: Councillor Ronald Kinloch

Attending: Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance
Kirsty McLean, Chief Executives Department
Sandra McGlynn, Democratic Services Officer
Angela Cassels, Audit Scotland
David Jamieson, Audit Scotland
lan Bell, Audit Scotland

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and extended a special welcome to
Angela Cassels, David Jamieson and lan Bell from Audit Scotland.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
3. AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2004-2005

The Committee heard from Angela Cassels, Audit Scotland regarding the
Statement of Auditing Standard 610 and the Independent Auditor’'s Report. She
advised that her Auditor’s report on the Council’s financial statements concluded
that the financial statements present fairly the Council’s financial position at 31
March 2005 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended. In her view,
there were six issues which required to be brought to the Council’s attention
which the Audit Committee discussed.

Decision

It was noted that the final Audit of Accounts would be submitted to the Council
meeting in November once the Audit Certificate had been received and that the
points raised within the Auditors Report would be followed up by the Head of
Strategic Finance.

(Ref: Statement of Auditing Standards 610 letter and Independent Auditor’s
Report dated 30 September 2005, submitted)



Page 8



Page 9 Agenda ltem 4

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL COUNCIL
STRATEGIC FINANCE 14 NOVEMBER 2005

AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2004/2005 — REPORT TO MEMBERS, AUDIT
CERTIFICATE AND CERTIFIED ACCOUNTS

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The external auditors, Audit Scotland, have completed their
audit of the Council’s Accounts for the year to 31 March 2005
and the Audit Certificate, Certified Accounts and Report to
Members are attached. The Audit Certificate contains no
qualifications.

An action plan covering the external auditors recommendations
is attached as Appendix A to the Report to Members, together
with the proposed responses to the Action Points. The Audit
Committee’s remit includes monitoring of action within agreed

timescales.
2. RECOMMENDATION
2.1 ¢ The Certified Accounts and the terms of the Audit

Certificate and report to Members are noted.
e To refer to the Audit Committee monitoring of the external
auditors recommendations contained in the action plan.
3. DETAIL

3.1 The Certified Accounts, the Audit Certificate and the Report to
Members are attached.

3.2 The Accounts were completed and submitted to Audit Scotland
by the statutory date of 30 June 2005 and the audit has been
completed within the timescale of 30 September 2005, set by
Audit Scotland.

3.3 Member’s attention is drawn to the Action Plan in Appendix A of
the report to Members. Monitoring of action required will be
carried out by Internal Audit and regular updates on compliance
with the agreed points will be reported to the Audit Committee
during 2006.

34 The Auditors’ Certificate on the Council’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2005 contains no qualification in
that she is able to conclude that the Council’'s financial



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Page 10

statements present fairly its financial position as at 31 March
2005.

The Auditors’ Executive Summary provides comments on the
following —

* Financial Statements
e  Corporate Governance
* Performance Management

It is important that Members consider the detailed comments
within the Auditors’ report and do not rely solely on the
Executive Summary.

The surplus for the year has increased by £0.872 from £2.055m
to £2.927. This results in a balance carried forward on the
General Fund Reserve of £15.120m, an increase of £0.872.
The committed sums included in the General Fund Reserve
have increased by £0.153m from £6.941m to £7.094m. This
leaves a free balance on the General Fund Reserve of £8.026m,
compared to £7.307m per the unaudited accounts.

The increase in the surplus for the year of £0.872m can be
analysed as follows:

= Correction to write-off of Deferred £0.559
Charges

» Adjustments in respect of Capital £0.274
Financed from Current Revenue

=  Other minor adjustments £0.039

= Total £0.872

The completion of the audit of Accounts for the year 2004/05
within the timescale set by Audit Scotland means that the
Council continues to be completely up-to-date in completion and
audit of Accounts. In addition, there are no qualifications on the
Audit Certificate.

The free General Fund Reserve stands at £8.026m. This is in
excess of the proposals for 2% general contingency. The
excess is £4.079m. The Council will need to consider proposals
to utilise this as part of the upcoming budget process.

IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Policy: The completion of the accounts and the
audit within set timescales complies with
the Council’'s objectives on providing
timeous and accurate information to the
public.



Page 11

4.2 Financial:

4.3 Legal:

4.4 Personnel:

4.5 Equal Opportunities:
Bruce West

Head of Strategic Finance
3 November 2005

The external auditors independent
examination of the Council’'s financial
records has resulted in a clear Audit
Certificate. Surplus balances are held on
both the General Fund and in the
Housing Revenue Account. The Council
should continue with prudent financial
management.

The Accounts have been completed in
accordance with all legislative and Code
of Practice requirements.

None

None



Page 12

ANNEX 1 - CHANGES BETWEEN UNAUDITED AND AUDITED ACCOUNTS
CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT AND NOTES

The General Fund Services sub-total is no longer required, therefore Housing Revenue Account
has been moved to beside Housing Services non-HRA and included in Net Cost of Service total.

Interest and Investment Income is no longer included within the Net Cost of Services and is now
disclosed separately.

The capital element of finance lease payments has been included within Note 2 Asset
Management Revenue Account and Note 3 Contributions to Capital Financing Account.

The analysis of future payments for finance and operating leases has been removed and included
within the notes to the balance sheet.

Within Note 16 Related Party Transaction, Grants categorised as other government grants have
reduced.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
A presentational change in relation to the contribution to the Capital Financing Account.
A recalculation for the Housing Revenue Account share of FRS 17 costs.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND NOTES
On the face of the Balance Sheet, Intangible Assets has been moved above Tangible assets and
this change has resulted in the Intangible Assets note changing to Note 1 which has a knock-on

effect of the numbering of subsequent notes.

Valuations 2.3 and 2.4 — “1999/2000” and “Valuations Inherited” inserted to show complete
picture of valuations.

The Summary of Capital Expenditure and Financing note was revised in line with the Statement
of Recommended Practice (SORP).

Inclusion of notes in relation to finance and operating leases.
Long Term Debtors have been reduced with the exclusion of the loans early repayment figure.

The Analysis of Net Assets Employed has been split to reflect the share between the general
fund and the HRA.

Loans Early Repayment Premium, previously included within Long Term Debtors has been
moved to Capital Reserves with the Statement of Total Movement on Reserves.

MOVEMENT ON RESERVES AND CASH FLOW

Due to Loans Early Repayment Premium being included within Capital Reserves, an additional
note was required.

The term “Earmarked Reserves” is no longer used and reserves previously termed as Capital
Reserves and Earmarked Reserves have now been renamed Revenue Funds.

Deferred Government grants figure changed, transfer from capital financing accounts of
government grants wrongly categorised — Note 3 to reserves.

As a result of the changes within the other primary statements, the Cash Flow has been amended
to reflect these.



Page 13

Angela Cassels BA CPFA Telephone: Website:

Agsistant Director of Audit (Local Government) 01355 619200 www.audit-scotland.gov.uk

7" Floor

Plaza Tower Fax: -\U DIT SCOTLAND
East Kilbride 01355 619201 )

G74 1LW

31 October 2005
Bruce West

Head of Strategic Finance
Argyll and Bute Council
Council Offices

Kilmory

Lochgilphead

PA31 8RT

Dear Bruce
2004/05 Audit — Final Report to the Members

We have now completed our 2004/05 audit of the Council and | enclose for your information a copy of the
final report to Members.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you would like to discuss any issues further.

Yours sincerely

(D

Angela Cassels
Assistant Director of Audit (Local Government)

Enc

Providing services to the Auditor General for Scotland and the Accounts Commission

WileOFaudit servicesMlocal governmentiwork in progressiargyll & bute council\04-05\final accountstadebe 04-05 covering letter b west members report 31-10-05.doc



Page 14

October 2005

AUDIT SCOTLAND

O

www.audit-scotland.gov.uk




Page 15
Angela Cassels BA CPFA Telephone: Website:
Agsistant Director of Audit (Local Govemment) 01355 619200 www.audit-scotland.gov.uk
7" Floor
Plaza Tower Fax: f-\U DIT SCOTLAND
East Kilbride 01355 619201 «sf
G74 1L.W

31 October 2005
Convenor and Members
Argyll and Bute Council
Headquarters
Kilmory
LOCHGILPHEAD
PA31 8RT

Controller of Audit
Audit Scotland

18 George Street
EDINBURGH

Ladies and Gentlemen

Report on the audit for the year ended 31 March 2005

| have now completed my audit of the Council’s accounts for the year ended 31 March 2005.

As part of my responsibilities as external auditor to the Council I am required to submit, at the
conclusion of each year’s audit, a final report addressed both to the members of the Council and to

the Controller of Audit.

This report aims to summarise all significant matters which have arisen during the course of the audit
and which | feel are worthy of members’ attention.

| have pleasure in attaching my final report on the Council’s audit for the year to 31 March 2005,
which will be submitted to the next meeting of the Council.

| should like to take this opportunity to thank the Chief Executive and his staff for their assistance
during the course of the audit.

Yours faithfully

(A G

Angela Cassels
Assistant Director of Audit (Local Government)

Providing services to the Auditor General for Scotland and the Accounts Commission



Page 16

Audit Scotland, on behalf of the Accounts Commission for Scotland, is
responsible for:

e providing independent reports to the Commission and the wider
public on how public money is spent, what it achieves and what

improvements can be made

e providing independent reports to public sector bodies on their
finances, their corporate governance and how they manage their

performance and secure value for money

e providing an independent opinion on whether the annual financial
statements of public sector bodies have been prepared in

accordance with statutory requirements




Page 17

Contents

Executive summary
Introduction

Financial statements

Auditor’s report
Financial position
Issues arising
Legality

Statement on the system of internal financial control

Looking ahead

Corporate governance

Overview

Financial strategy

Anti-fraud and corruption arrangements
Systems of internal control

Looking ahead

Performance management

Best value

Performance management and improvement
Performance indicators

Following the public pound

Issues from previous years

Looking ahead

Action plan

11

17

21

WWile01\audit servi | i

bute council\04-05\final accol
members 31-10-05.doc

in prog m
untsirhd abc 04-05 final report to

&



¢ The financial statements present fairly the Council’s financial position.

Page 18

Executive summary

1. This report summarises the main issues arising from the 2004/05 audit. Overall, financial
stewardship within the Council during the year was satisfactory. Our conclusions on key
aspects of the Council’'s performance are highlighted in the table below, based on the audit
work undertaken during the year.

¢ The statement on the system of internal financial control complies with accounting
requirements and is not inconsistent with audit findings.

¢ Final accounts preparation procedures and working papers were generally good, although
changes were made as a result of the audit.

e The Council did not prepare group accounts on a voluntary basis during 2004/05.

e Balances held on the general fund at 31 March 2005 amount to £15.120 million. Members
have deferred consideration of proposals to utilise the unaliocated element of general fund
balances until the budget cycle.

e The total housing revenue account balance carried forward at 31 March 2005 amounts to
£1.015 million.

e All of the significant trading operations have reported a break-even position during 2004/05
and an overall surplus of £0.032 million. However, the Leisure trading account income was
increased by £27,000 for 2004/05 to meet FRS 17 pension costs, contrary to proper
accounting practice.

e The significant slippage against the capital programme is to be managed within the Council
capital plan.

e The Council has good systems for financial management and our reports have generally
been positive on the financial stewardship and governance of the council.

» Risk management is developing in accordance with the council’s Corporate Governance and
Risk Management Policy.

e The Council’'s audit committee is invested with sufficient authority to act with independence
and offers adequate opportunity for scrutiny of financial performance.

o The Council hasv’pht in piéce a medium term financial strategy which models income and
expenditure over a three year period and is updated annually.

e There is a lack of clarity over the sustainability of services and initiatives over the longer
term. Projected budget models have identified future funding gaps at a Council-wide level.

¢ The Council has appropriate arrangements in place to prevent and detect fraud and
corruption.

e The Council has taken part in the National Fraud Initiative. However, although the benefits
section has adopted a clear approach to the investigation of data matches, this has not been
the case for the payroll section.




Page 19

being taken forward.

Reasonable assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s
internal financial control system in the year to 31 March 2005.

Remedial action has been taken in regard to most of the matters raised in management
reports issued last year, which covered the main financial systems and general computer
environment.

The Council’'s asset management strategy, which provides an action plan and timetable for
the integration of asset management into service planning and performance management, is

A full best value audit is being carried out at the Council and is due to be reported early in
2006.

Eiek R

The Council is currently in the process of implementing a new performance management
framework

Incorporating the framework into the planning and reporting cycles requires considerable
commitment and effort at every level.

The Council is still some way off from being able to demonstrate that the framework is

effective in driving the continuous improvement in Council services.

e 3 YRR b a5 Ay air PR
Six statutory performance indicators were concluded to be unreliable.

These indicators have been discussed with officers and an action plan has been agreed to
ensure reliable figures are reported in 2005/06.

oL

We consider that the Council has demonstrated compliance with a number of aspects of the
code of practice in relation to its dealings with arms length external organisations and has
some effective arrangements in place, although there is room for improvement.

Detailed action plans covering the issues raised during the audit have been discussed with
management throughout the year. Key issues for the attention of members are outlined in
the action plan included in this report.



Introduction

The members and officers of the Council are responsible for the management and

Page 20

governance of the organisation. As external auditors, we review and report on the
arrangements in place and seek to gain assurance that:

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and that proper accounting practices have been observed,

the Council's system of recording and processing transactions provides an adequate
basis for the preparation of the financial statements and the effective management of the
authority’s assets and interests;

the Council has adequate corporate governance arrangements which reflect the three
fundamental principles of openness, integrity and accountability;

the systems of internal control provide an appropriate means of preventing or detecting
material mis-statement, error, fraud or corruption;

the Council has proper arrangements for securing best value in its use of resources and
is complying with its community planning duties; and

arrangements have been made to collect, record and publish statutory performance
information.

This report summarises the most significant issues arising from our work during 2004/05. A

number of more detailed reports to management, including agreed action plans, have also
been submitted to officers throughout the year.



Page 21 Yy

Financial statements S

Auditor’s report

5.  The financial statements present fairly the Council’s financial position at 31 March 2005 and
income and expenditure during the year.

6. Last year the auditor's report drew attention to a failure to comply with a statutory
requirement in relation to supporting people grant. This was because no local authorities
were able to comply with the requirement to ensure that all providers of housing support
services had made an application to register with the Care Commission before 1 October
2003. In July 2004 the Lord Advocate confirmed that he was prepared to grant an amnesty
against prosecution to all housing support service providers as long as they applied for
registration prior to 30 September 2004. The Council, and its providers, did apply for
registration prior to this date.

7. The Smoking, Health and Social Care Act was approved in August 2005 and provided
retrospective approval to treat grant payments made between October 2003 and 30
September 2004 as having been validly made. There has, therefore, been no failure to
comply with a statutory requirement in 2004/05.

Financial position

8. The consolidated general fund revenue account shows a surplus for the year of £2.927
million, against a budget where the Council was planning to use brought-forward balances to
fund a projected deficit of £0.894 million when the 2004/05 council tax was set. The main
variances relating to 2004/05 activities are increased income from local taxation of £2.053
million; savings in loan charges of £1.322 million and overall savings by departments of
£0.930 million.

9.  When the current year’s surplus is added to the balance of £12.193 million brought forward at
1 April 2004, the cumulative surplus balance at 31 March 2005 is £15.120 million. The
budget for 2005/06 was approved on the basis of a 2004/05 “free reserve” carry-forward
balance of £5.849million. The 2005/06 budget includes a deficit for the year of £1.975million
with retention of closing balances, excluding ring fenced monies held, of £3.874 million.

10. All Councils hold reserves which consist of both earmarked amounts set aside to support
future years’ expenditure and contingencies for unexpected events or emergencies. The
Controller of Audit's ‘Overview of the local authority audits 2004’ recognises that the
appropriate level of balances is for councils to determine, taking account of local
circumstances, but stresses the need for clear strategies for managing such funds which set
out their purpose and intended use. In the absence of clear strategies, there are risks that
funds are accumulated unnecessarily or that pressure to restrict rises in council tax or rent
levels results in an inadequate cushion held to deal with emergencies.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 22

At 31 March 2005 the Council had total reserves of £16.940 million: \

General Fund 12.193 16.120
Repairs and Renewal Fund 1.637 1.820
Total 13.830 16.940

The general fund batance at 31 March 2005 is £15.120 million, being 8.0% of general fund
net expenditure. Funding to be carried forward for specific purposes which is earmarked
within the general fund stands at £7.094 million. The unallocated general fund balance,
therefore, stands at £8.026 million. As part of the budget proposals, the Council accepted in
principle to provide for a general contingency at 2% of net operating expenditure. Based on
the 2004/05 accounts, this equals £3.774 million. The unallocated general fund balance
exceeds this by £4.252 million. Members have deferred consideration of proposals to utilise
the unallocated element of general fund balances until the 2006/07 budget cycle.

The Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 replaced compulsory competitive tendering
regulations with a duty to maintain and disclose trading accounts for significant trading
operations, which are required to break-even over a three-year rolling period. Note 6 to the
consolidated revenue account highlights that all trading accounts are reporting a cumulative
surplus. However, Leisure trading account income was increased by £27,000 in order to
match FRS 17 pension costs, contrary to proper accounting practice. Although there is no
impact on the overall financial position of the Council, the Leisure trading account should
report a trading deficit of £27,000 for 2004/05. This adjustment will be recognised for
2005/06 in identifying any trading operation failing to meet the statutory requirement to
break-even over a rolling three year period.

Capital expenditure totalled £28.861 million against an approved budget of £37.627 million.
The Council’'s three-year capital programme is reviewed annually. The underspend has
arisen due to slippage on a number of projects included in the programme; in particular Argyll
Air Services, Bruichladdich Pier, Cuan Ferry Slipways, Campbeltown Community Project and
Campbeltown New Quay. These five projects account for £10.5 million of the slippage.

| have noted slippage in a number of councils’ capital programmes during 2004/05, as | have
carried out the audit of the nine councils for which | have audit responsibility. Because of the
change to the prudential regime for funding capital expenditure, from the previous annual
cash limited capital consent issued by the Scottish Executive, all councils are in the early
stages of managing capital programmes, more, flexibly, over longer time frames than
previously. Although slippage in any one year is, therefore, not unreasonable, | will be
monitoring closely the council’'s progress from year-to-year in managing its capital investment
and delivering its full programme of improvements in assets. Continuing slippage in the
longer term will require the Council to review its programme and capacity to deliver.

At 31 March 2005 the housing revenue account (HRA) shows a surplus for the year of £0.520
million, together with interest earned on balances of £0.021 million. The surplus arose
primarily because of savings on capital financing costs of £1.1 million. The surplus brought
forward from 2003/04 was £0.474 million, resulting in a balance carried forward of £1.015
million.



Issues arising

17.

18.

19.

Page 23

The Council’'s unaudited financial statements were submitted to the Controller of Audit prior to
the deadline of 30 June. Final accounts preparation procedures and working papers were
generally good and this enabled the audit to progress smoothly.

Some adjustments were made to the figures included in the unaudited accounts made
available for public inspection. In particular:

e capital funded from revenue relating to the HRA was excluded from the accounts
presented for audit;

e deferred charges balance for wheeled bins have now been written-off fully to the
consolidated revenue account;

e the capital element of finance lease payments were not fully reflected in the accounts
presented for audit; and

e FRS 17 pensions adjustments were not fully reflected in the accounts presented for
audit.

The sum of the adjustments increased the surplus on the general fund revenue account by
£872,000 to £2.927 million.

Further matters arising from the audit of the financial statements also require to be brought to
the attention of members and these are summarised below.

Pension liabilities

20.

21.

22.

Accounting for the costs of pensions presents a difficult challenge. The amounts involved are
large, the timescale is long, the estimation process is complex and involves many areas of
uncertainty that are the subject of assumptions. Financial Reporting Standard 17 (Retirement
Benefits) is based on the principle that an organisation should account for retirement benefits
at the point at which it commits to paying them, even if the actual payment will be made years
into the future. This involves substituting the actual payments made during the year by the
Council for its employer contributions, with an estimate of the amount that the Council would
be liable for if it had to pay out pensions benefits arising from employee services in the
current period.

Note 16 to the consolidated balance sheet highlights that the Council’s estimated pension
liabilities at 31 March 2005 exceeded its share of assets in the Strathclyde Pension Fund by
£81.535 million. The movement from a liability of £31.363 million at 31 March 2004 is
primarily due to there being a requirement to change the discount rate to be used in
calculating the 2004/05 liability. A revaluation of the pension scheme is currently being
carried out which it is anticipated will lead to increased annual pension contributions payable
by all member bodies. These increased contributions will be financed through the
consolidated revenue account.

The Council uses the actuary Hymans Robertson to produce information on the pension fund
entries in the Council's financial statement required by Financial Reporting Standard (FRS)
17 retirement benefits. As a resuit of some research of actuaries used by English local
authorities, Audit Scotland became aware, towards the end of September 2005, that some of
the FRS 17 ‘retirement benefits’ figures commissioned from Hymans Robertson may have
been calculated in a different way from that expected by Audit Scotland. This has no impact
on the figures reported in the balance sheet, neither the net cost of services nor the surplus
for the year recorded in the consolidated revenue account, although some figures which are



23.

Page 24

S
reversed out of the accounts could change. In addition, no value has been put on any\g\’
change that could be necessary. | have concluded that this would not materially affect the -

ability of the reader of the accounts to understand the council’s financial position, and | have
taken no further action in relation to the accounts or the audit opinion.

The Council also has an obligation to meet a proportion of the expenditure of the joint boards
of which it is a constituent member. Four of these boards, Strathclyde Fire Board,
Strathclyde Police Board, Dunbartonshire & Argyll & Bute Valuation Joint and Strathclyde
Passenger Transport Authority (funding the SPTE) had an excess of liabilities over assets at
31 March 2005 due to the accrual of pension liabilities. The Council will be due to meet joint
board pension liabilities as they fall due.

Asset management and valuation

24,

25.

The final report on the previous year’s audit commented on the lack of procedures to review
non-operational assets, and to document and review assets for impairment. These are two
important processes which contribute to a proper system of asset management and
valuation. No review of non-operational assets took place in 2004/05, and our enquiries have
established that the Council has been awaiting finalisation of the asset reconciliation, prior to
services confirming which assets actively contribute to service objectives. In respect of the
review of impairment of assets, we noted that a year-end exercise did take place, and no
impairment was identified. However, officers have confirmed that during 2005/06, they intend
to develop a set of documented procedures for routinely identifying significant asset
impairment during the year.

It is essential, where capital expenditure has been incurred during the year that the relevant
asset is formally revalued to ensure any non-enhancing expenditure is identified and
excluded from the fixed assets balance. Whilst we are aware that the Council conduct a five
yearly cyclical revaluation process, there is no method of ensuring that assets, which have
been subject to capital works, are revalued in the same year. It may, therefore, be up to five
years before non-enhancing expenditure is identified and removed from the accounts. (This
issue was identified during the previous year’s audit and our enquiries have established that
procedures have yet to be devised.) Officers have confirmed that, during 2005/06, they
intend to set a level of expenditure or percentage of expenditure to current asset value,
beyond which, a revaluation will be triggered in respect of the relevant asset.

Trading accounts

26.

27.

2004/05 is the second year of reporting the results of trading accounts. All trading accounts
are reporting a cumulative surplus, although as outlined in paragraph 13, our enquiries have
established that the Leisure trading account income was increased by £27,000 to match FRS
17 pension costs, contrary to proper accounting practice. Although there is no impact on the
overall financial position of the Council, the Leisure trading account should report a trading
deficit of £27,000 for 2004/05. This adjustment will be recognised for 2005/06 in identifying
any trading operation failing to meet the statutory requirement to break-even over a rolling
three year period.

One of the tests of whether trading accounts are required is whether the service is charged
on a basis other than a straightforward recharge of cost. Our enquiries have established that
a number of significant year-end income adjustments were made to the Waste Management
trading account and the Catering and Cleaning trading account. These recharges are based
on actual cost of service provision. Specifically:



28.

Page 25

. former client costs of some £1.08 million in relation to waste management, street\i\ :

sweeping and the skip service which are now charged to the trading account, were
recharged at the year-end based on actual expenditure;

. former non-statutory catering, cleaning and janitorial services costs of some £2.1
million were recharged during 2004/05 on the basis of actual costs plus 10%, based on
a long standing arrangement with the client; and

. actual support service costs of £675,00 were recharged at the year-end from the
Catering and Cleaning trading account to the client department based on historic
percentage allocations.

It is important that trading operations set charges for all activities delivered to the client on the
basis of full budgeted cost. If some activities are recharged at cost or if some costs are not
included in charge out rates but just recharged at the year-end, it is impossible to assess
whether the trading operation is trading efficiently, and whether the Council is obtaining best
value. Officers have confirmed that these issues will be addressed during 2005/06.

Control accounts

29.

During the audit, we identified that a significant number of control accounts are being
maintained and operated for the purpose of recording income and expenditure in relation to
various grant claims and initiatives. Although these amounts have been accounted for in the
financial ledger, they have not been included within the suite of ledger codes which facilitate
their inclusion within the consolidated revenue account (CRA). As a result, both gross income
and gross expenditure are currently understated by some £3.881 million (although they
aggregate to a nil effect on the surplus shown in the CRA). The Council has agreed that they
will review the control accounts and ensure that all income and expenditure is recorded gross
in the consolidated revenue account.

Former tenants rent arrears

30.

Within the housing rents system, there is a process in place whereby former tenants rent
arrears are billed via the corporate debtors system, whilst also remaining in the housing rents
system. As a result, former tenants arrears have been double counted in the debtors figure
shown in the balance sheet, resulting in a gross overstatement of £148,848. However, this
double counting is off-set because two provisions had been made in respect of the debt,
each being approximately 95% (£145,405) of the value of the gross debt. This effectively
cancels the original error, leaving only a net debtors overstatement of some £3,000. Officers
have agreed that this debtor balance and corresponding provision will be included only once
in next year’s accounts.

Schools public private partnership (PPP)

31.

In order to improve school assets across the Council area, the Council is progressing funding
through a PPP schools project. As members will be aware, the original outline business case
(OBC) for the non-profit distributing organisation (NPDO), the organisation which has been
established to undertake the schools project, included the refurbishment of 26 of the
Council's 93 schools and rebuilding two schools. However, following a detailed consultation
exercise in 2004, the project was amended to include only 17 schools, and further amended
at the Council meeting of 31 January 2005 to remove another seven schools, leaving ten
schools within the project.



32.

33.

Page 26

vy S
Argyll and Bute Council is the only Council undertaking a schools PPP project using an\{%; '

NPDO model. My letters of 16 June 2005, 25 July 2005 and 26 August 2005 confirm that
the process followed to determine whether the body should account for the transaction on or
off its balance sheet was in accordance with the current underlying guidance (subject to
certain reservations detailed in the letters).

The Head of Strategic Finance has previously confirmed that his final view on the accounting
treatment is that the transaction should be accounted for as off Argyll and Bute Council’s
balance sheet. In my view, the Head of Strategic Finance's final judgement on the
accounting treatment is reasonable, subject to the reservations set out in my letter of 26
August 2005. Financial close on nine of the schools was achieved on 9 September 2005,
with further negotiation continuing on the other school. The proposed project is a major
development for the Council and | will continue to monitor this area as part of the audit
process.

Legality

34.

Each year we request written confirmation from the Head of Strategic Finance that the
Council’s financial transactions accord with relevant legislation and regulations. Significant
legal requirements are also included in audit programmes and checklists. The Head of
Strategic Finance has confirmed that, to the best of his knowledge and belief and having
made appropriate enquiries of the Chief Executive and senior management team, the
financial transactions of the Council were in accordance with the relevant legislation and
regulations governing its activities.

The Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002

35.

This Act came into force on 1 January 2005 and provides citizens with the right to obtain
information and documents held by public authorities in Scotland. In the first eight months of
the Act, the Council has received 120 requests for information ranging from the straight-
forward to the extremely complex and time-consuming. To date, the Council has been able
to adequately fulfil its responsibilities under the new Act.

Statement on the system of internal financial control

36.

The 2004/05 financial statements include a statement on the system of internal financial
control which highlights the Head of Strategic Finance’s view that reasonable assurance can
be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal financial control
system, but that work is ongoing to further enhance the control environment and address
weaknesses in the areas of risk and asset management. The statement complies with
accounting requirements and is not inconsistent with our audit findings.

Looking ahead

Group accounts

37.

The 2004 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom introduced
modified arrangements for the preparation of group accounts. Councils were encouraged to
adopt the new arrangements in 2004/05, but they are mandatory from 2005/06 (with the
publication of comparative figures for the previous year). In view of the significant challenge
presented by the new requirements, the Council decided not to adopt them this year but to
work towards compliance in 2004/05.

i
e



38.

Page 27 e

A six-step process is underway to compile a comprehensive list of organisations where group\l‘\‘

relationships exist. The planned process, if successfully completed, incorporates the actions “S=—

required to ensure that that the group accounts disclosures are in accordance with the code
for 2005/06.

Whole of Government Accounts

39.

40.

HM Treasury is in the process of introducing Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) covering
the whole of the public sector and treating government as if it were a single entity by
eliminating all significant transactions between public sector bodies. Local government is
being included in this process in a phased manner:

e an initial ‘dry run’ this year, after finalisation of the 2004/05 financial statements, and
focusing on establishing the systems required for full participation

e a second dry run in 2005/086, involving fuller data collection and a requirement for the
data to be subject to audit

e production of audited WGA accounts in 2006/07, including prior year comparative figures
Involvement in the WGA process, particularly when viewed in conjunction with the new
arrangements for group accounts, will place an additional burden on the Council’s finance

staff. Preparations for the WGA process should begin as soon as possible, with early activity
to assess resource requirements.

10

Sinpeet



Page 28 s

Corporate governance =

Overview

41. Corporate governance is concerned with structures and processes for decision-making,
accountability, control and behaviours at the upper levels of the organisation. Last year we
reported that although the Council had many aspects of a sound corporate governance
framework in place, further improvement was still required in relation to identifying service
areas where trading accounts should be prepared and asset management.

Risk management

42. Risk management is incomplete but developing. A strategic risk management group has
been set up, which meets on a quarterly basis and is intended to support the development
and implementation of corporate risk management. The group has met on a number of
occasions undertaking an initial high level review of the strategic risk register. The group has
also agreed a form of risk matrix and register and is examining the constitution of loss control
groups within service areas.

Audit committee

43. The Council's compliance with the Guidance Note on Audit Committee Principles in Local
Authorities in Scotland was assessed to establish whether audit committee principles and
other scrutiny arrangements are being operated effectively. Our assessment concluded that
the arrangements in place appear to be very effective. The audit committee is very
supportive of both internal and external audit and the arrangements contribute well to the
overall control environment.

Internal audit

44. Internal audit plays a key role in the Council's governance arrangements, providing an
independent appraisal service to management by reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness
of the internal control system. In July 2004 Audit Scotland published a national report on A
job worth doing: raising the standard of internal audit in Scottish Councils. Overall, the
Council was placed within the highest performance band.

45. Our audit planning memorandum for 2004/05 which was submitted to members of the audit
committee in March 2005 set out that we planned to place reliance on the work of internal
audit in relation to payroll, purchasing, creditors payments, budgetary control, treasury
management, capital accounting / capital contracts and statutory performance indicators.
Our review of the work performed by internal audit in these areas was found to be
satisfactory and accordingly, reliance has been placed on their work.

Financial strategy

46. Local authorities administer large sums of public expenditure within a complex financial and
policy environment, often as key partners in delivering central government policy objectives.
Difficult decisions must be made in balancing demands for improvements in both the volume
of services delivered and in the performance of those services within constraints on financial
resources. A council’s financial strategy is critical to help ensure that national priorities, local
corporate objectives and service improvements are delivered.

1"



47.

48.

49.

50.

N\ 'X
We undertook a review of financial strategy across a number of councils audited by Audit\*\

Page 29

Scotland, and found that most councils had strong financial stewardship arrangements in
place with an emphasis on the traditional areas of control, probity, accountability and
compliance. We found little evidence, however, that across Scotland, financial strategy was
a significant driver in the improvement agenda or played a key role in reviewing the way that
services are delivered.

From our local review, the Council has sound arrangements in place in many areas for
determining financial strategy although some key arrangements have yet to be developed.
Overall conclusions are that the Council:

operates a budgeting system that is independent of the Council’s corporate objectives.
Although the annual service plans include a limited amount of financial detail, there is no
attempt to align resources to priorities;

has developed an approach to ensuring the sustainability of its spending decisions
although this focuses on the short to medium term, but is limited in relation to longer term
sustainability. This development will be strengthened by the implementation of the new
asset management strategy which was approved by the Council in April 2005;

has demonstrated a relatively pro-active approach to assisting elected members and
managers to be effective financial managers and has recognised the need to enhance
budget monitoring procedures and to provide budget holder training; and

has sound foundations of budgetary control and treasury management on which to build
and develop the financial strategy.

Examples of particularly good practice already in place within the Council include:

regular, and structured, reporting of material revenue budget variances to both senior
management and members;

usable reserves which are held for a clear purpose in support of the overall financial
strategy;

bi-annual monitoring of progress toward targets established in the corporate plan;

the establishment of a community planning partnership which operates both across the
whole of Argyll and Bute, as well as on an area basis, obtaining views and feedback from
residents and incorporates these into area plans through the identification of key themes
and priorities; and

quarterly reporting of service performance to the strategic management team
the Council's Constitution, which was approved by the Council on 29 June 2005,

incorporates the Council’s financial and security regulations which provide the framework
for managing the Council’s financial affairs.

Areas where we consider that arrangements could be further improved include the need for:

clearer links between the overall corporate plan and the individual service plans, and
costing of objectives at a service plan level and reporting thereon;

a more consistent approach to budget setting and monitoring which is practical for all
service areas. We acknowledge that there is currently a plan to roll out the principles of
a approach in operation within the Community Services Department and we further
recognise that these arrangements need to take account of the different nature of
operations within each department; and

12

o
NN

i



Page 30 /

N
o timely implementation of the recently approved asset management strategy to ensure\_\;

capital investment decisions are soundly based.

51. A number of reports have been produced recently highlighting good practice in financial
strategy, including the Controller of Audit's ‘Overview of the local authority accounts 2004,
the Audit Commission’s ‘‘mprovement through better financial management’ and CIPFA’s
framework/model on ‘improving financial management in public services’. These documents
provide useful benchmarks on best practice and the Council should review its own progress
against these benchmarks on a regular basis.

Anti-fraud and corruption arrangements

52. At the corporate level, the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to prevent and
detect fraud and corruption. During 2004/05, internal audit has identified no major issues in
relation to fraud and other irregularities. Housing benefit and council tax benefit frauds
amounting to £144,850 and £49,998 respectively have been identified and pursued.

53. During 2004/05 the National Fraud Initiative, which has operated for a number of years in
England and Wales, was introduced in Scotland. This initiative involves the collection of a
range of datasets, such as employees, pensioners and housing benefit recipients, from a
number of bodies to compare them for inconsistencies and anomalies that may indicate error
or fraud. These cases are then reported to individual bodies for investigation. Over the
years, the National Fraud Initiative has accrued savings of £160 million in England and
Wales.

54. The NFI 2004/05 results (data matches) were distributed to the Council on CD-Rom in late
January 2005 and the Council is required to follow up the matches, as appropriate, and
provide savings returns reporting progress made as at 31 May 2005, 30 September 2005 and
31 December 2005. The Council’s involvement in NFlI 2004/05 was monitored during the
course of the audit.

55. A clear approach for investigating matches and reporting findings was implemented by the
unified benefits section. This included prioritising ‘red’ matches with a secondary focus on
‘vellow’ matches. They also maintained appropriate documentation to support the
investigative work carried out and implemented a timetable which worked towards the interim
return and final return deadlines. There is, however, no evidence that a similar approach was
adopted by the payroll section. Our enquiries have established that although payroll
submitted a ‘nil’ return for the interim submission, this was due to lack of work performed
rather than a review highlighting no fraudulent activity. The final return was due on 30
September 2005 and our follow-up enquiries have also established that no further work has
been performed since the interim return deadline. | will continue to take an interest in the
progress of this initiative.

Systems of internal control

56. As outlined in paragraph 44, reliance was placed on the work of internal audit in 2004/05 to
evaluate a number of key systems in place within the Council. The internal audit manager
concluded that ‘reasonable assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Council’s internal financial control system in the year to 31 March 2005'.

57. In addition to placing reliance on internal audit work, the 2004/05 audit involved a review of a
number of the Council's systems and follow-up of progress on actions agreed in previous
years. The main findings from the more significant areas examined are summarised in the
following paragraphs.

13

S
et



Page 31 Ve

Issues from previous years \\ ;

58. Recommendations made in previous years’ audit reports are monitored by internal audit who
follow-up the recommendations made with the appropriate designated officer. The audit
committee is presented with an update at each meeting showing recommendations
implemented and outstanding. | am pleased to report that remedial action has been taken in
regard to most of the matters raised in management reports issued last year which covered
the main financial systems and general computer environment.

Establishment of significant trading operations

59. Section 10 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 requires local authorities to
maintain and disclose trading accounts for significant trading operations. This legislation
removed the requirement for compulsory competitive tendering for specified services and
encouraged a best value approach to service delivery. The legislation recognises
competition as an important, but not definitive, element in achieving best value from trading
activities.

60. Last year | reported that the identification of trading operations for 2003/04 and 2004/05 was
approved by the Strategic Policy Committee. The Council’s criteria and tests of significance
identified only the roads maintenance and building services functions as significant trading
operations. The Council chose to prepare the following additional voluntary trading accounts
in respect of certain trading operations which are grouped for disclosure to reflect the way in
which the services are managed:

¢ waste management;
e leisure operations; and

e catering and cleaning service.

61. Though we are now in our second year of trading accounts Audit Scotland are of the view
that across Scotland, trading accounts are being approached in a mechanistic and
compliance way, and not as the result of a proper best value review of delivery options. |
have also made comment at paragraphs 26 to 28 above, on the lack of rigour in the operation
of the trading activities. In Argyll and Bute Council, in the context of a strategic review, a
programme to review best value in relation to the significant trading operations is being
developed.

Asset management

62. Last year | reported that there was inadequate control over the management of the Council’s
property assets. Our follow-up enquiries have established that the Council’'s asset
management strategy, which provides an action plan and timetable for the integration of
asset management into service planning and performance management, is being taken
forward. Completeness checks and some property condition surveys are currently being
undertaken across the Council. Asset use and options appraisal will be considered once the
completeness checks are finalised. Work has also been completed on the schools estate
asset management plan and the roads maintenance and asset management plan and the
council has assessed the level of backlog maintenance in both areas.

Business continuity planning
63. As part of our 2004/05 audit we carried out a review of the Council's arrangements for

business continuity planning. Our review identified that the Strategic Risk Management and
Governance Group are supervising the development of a business continuity plan. The group

14



Page 32

\

is aware of the need to expand the scope of the current exercise which is focusing on the\i\’
risks associated with a pandemic influenza epidemic, to cover other operational risks and to o>
minimise the impact should these risks occur. Our report made a number of s
recommendations to improve business continuity planning within the Council, including:

the scope of the current business continuity exercise should be expanded to include
other risks;

the Council should ensure that sufficient resources are assigned to the project to
complete the tasks identified in the project plan to the agreed timetable; and

during the course of a business continuity planning exercise the Council may identify
issues affecting several departments; these issues should be addressed across the
Council rather than individual departments developing their own plans in isolation.

64. A timetable for implementing the recommendations arising from the review has been agreed.

Information management

65. During 2004/05 we reviewed aspects of the Council’s controls relating to the arrangements
for management information to facilitate effective data protection and preparedness for the
introduction of freedom of information legislation. The report arising from our review made a
number of recommendations to strengthen the Council's governance and internal control
structures, including:

the Council's Data Protection Policy should be reviewed and updated with the
requirements of the Data Protection Act;

the Council should clarify its policy relating to freedom of information; and

representation on the Freedoms of Information Working Group should be extended to
include all Council services.

66. | am pleased to record that positive action has already been taken on most of the matters
arising from the review.

Looking ahead

67. Inthe coming years the Council faces significant challenges which include:

concluding the housing stock transfer project in partnership with Communities Scotland
and the Scottish Executive;

concluding the schools estate non-profit distributing organisation (NPDO), public private
partnership (PPP) project and modernising the remaining schools estate through the
schools estate strategy. Based on retaining the existing number of buildings, the
strategy identifies a funding gap of £102.3m over 10 years after the NPDO work has
been completed;

maintenance and upgrade of the existing transport infrastructure within Argyll and Bute.
The total backlog maintenance for Argyll and Bute’s roads network is calculated at over
£38 million;

responding to cost pressures and the need to resource sustainable performance
improvements while meeting new demands for services. Significant efficiencies are
required to meet additional costs in demand led services and the challenge of funding
settlements, against the back drop of the Efficient Government agenda. Specific cost

15



Page 33 Y

pressures may arise from the consequences of the single status pay agreement and the\\\;
need to fund increased pension costs; S

i

e development of a robust asset management planning process, linked to capital
expenditure strategies and plans, to ensure best value in the use of the Council’s assets
and that spending plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable;

e the introduction of proportional representation for the 2007 elections and potential
changes to the remuneration of members. There is a risk that current political
governance structures may not be the most appropriate in the future and there is a need
to ensure effective succession planning in relation to both members and senior officers;
and

e working with partners to ensure sound governance and accountability arrangements for
the new Community Health Partnerships.

68. These areas, and the controls put in place by management to address the issues, are likely
to be subject to ongoing review during the 2005/06 audit.

16



Page 34 Y

Performance management N

Best Value

69. The Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 established best value and community planning
as statutory duties for local authorities. In response, the Accounts Commission introduced
new arrangements for the audit of Best Value based on a cyclical approach involving a full
review by a specialist team once every three years. In the intervening years, short follow-up
reviews are carried out by the local auditor.

70. The Council received a full best value audit this year which is due to be reported early in
2006. A more detailed review of the Council’s performance management arrangements was
also undertaken and the results of this work are reported below. No follow-up work was
undertaken on community planning as this area is the subject of a national study to be
reported this winter.

Performance management and improvement

71. The delivery of high quality and cost effective public services is a cornerstone of current
government policy. Performance management and improvement involves raising the
standards and quality of performance, achieving greater efficiency in the use of public funds
and becoming more responsive to the needs and aspirations of both individual service users
and the communities that each council serves. The development of the community planning
agenda will start to generate a number of performance indicators to reflect partnership
activity. Councils’ performance management systems will need to be robust to handle
changing requirements.

72. We undertook a review of performance management across a number of councils which are
audited by Audit Scotland, and found that most councils recognise the importance of an
effective system of performance management and the implementation of a performance
management framework is a corporate priority.

73. The Council is currently in the process of implementing a new performance management
framework which was approved by the Strategic Policy Committee in December 2004. The
framework is being introduced as a phased project over an extended period (2 years) to
enable “lessons to be learned” as the process develops. The intention is to unify the
planning and performance reporting processes across the Council and to develop a balanced
scorecard system of performance measures across all services. Although the basic
framework has been developed, much work has still to be done in incorporating the process
into the planning and reporting cycles. Overall, we consider that the Council is still some way
off from being able to demonstrate that the framework is effective in driving the continuous
improvement in Council services.

74. Examples of particularly good practice already in place within the Council include:

o the preparation of a comprehensive combined “budget setting pack” for 2005/06 which
enabled corporate, service and area plans to be approved by the Council at the same
time as capital and revenue budgets;

e the Council continues to have an active wide-ranging community planning partnership in
place to implement the objectives under the community plan. An effective citizens panel
also exists and is consuilted twice a year as part of a questionnaire exercise;

17



75.

Page 35 /

I\

the Council has a Policy and Strategy Team in place which has undertaken consultation ‘\

and training exercises with heads of service in developing new service plans and Sz

performance reports under the revised framework;

a corporate asset management planning strategy (AMPS) has recently been approved,
along with a 2 year action plan and timetable for implementation. This will enable the
authority to achieve improved efficiencies and management of its assets, leading to
integrated asset management and service planning;

a performance development and review (PDR) system has been developed and is being
used by services. The system enables service objectives to be translated into the work
plans of individual employees, thereby ensuring the Council’s workforce are focussed in
achieving corporate and service objectives;

a corporate risk management strategy was approved by the senior management team
(SMT) in December 2004. A risk and governance manager has been appointed to
oversee the process and a risk management group (comprising of representatives from
all services) has been tasked with implementing the strategy. The group is currently
conducting a detailed review of service risks following initial progress in identification of
high level risks; and

the Council has an informative website which provides access to committee reports and
is a useful source of information relating to current policies and initiatives. Copies of the
corporate, area and service plans are held online, in addition to a range of financial
information.

Areas where we consider that arrangements could be further improved include:

there is a general lack of formal scrutiny of performance by members in relation to
interim monitoring of service performance against plans. Whilst we are aware that the
corporate plan action plan is monitored and reported to members bi-annually, effective
scrutiny by members of council performance requires that they receive regular and
detailed updates on council performance at service level;

the corporate plan was set in 2003 for the period 2003/07. Our review of the plan
identified that it focuses on area related issues and specific service initiatives, as
opposed to fundamental aspects of service provision. In order for the corporate plan to
act as a driver for service improvement, it should focus also on aspects of core service
delivery and reflect the views of the local population;

service plans make no reference to the corporate plan. In order to demonstrate
alignment with the objectives of the corporate plan, there should be a clear reference
made to corporate objectives when defining service activities. Our review also
established that a number of services have difficulty aligning their service objectives
with corporate objectives due to the limitations identified within the corporate plan;

corporate plan targets are not easily measurable and are not expressed in “SMART"
terms; and

service and area plans make no reference to finance or resource requirements. Although
these plans were approved as part of the same “pack” which was used in setting 3 year
revenue budgets for years 2005/06 to 2007/08, the revenue budgets were set at a higher
level. In order that finance and resource allocations are adequately targeted against
corporate objectives, it is essential that individual service objectives and activities are
fully costed. This would also assist in providing a sound basis for identifying efficiency
savings where required.

18



Page 36 -

7

76. Performance management frameworks have been subject to frequent comment in the best\‘
value reports published to date. The Council's arrangements in this key area, therefore, will
be subject to scrutiny on an ongoing basis. o

Performance indicators

77. The Council has a statutory duty to collect, record and publish specified performance
indicators and, so far as is practicable, ensure they are accurate and complete. The
Accounts Commission issue a direction each year detailing the indicators that require to be
published and external auditors review councils’ arrangements for collection, and return
details of the indicators, including an opinion on their reliability, to Audit Scotland
headquarters to enable compilation of national reports on performance.

78. For 2004/2005 the Council were required to report on 65 statutory performance indicators
covering 10 services. For 2004/2005, six indicators have been classified as unreliable.
These relate to: housing indicator 1; social work children’s services indicators 12 and 13;
libraries indicators 6 and 7; and roads and lighting indicator 4.

79. These indicators have been discussed with officers and an action plan has been agreed to
ensure reliable figures are reported, where possible, in 2005/06.

80. Audit Scotland produces a number of pamphlets containing comparative information and all
authorities are encouraged to use this information to identify scope for improvement and to
contribute to their programme of service reviews. Each year the Council analyses its own
performance against a group of peer councils, with the results of the review reported
quarterly to elected members and senior management as part of the developing performance
management framework.

Following the public pound

81. Councils fund arms-length and external organisations for a range of purposes and these
arrangements are often more complex than standard purchase contracts for goods and
services, involving the transfer of public funds from the direct control of a council to another
body. In practice these can range from relatively small grants to voluntary organisations to
payments to trusts set up by councils to manage all their leisure facilities.

82. In response to concerns about the need to maintain control and accountability over public
funds, COSLA and the Accounts Commission jointly published the ‘Code of Guidance on
Funding External Bodies and Following the Public Pound’in 1996. In 2003 Audit Scotland
reviewed councils’ compliance with the code and found that the quality of information
available was mixed. A follow-up review was undertaken this year to:

e map how much councils spend on arms-length and external organisations, and why

e establish the extent to which councils comply with the code

o facilitate the sharing of identified good practice

83. A national report covering all councils will be published at the end of the year. A local report
is currently with officers for comment. The report identified that the Council provided
£1,363,894 of revenue funding to a total of 242 arms length external organisations (ALEOs).
No capital funding or loans were made to any ALEOs. Our overall conclusion from the review
is that we consider that the Council has demonstrated compliance with a number of aspects
of the code of practice in relation to its dealings with arms length external organisations.

84. The Council has effective arrangements in place for:

19



85.

Page 37 /

e standard grant application forms and contracts; N

o detailed service level agreements, of a standard format. These include target outcomes
for objectives which are drawn up in respect of higher level funding agreements; and

e adequate vetting and regular monitoring procedures.

Areas for improvement which would benefit from renewed management attention include:

¢ the decision to award funding is purely a “political” one. There is no pre-determined,
clear or transparent scoring methodology or option appraisal process which ensures that

the Council's objectives are best served by a particular organisation or to ensure an
optimum balance of funded organisations which serve individual sub-objectives;

o officers involved in dealing with ALEOs currently receive no training in this area;

e many organisations do not require to adhere to a given timetable for achievement of
objectives;

e there is no central quality control operated to oversee the monitoring process;
e there is no central point of knowledge in relation to grants in the Council; and

e anumber of key areas could be clarified through additional policy initiatives: the standing
orders do not currently outline the approvals process; there is no policy outlining
situations where it is appropriate for officers or members to act on an ALEO, and; there
is no policy which outlines minimum skills requirements for staff acting on ALEO boards.

Issues from previous years

86.

Recommendations made in previous years’ performance audit reports on commissioning
community care services for older people, youth justice, community equipment and
adaptations and supporting people arrangements have been monitored by management and
incorporated into service plans as appropriate.

Looking ahead

87.

88.

89.

In 2001 the McCrone Committee made recommendations about terms and conditions for
teachers in Scotland, with the aim of revitalising the profession, making it a more attractive
career option and addressing recruitment difficulties. These recommendations are being
implemented over a number of years and are underpinned by an investment of £2.15 billion.
The 2004/05 audit included a review of how this investment has been utilised across
Scotland and the results of this work will be outlined in a national report to be published in the
autumn. Phase 2 of the study will take place during 2005/06, concentrating on the more
qualitative aspects of the agreement, and will be reported in autumn 2006.

Particular challenges facing the Council in the coming years include:

¢ responding to the Efficient Government agenda. The Council is currently developing its
overall approach to efficient government savings and is exploring joint working
opportunities with other Highlands and Islands authorities;

e improving the approach to performance management and public performance reporting
to support continuous improvement; and

e developing community planning and other partnerships to achieve demonstrable
improvements in outcomes and services to the community.

These areas are likely to be subject to ongoing review during the 2005/06 audit.

20



|74

"JOJJUOD JOUUED JIOUNOYD BY} YIIyM

sjoefo.d jeyides uo 108ye ue aaey ueo Ajoedeo
19)Jew se yons siojoe) [euss)xy ‘sjoslosd
[enplAiput jo Buiwi} ay) seop }i Se yonw

Se N4/ JepIsSuod 0} spasu |lounod ayj ueid
[endeo [jesano sy Buibeuew uj sjosfoid Jeyio
uo Ajasianpe Bunoedwi pue s}s00 pasesioul

0} Buipes| ‘swajqoud Ayoedeo ; 8oinosal "pua seak ayj je ainjipuadxa

swuweiboud Juadsun jueoyiubis asjwuiw

00 9]0 JOU S80P }l INSUS 0) UOHOR dAljeUIS) e
o / uonoe BuLIapISUOD Usym USXe) aq O} Spesu Jo juanaud pjnom yoym suopoe Buifypuapi o)
%J o180 A1 1EY) ANIUSPI MOU PNoYS BULoHUOW UBAIB aq p|noYs UOIRIAPISUOY) (UO[JEPUIWWOIY
®© 0] yoeoidde ayy pue unaoo |im abeddis ‘abeddyjs jo }nse. e se sjuswonoidwi
ol S0IAIBS 80INIBS JoAI[ap pue SaAljoslqo 8)ei0diod [B20] jJosw
10 pesy JueAs|al 8u) Aq 8pew &g o} t.o dau Jou Aew swiweiboud jejided sesh-g s,[1ouno) 8y )siy
Aeluswa|ddns e asnbai syosloud pal, aiaym aswwelbouid ayy ul papnjoul
pejdope siI yoeoudde ybi oijes; y -wnpno syoefoud jo Jequinu e uo abedd)s 0} anp uasue
[eloUBUl} SE ||oM SE SYSiI pue sjjauaq ‘ssaiboud aoueul sey puadsiapun ay] ‘uoljjiw 99/°'83 Jo puadsiapun
psuonoe | 109foid siojuow siy] -aoe|d uj Apealje si uejd o16ejeNS |20} B yim 196png mojaq Apueoyiubis pauinjino

Apealy jendeo ayy Bulojuow Joj ssao0id pasinel Y JO peaH swuwelbouid jeudes ay] :ainjpuadxa [eyded )

a7

ue|d uonoy

BN N W I I I N T S I T I I B I I I B e e .



(44

‘1509 jo sabieyoal jeusajul pud Jeak jo

jJoadsal ul apew aq p|noys s}ipald ou pue papiaoid
S99IAI9S 10} sabieyd Jo }oadsal uj epew aq pjnoys
sjunoosoe Bulpeld) 0} S}Pald || ‘uoiepUaWWOIY

sonoeid Bununoooe sadoud Jussaidal
jou op pue buipe.j Jo }daduod a8y} YIM JusjsISuodU|
aJe Jeaf ayj Jo pus ayj Je sabieyoal jeuiapul ySiy

‘uolsiaoid 821AI8S JO }SOD [Bnjoe UO paseq

sebieyoas Juasaldal yoiym unodoy Buipes) Buiues|d
pue Buueje) ay) pue jJunodoy Buipe.] juswebeuep
9)SEM\ 98U} O} 8pewW alom sjusw)snipe awoou; pus-iesh
yuesyubis Jo Jaquuinu B ‘I9ASMOH '1S09 Jo abieyoal

‘siseq Buipel; e uo ale sabieyoel aoueui4 plemuojiybiens e uey) Jayjo siseq e uo psbieyo
aoi1nies Buipey; [|e 1ey) ainsus 0} N0 paliied 8q o1bejens S| 99IAI8S 8U) J8yjaum si palinbau ale syunosoe Buipes)
900z UaJe L€ | 03 seoinuses Buipeu Joj siseq Buibieyo Jo mainey JO pesH Jayjaym Jo s}saj 8y} Jo suQ :sjunodde Buipes) ‘9z

‘pajuswsjdw] pue pajusawinoop

aqg pinoys jusuiedw Jo} pamaiaal Ajjedsnjewdlsis
u29aq aAey sjasse jey} Ajjenuue Buesjsuowsp

1o} sdays [eanoeid ay) ‘uonippe u] "saAlds(qo
991AJ9S 0} 9JNQLIUOD A[@AlJoR S}aSSe YIIYM ULIjuod
0} paJinbai aq p|NOYs SIJIAISS :UONJRPUBWILIOIY

Page 39

‘pajejs-siW 8q Aew Jjoays aouefeq ayj ul
sjasse paxiy Jo uojenfea pue uonestiobaled ey ysly

-Juswuiedwi 1oy pamainal Ajjeoljews)sAs usaq aney

"'SMaIAB. JuauLiredw aoueul S}OSSE Jey] ajeJjsuoLap O} 8jgeun uss( sey [Iounod
1o} paysi|gejse sainpasold pue usyeuspun oibejens ay) pue Go/y00z Ul @oe|d Yoo] sjesse [euonelado-uou

900Z Yoiew L€ aq 0} s}osse |euoijelado-uou JO MainSy 10 peaH JO M3IABI O :uolpjenjeA pue juswabeuew jassy ‘ve

- S IS s I DY IS DN DN DD Gan B DD I IS DD B B B B =



Page 40

€C

90/€0 Aq suels
uonejuswaidwy

G0/2L Aq

Ods pue NS
Aq panoudde

uejd 108(oid

"LINS 8y} 0} papiwqgns a4 |jim spodai
ssalbouid Jeinbay -ueid jos8loid auy yum aui|
Ui pajonpuod aq [jm aseyd yoes Jo uoljen|ens]

‘0dS pue 1AS 8y} Aq panoidde ueld 1osfoid
ay} ul paalbe se ‘saseyd ul pajuswaldwi aq
(1M YJomawel) Juswebeuew aouewlopad ay |

Jabeuepy
ABajens
pue Aojjod

‘paiojiuow
aq 0} S| yJoMmawel4 Juswabeuepy asuewiopadd
ayj} Jo uonejuswajdw] :UOKEPUSWWOINY

"S80IAIBS U] JuswsAoldLl
SNoNuUU02 8y) BUIALID Ul 8AI}08YS SI YIomawel ay)
jey) ajesjsuowisp o} 8jqeun aq Aew [1oUNOCYD 8y XSIY

sa[0ko Buiodal pue Buiuueld ayy ojul pajesodiodu;
aq 0} [|iS Sey YJomalweld ay] “YIoMaliel)
Juswebeuew souewlouad e Bugjuswsidwi jo ssaooud
8y} ui sI Iouno) 8y :juswabeuew aduewIoMdd

‘0L

G00¢
Jaqwisoaq LE

‘pouad swi}

SIL} UIY}IM paje|nwuIo) 8q os|e |IIm selobajed
}Sl Jamo| Jayjo 0} yoeoudde uy “1agquieds(]
JO pua Aq uonoss s)jeusg 0} paLsjel pue
pajebisaaul aq 0} saljewoue |[olAed/ouag
BuisnoH "18qusAON Jo pud Aq pauodal

pue pajebisaAul aq 0} ssljewoue uojsuad
Ile yum paaibe Buiag mou si yoeoidde uy

S80IAIBS
[elouBUlq pue
101 jo pesH

‘uonoas jjolhed ayj Aq pajuawajdul aq
pinoys |4N @y} Aq pajiodas sayojew Buijebseaul
Joj yoeoudde Jeajd y :uoiepuswWILIoddy]

‘AyaeinBa.l iayjo 1o pnely ajeaipul Aew jeyj seyojew
Bjep Uly)Im Sajjewioue pue saousjsisuooul Ajuspi
0} sdajs sjeudoidde ayj jou sey [1ouno) ay sy

‘IAN 8y}

Ag pepinoid sayojew ejep ayj malaal 0} uopoes fjolhed
8yl Ag uaye) usaq sey yoeosdde pasijuoud ‘peuueld

€ 1eyj] SISIXS a0UapIAS ON :9Aljeniu| pneld jeuolleN

¢S




ve

Page 41

"sJeaA [eioueuly ainyny
ul Ajljigela. Jisy) ainsua 0} uaye} usaq Apealje
sey uonoe ‘s|d [edn)noy om} ay} o} piebas yupn

‘Id BuisnoH
ay} 0} psebas ypum uaxe; Bujaq si uoioe ou
Jajsuel; yo0)s Buisnoy Jusuewiw 8y} Jo MaIA U|

‘Id Bunybi pue

SpeOY 8y} pue S|4 S92IAIBS S uaipliyd oM} 8y}
jo Ajpgeljeun ay) sessalppe syl (S0/002
$10}e2IpuU| aJUBLLIOHSd JO MBIASY B} UO

‘90/S00Z Ui popodal ale saunbiy ajqeljal ainsus
0} pamalAal 3 O} ale siojedipul asay) Buijidwods
Jo} sainpadsold s,1oUno) 8yl UOHEPUIWIWOIY

"sJ0jeoIpul souewopad
payoads ejesnooe  ysiqnd pue plodel  ‘Jo8jj0d
0} Ainp Aiojnjes sj jesw O} Sjiey [IoUnoD 8yl MSiY

Jo peaH

900Z YoJelN | Hoday Jipny [euiajul 8y} Jo € xipuaddy) Jipny 90INIBS ‘g|geljeiun Se palISSe|d uaaq aAey
Aq aoe|d uj [eussu| Aq paonpo.d usaq sey uejd uonoe uy JO speeH slojedlpul XIS :siojedipul souewopad Alojnjels 9/

"pa1s09 AjIn} aq pjnoys saijiAlloe pue

S9AI}29[qO 9DIAISS [ENPIAIPU] :UOjepUAWIIOI3Y

saAljoalqo ajesodiod jsurebe pojobie)

JOU aJe SUOIJBIOjjB 82IN0S8.1 pue doUBUI :)SIY

9]0A2 19bpnq ‘ue|d 81e10dio0 8y} 0} SHUI| JOA0D 0} pejoadxa aodueul ‘sjuswalinbai

80/2002 aq |Im siy] Aemuapun Apealje s| SasI0ioxa oibejens 80JN0saJ JO 8oueUl} 0] 80USl9jal OU a)ew
Jopeoeid Uy | Buuueld 126png pue sainiss ubjje o} 108foid v sue|d eale pue 80IA19G :jJudwabeuew asuewIoMad ‘zl

ENE NN EEE EEN DEN NEN DEN DEN WA DN BN NN BN BN DES BOS DB NN BN BE .




14

‘punod

allqnd 8y} Buimojjo4 uo asueping jJo apo? ayj jo
sjuswaiinbal ay} yum asuejdwod ainsus o} aseid
u1 3nd aJse sainpasoud ajes10dio”) :uoijepUBWIWIOIIY

Page 42

"(s002 -spuny ayqnd

Anr) podau punod d1gnd auy Buimoyjod, ;
S.pUE[I00S JIPNY UILHIM SUOREPUSWILICDS] JOAO AJjIqeiunodde ujejuiell o} Sjiej [Iounoy oy Nsiy

ay) Bunuawa|dwl SpIemo) YoM [jim uonesiueblio sejnoiped e o) Buipun;

Aued Bupjiom siy| -uoessusbay Ajlunwiwo) pJeme 0} UOISIOap 8y} YIM JoWw ale $aAl30siqo s [1ouno)

8002 Uoien Aq puUE 92UBUIBAOCL) pUB S8JIAISS Jljesoowaq aoueul4 3y} Jey} sainsus yoiym ssaooud |esiesdde uondo o

uonejuswaldwii ‘@oueuld o16a)eng wouy saAlejussaldal o|bejens ABojopoyiaw Buloos juaiedsuel) 1o Jeg|o ‘paulwisl}ep
N4 yum paysijqelrse aq oy si Aued Buijiom y JO pesH -aud ou sI aseyl :punod onqgnd ay) Buimojjo4 08

I I TEE NN N BT BEN DB aN BN BB BN TN I DaE N B oE O W =



Page 43

Argyll

$sBute

COUNCIL

ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD

1 APRIL 2004 TO 31 MARCH 2005

Argyll and Bute Council
Combhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid



Page 44

IaNEs% Il 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
CEIRTRIS] LANGUAGE OPTIONS
COUNCIL

If you would like this document in another language or format, or if you require the services of an interpreter, please contact
us.

Ma tha sibh ag iarraidh an sgriobhainn seo ann an canan no riochd eile,
no ma tha sibh a’ feumachdainn seirbheis eadar, feuch gun leig sibh fios
thugainn.

AXHTLUNBER G —FEXRA » ARERF B wARFE  RFEEEEDN
th By o o S AP A e

& GEdad dfa AUkl fRal I 9OT a7 3= <0 | =Ar1fedA, 9T Ahehr
IMTATE-JAT3N BT JEIIFAT T dT ST AUH HY

A XA LB AFE A 5 — & SURAK, RFEERA — X, whAMEHEE, AFEZEEFRDN
By, EG5ERANKE,

A feg erzeq 307é fan Ig gmr feg #f fan Jg gufew ordter I, 7 7 3978 I8T33 AN B et far
feeaea St B= I, 3T 3IH 7S EHI

_Z e AQL i IR el Sua AT wnknUt BT T s,

Strategic Finance
Argyll and Bute Council
Kilmory

Lochgilphead

Argyll

PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 604220



Page 45

VRV eA% !N 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

= 23010e]  CONTENTS
COUNCIL

FOREWORD BY THE HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT

NOTES TO THE COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT

NON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT

NOTES TO THE NON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

STATEMENT ON THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

10 -16

17

18

19

20

21

21

22

23-31

32

33-34

35-36

37 -38
39

40

4

Page 1



RN AN 20042005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 46

CHIB{0I(S) FOREWORD BY HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

Introduction

This foreword is intended as a comment on Argyll and Bute Council's financial position as presented within the Statement of Accounts for the financial
year 2004/2005.

Accounting Policies

The Statement of Accounting Policies sets out the basis upon which the Financial Statements have been prepared, and explains the accounting
treatment of both general and specific items. The Council continues to adopt the accounting practices recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Local Authorities (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee (LA(S)AAC). The annual accounts for 2004/2005
have been prepared in compliance with the 2004 Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP). The format of the Consolidated Revenue Account
reflects the requirements of the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP).

The Financial Statements

Consolidated Revenue Account

shows the income raised by the Council during the year and how it was spent on services, financing costs and contributions to/from reserves. The
surplus or deficit is carried to the Statement of Total Movement on Reserves. The notes to the Consolidated Revenue Account provide additional
information on some costs and income included within the Consolidated Revenue Account.

Housing Revenue Account

reflects the statutory requirement to separately account for local authority housing provision, as defined in the Housing (Scotland) Act 1987. It shows the
major elements of housing revenue expenditure and capital financing costs, and how these are met by rents, housing support grant and other income.
The surplus or deficit is carried to the Statement of Total Movement on Reserves.

Council Tax Income Account
explains how the council tax income shown for the financial year in the Consolidated Revenue Account is made up.

Non-domestic Rate Income Account
shows the build up of non-domestic rate income, the contribution to or from the national pool and the resulting net income for the financial year to the
Council that is shown in the Consolidated Revenue Account.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

brings together all the assets and liabilities of the Council's General Fund and Loans Fund. It is the statement of the resources of the Council and the
means by which they have been financed. It is also a report on the Council's financial position at one particular point in time, a snapshot of its financial
affairs at the close of the year expressed in accounting terms. The notes to the Balance Sheet give further information on the make up of certain assets
and liabilities.

Statement of Total Movement in Reserves
gives details of the balances on each reserve at the start of the financial year, movements during the financial year by source and the balance at the end
of the financial year as shown in the Balance Sheet.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third parties on both day to day revenue transactions and on capital activities.

Statement of Responsibilities
This statement sets out the main financial responsibilities of the Council and the Head of Strategic Finance.

Statement on the System of Internal Financial Control
This statement sets out the framework within which financial control is managed and reviewed over the main components of the system, including the
Internal Audit arrangements.

Major Changes in Accounting Practice

From 2004/2005 Councils can no longer hold deferred charges as assets on their balance sheet. Where appropriate Councils can capitalise, subject to
certain criteria, intangible assets. This change brings consistency with FRS 10 Accounting for Goodwill and Intangible Assets. During 2004/2005 the
Council charged to revenue all remaining deferred charges. Intangible assets relating to computer software have been capitalised at cost and
depreciated over 5 years.

General Fund

The following table summarises how the surplus for the year has arisen. For the purpose of comparison, the budget for 2004/2005 has been taken as the
original approved budget plus any supplementary estimates agreed by Committee. Adjustments to budget have also been made in respect of additional
revenue support grant and items transferred from revenue to capital.

Page 2



Page 47
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

CEIB{UIS] FOREWORD BY HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

Savings on Budget: £'m
Savings in Loan Charges 1.322
Increased Collections on Local Taxes 2.053
Overall Savings by Departments Against Budget 0.930
Sub-Total 4.305
Use of earmarked funds (0.484)
Budgeted contribution from reserve (0.894)
Surplus for Year Per Accounts 2,927

The General Fund Reserve at 31 March 2004 amounted to £12.193m of which £6.344m was earmarked. This left a “free” balance of £5.849m. The “free”
Reserve now stands at £8.026m, the earmarked Reserve stands at £7.094m and the overall Reserve stands at £15.120m.

£'m
"Free" Reserve at 31 March 2004 5.849
Surplus From Loan Charges, Local Tax Income and Departmental Savings 2177
"Free" Reserve at 31 March 2005 8.026
Funding to be Carried Forward and Earmarked in Reserve (0.484)
Total Reserve Per Accounts 7.542

Significant Trading Organisations

Councils are now required to identify their Significant Trading Organisations. Significant Trading Organisations must achieve a breakeven financial
position over a rolling three year period. This rolling three year period will not commence until 2005/2006 (i.e. the first full three financial years following
31 March 2003). Information on the financial performance of Significant Trading Organisations must be given in the Accounts and this is laid out in note
6 of the Consolidated Revenue Account. During 2004/2005 the Council's Significant Trading Organisations achieved a surplus of £0.032m. The surplus
is part of the General Fund. All the Significant Trading Organisations met their financial objective for 2004/2005.

Housing Revenue Account
The HRA balance stands at £1.015m at 31 March 2005 and is an increase of £0.541m from the 31 March 2004 balance of £0.474m. The main factors
giving rise to the increase in the balance are as follows:

£'m
Contribution to Capital Financing Account (0.274)
(Increase) in Repairs and Maintenance (0.285)
(Increase) in Supervision and Management (0.186)
Reduction in Capital Financing 1.110
Bad Debts Written Off (0.051)
Other Variations in Expenditure 0.007
Decreased / (Increased) Expenditure 0.321
(Reduction) in Rental Income (0.209)
Decrease in Bad Debt Provision 0.017
Other Variations in Income 0.401
Deduct Budgeted Deficit (0.010)
(Decreased) / Increased Income 0.199
Surplus for Year 0.520
Contribution to General Fund -
Interest Earned on Balance 0.021
Increase to HRA Balance 0.541

The saving in capital financing costs arises largely from advancing the amortisation of credit balances of the HRA in the loans fund related to
accumulated capital receipts. This has been actioned in preparation of the proposed transfer of the housing stock. It will create a surplus in the HRA to
meet the proportion of loans early redemption premium estimated at around £1.9m that will be charged to the HRA on the date of transfer of the housing
stock.

Page 3



RN AN 20042005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 48

CHIB{0I(S) FOREWORD BY HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

Capital Expenditure and Borrowing
Local authority capital expenditure and borrowing is now regulated by the Prudential Code, a regime of self regulation. Under the Prudential Code the
Council must ensure that

e  Capital expenditure plans are affordable;

e  Borrowing is sustainable and prudent; and

e  Treasury management reflects good professional practice.

The Council approved a set of prudential indicators for 2004/2005 and managed capital expenditure and borrowing within these approved limits.

Capital expenditure was incurred across a range of services enhancing the value, useful life or working capacity of the Council's assets. This included
investments in schools, offices, other premises and facilities, information technology and roads. The composite programme includes additional consent
in relation to Public Transport Funded projects that the Council secured in competition, securing much needed additional investment in the Council area.
Details of capital expenditure are as follows:

£'m
Gross Capital Expenditure 28.861
Less:
Capital Receipts 5.651
Government Grants and Other Contributions 11.353
Revenue Contributions 0.315
Contribution from Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 0.359
Net Capital Expenditure 11.183

The external borrowing of the Council at 31 March 2005 amounted to £198.288m. The majority of this was financed by the Public Works Loan Board
(£171.560m), with the remainder coming mainly from the money market. During the year the Council completed £3.252m of new external borrowing.
This was used to finance capital expenditure incurred during the year. No debt rescheduling exercises were carried out during 2004/2005.

Property Valuations

In accordance with the 2004 Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) all properties are required to be formally revalued at intervals of not more
than five years. A five year rolling programme of revaluation of all land and buildings, started in 1999/2000, was completed during 2003/2004. This five
year rolling programme has recommenced with 2004/2005 being the new first year.

Pensions Liability

Pension costs have been recognised in accordance with FRS17. As a result of this a liability of £81.535m is recorded in the Council’s balance sheet.
This represents the Council's share of the deficit on Strathclyde Pension Fund. This liability is offset by a Pensions Funds reserve of an equivalent
amount.

Hymans Robertson (Independent Actuaries) were instructed by Glasgow City Council, the administering authority to the Strathclyde Pension Fund, to
undertake calculations in respect of the Local Government Pension Scheme on behalf of Argyll and Bute Council as at 31 March 2005. Their
calculations have been carried out in accordance with Guidance Note 36: Accounting for Retirement Benefits under FRS17 issued by the Institute and
the Faculty of Actuaries.

Local Government legislation provides that local authorities have an obligation to meet the expenditure of the Joint Boards of which they are constituent
members. As a consequence Argyll and Bute Council has additional liabilities arising from the pension deficits of:

= Strathclyde Police Board
= Strathclyde Fire Board
= Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Board

Further information regarding these deficits can be found in the annual report and accounts of the relevant bodies.

Statement on the System of Internal Financial Control
In overall terms the Council has an adequate and effective system of internal financial control. There are however some areas where improvements are
required and these are noted in the Statement on the System of Internal Financial Control.

Other Significant Matters

The Council has secured funding under the new housing partnership programme. This funding has been utilised to carry out an option appraisal and
feasibility study for a large scale voluntary transfer of the housing stock. The Council is now evaluating the business plan of Argyll Community Housing
Association prior to seeking Scottish Executive approval and moving to the consultation and ballot stages later in 2005.

In common with other Councils a significant investment in school buildings is required. The Council has been successful in securing revenue support
towards a Public Private Partnership for school buildings. The Council is developing a Pathfinder Non-Profit Distributing Organisation (NPDO) approach
for the PPP. The Council approved a full business case in May 2005. Financial close will be in 2 stages. Stage 1 covering 9 schools on 4 sites is
imminent and stage 2 covering a further school is expected later in 2005/2006.

Page 4



Page 49
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

CEIB{UIS] FOREWORD BY HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

Conclusion

The Council ends the year with an improved general fund balance. Improvements in council tax collection, savings in loan charges and containment of
expenditure in departments have contributed to this position.

The Council will continue to pursue initiatives to secure additional funding. Budgetary control will continue to have a high profile to ensure effective

financial control within services.

Bruce West
Head of Strategic Finance
21 June 2005

Page 5



Al’gy" 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Page 50

CHIBOI(S) STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: A Statement of
Recommended Practice (the SORP) issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The format of the Consolidated
Revenue Account reflects the requirements of the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP).

1.

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

4.2

ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
Revenue transactions have been recorded on an income and expenditure basis, actual or estimated sums having been included in respect of
known debtors and creditors at the year-end.

Customer and client receipts in the form of sales, fees, charges and rents have been accrued in the period to which they relate.
Employee costs have been charged to the period within which the employees worked.

Interest payable on external borrowing and internal interest have been accrued in the period to which they relate on the basis of the overall
economic effect of the borrowing.

The cost of supplies and services has been accounted for in the period during which they were received or consumed.

All revenue grants are matched with the expenditure to which they relate. Grants made to finance the general activities of a local authority or to
compensate for loss of income are credited to the revenue account of the financial year to which they relate. Specific government grants are
accounted for on an accruals basis when the conditions for receipt have been complied with.

OVERHEADS
The cost of all Central Support Departments is fully allocated over user departments. Allocations have been based on actual or estimated activity
levels, time or floor areas.

PENSIONS

The Council participates in two different pension schemes which meet the needs of employees in particular services. Both schemes provide
members with defined benefits related to pay and service. The schemes are as follows:

Teachers

This is an unfunded scheme administered by the Scottish Executive. The pension cost charged in the accounts is the contribution rate set by the
Scottish Executive on the basis of a notional fund.

Other Employees

Other employees, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Financial Reporting Standard 17 (FRS17) - "Retirement Benefits" was fully implemented in last year and the full impact continues to be
demonstrated within this year’s account.

The employer's contributions to the scheme are assessed every three years by a consulting actuary and are calculated to ensure the actuarial
solvency of the fund. The cost of pensions to the Council is the actual contribution paid in the year as determined by the actuary.

Pension Reserve

A pension reserve has been established in accordance with the full implementation of FRS17. Where the payments made for the year in
accordance with the scheme requirements do not match the change in the authority’s recognised asset or liability for the same period, the
recognised cost of pensions will not match the amount required to be raised in taxation. This is represented by an appropriation to or from the
pensions reserve, which equals the net change in the pensions liability recognised in the Consolidated Revenue Account.

Disclosure of Effect of Change in Discount Rate for Liabilities

In assessing liabilities for retirement benefits at 31 March 2004 for the 2003/2004 Statement of Accounts, the actuary was required by the SORP to
use a discount rate of 3.5% real (6.1% actual). For the 2004/2005 Statement of Accounts, a rate based on the current rate of return on a high-
quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to scheme liabilities is to be used. The actuary has advised that a rate of 3.2% real (5.9%
actual) is appropriate. Application of this rate has resulted in an increase in liabilities measured at today’s prices of £4.6m, adjusted for by an
increase in actuarial losses recognised for the year in the Statement of Total Movements on Reserves.

CAPITAL ACCOUNTING

Accounting Policy Statement

The accounts have been drawn up in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain, which is recognised as
representing proper accounting practices. Services have been charged for the assets based on their value rather than on the financing costs of
debt outstanding on the asset.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are capitalised at cost. Revaluations are not carried out on intangible assets. Intangible assets are depreciated to the revenue
account over their estimated economic life. Currently intangible assets comprise computer software which is depreciated over a period of 5 years.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis.

Page 6



4.3

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

Al’gy" 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

CHIBOI(S) STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

Page 51

Tangible Fixed Assets

Infrastructure and community assets are included in the balance sheet at historical cost, net of depreciation where appropriate. Operational and
non-operational assets are included at the lower of net current replacement cost or net realisable value.

All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets has been capitalised on an accruals basis.

The receipts arising from the disposal of fixed assets have been dealt with on an accruals basis, and the Net Book Value of the asset disposed of,
written off against the Fixed Asset Restatement Account.

Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets

All assets, other than Land, Non-operational Buildings and Community Assets, are being depreciated over their useful economic lives. This policy
complies with the requirements of Financial Reporting Standard 15 (FRS15) - "Tangible Fixed Assets".

The Council depreciates its fixed assets on a straight line basis (with the exception of certain IT equipment, which is based on a reducing balance)
over the expected life of the asset, after allowing for the residual value of an asset as follows:

Operational Buildings — Other - 20 - 50 years
Operational Buildings — Dwellings - 30 years
Infrastructure - 40 years
Vehicles - 4 - 20 years
Plant and Equipment - 3-10years
Vessels - 25 years

Charges for the use of Tangible and Intangible Fixed Asses

General fund service revenue accounts, central support services and trading services are charged with a capital charge for all fixed assets used in
the provision of the service. Such charges cover the annual provision for depreciation, where appropriate, plus a capital financing charge
determined by applying a specified notional rate of interest to the net amount at which the asset is included in the balance sheet. Capital charges
in the HRA cover the statutory capital financing charges. The notional interest rate is 3.5% for assets other than infrastructure and community
assets, where it is 4.8%. Interest payable, including interest payable under finance leases, and provision for depreciation are charged to an Asset
Management Revenue Account.

However, in order to disclose the authority’s corporate net operating expenditure, capital charges to services need to be reversed out and replaced
by depreciation and external interest payable for financing. This reconciliation is performed in the Asset Management Revenue Account.

Net operating expenditure contains accounting entries that should not have an impact on Council Tax. Consequently, after the disclosure of net
operating expenditure, a second reconciliation is needed to reverse out charges in respect of depreciation and amortised government grants
deferred and to replace them with Minimum Revenue Provision as represented by the cost of financing borrowing. This is accomplished in the line
“Contributions to Capital Financing Account” in the Consolidated Revenue Account.

Deferred Charges
Deferred charges represent capitalised expenditure that does not result in, or remain matched with, tangible fixed assets.

Expenditure is written off to the service revenue account in the year in which that expenditure is incurred on the basis that no long-term benefit
accrues directly to the authority from the expenditure.

Net operating expenditure contains accounting entries that are not revenue based and should not have an impact on Council Tax. Consequently,
after the disclosure of net operating expenditure, a reconciliation is needed to reverse out capital financed deferred charges. This is done by an
adjustment in the Capital Financing Account.

One exception to this is where expenditure is incurred in the provision of wheeled bins in write off to service revenue account over a ten year
period, on the basis that the bins will have a useful life of ten years and will provide benefit to the Council in the operation of refuse collection
services for that period. This has been reviewed within 2004/05 and the balance written off fully to the revenue account in order to comply with the
SORP.

Government Grants

Grants and other contributions relating to fixed assets are credited to a government grants deferred account and released to the asset
management revenue account in line with depreciation.

Page 7



4.8

8.2

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

VA% 20042005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

CHIBOI(S) STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

Page 52

Finance Leases

Rental payments under finance leases are apportioned between the finance (interest) charge and the reduction of the outstanding obligation. The
former is charged to the Asset Management Account, the latter to the Capital Financing Account.

STOCK & WORK IN PROGRESS
Stock has been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Work in progress is reflected in the Revenue Accounts and Balance Sheets of the appropriate trading activities at cost plus and, where appropriate,
a proportion of overheads are charged together with attributable profits and allowances for future losses.

RESERVE FUNDS
Repairs and Renewals Funds have been established in accordance with the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975. The Council has Repairs and
Renewals Funds in relation to Vehicles and Plant, Education and Historic Land Contamination in respect of the Council Waste PPP.

OPERATING LEASES
Where a lease is classified as an "operating lease" as defined by Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 21 (SSAP 21) - "Accounting for
Leases and Hire Purchase Contracts", the annual rentals are charged to the appropriate Revenue Account.

LOANS FUND

Loans Fund Operation

In accordance with the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975 Schedule 3 (12), the Council administers a Loans Fund. All loans raised by the
Council are paid into the fund and are pooled. Interest and expenses of the Loans Fund have been calculated and allocated to the revenue
account on the basis of debt outstanding on each account at the start of the financial year with a pro-rata adjustment in respect of new advances.

Redemption of debt has been calculated and provided for in the Revenue Account on an annuity basis. Interest on revenue balances is allocated
on the basis of monthly balances held on the respective accounts.

Repurchase of Borrowing

Gains or losses on restructured debt are recognised over the life of the replacement borrowing. Where debt is redeemed early and not replaced
the gain or loss is recognised in that year.

PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
The accounting treatment of the waste management Public Private Partnership is in accordance with FRSS5 - "Reporting the Substance of
Transactions" and Treasury guidance.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Where a material post balance sheet event occurs which:

¢ Provides additional evidence relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date; or
+ Indicates that application of the going concern concept to a material part of the authority is not appropriate,

changes will be made to the amounts included within the Statement of Accounts as well as details of the nature of the post balance sheet event.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised in the Statement of Accounts where they meet the following criteria:
¢ There is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
¢ ltis probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; and
¢ Areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

PROVISIONS FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Due account has been taken of the likelihood of the collection of outstanding debt, including local tax collection, and, where appropriate, debtor
balances have been reduced to reflect this.

VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT)
VAT is included in income and expenditure accounts only where it is irrecoverable.

GROUP ACCOUNTS

From 2005/2006 councils will be required to prepare group accounts. Transitional arrangements are in place for 2004/2005 that do not require
disclosures in the 2004/2005 financial statements. The Council has exercised its right to use the transitional arrangements for group accounts in
2004/2005. Accordingly group accounts are not included in the financial statements, however full compliance with the requirements for group
accounts will be in place for 2005/2006.

Page 8



Argyll

SBute

COUNCIL

2003/04

Actual

Net
Expenditure
£'000

74,190
11,347
7,350
3,139
30,444
1,937
(515)

19,873
948

2,798
3,460
5,108

636
8,207
4,580

173,502

3,496
(639)

1,266

177,625
(248)

45
(210)
343
(4,942)
172,613

109,147

37,419
32,533
6,486
5,707
12,193

2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Page 53

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005

Council Services

Education Services

Environmental Services

Cultural and Related Services
Planning and Development Services
Social Work Services

Housing Services (Non-HRA)
Housing Services (HRA)

Roads and Transport Services
Trading Services

Central Services

- Central Services to the Public

- Corporate and Democratic Core

- Non-distributed Costs

- Other Operating Income and Expenditure
Strathclyde Police Joint Board
Strathclyde Fire Joint Board

Net Cost of Services

Asset Management Revenue Account

Interest and Investment Income

Pensions interest costs and expected return on
pension assets

Net Operating Expenditure

Contribution to/(from) Other Funds
Contribution to/(from) HRA Balance
Reconciling amount for loans fund repayment
Capital Financed from Current Revenue

Contribution to/(from) the pensions reserve

Amount to be met from Government Grants and Local Taxation

General Government Grants

Income from Council Tax

Non-domestic Rates Redistribution

Net General Fund Surplus / (Deficit)
Balance on General Fund Brought Forward

Balance on General Fund Carried Forward

Note

2004/05
Actual Actual Actual
Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000
99,964 19,362 80,602
23,273 9,729 13,544
11,769 3,508 8,261
5,183 2,220 2,963
77477 41,535 35,942
26,241 24,075 2,166
13,782 14,470 (688)
32,911 11,686 21,225
2,834 1,703 1,131
3,857 1,130 2,727
3,487 77 3,410
2,368 4 2,364
581 178 403
8,467 - 8,467
5,010 - 5,010
317,204 129,677 187,527
3,792
(735)
(1,861)
188,723
153
520
(334)
315
(1,088)
188,289
116,677
40,394
34,145
2,927
12,193
15,120

Page 9



Argyll

COUNCIL

Page 54

2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005

1. Joint Boards

Payments are made to Police, Fire, Passenger Transport and Valuation Joint Boards and to the Authorities Buying Consortium. Details of all amounts
paid to Joint Boards and where these amounts appear within the Consolidated Revenue Account are shown below:

2003/04
£'000
398
8,207
4,580
1,132
27

14,344

2004/05
Joint Board £'000
Strathclyde Passenger Transport (within Roads and Transport Services total) 407
Strathclyde Police Joint Board 8,467
Strathclyde Fire Joint Board 5,010
Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Joint Board (within Central Services to the Public total) 1,190
Authorities Buying Consortium (within Other Operating Income and Expenditure total) 26
Total Joint Boards 15,100

2. Asset Management Revenue Account
This account shows the (deficit)/surplus arising from the capital charges made to the service accounts for the use of assets and the cost to the Council of

financing these assets.

2003/04
£'000
13,697
619
14,819
(25,018)
(621)
3,496

2004/05

£'000

Charge for Depreciation/Impairment 14,367
Gain on Early Settlement of Borrowing -
External Interest Payable 14,870
Capital Charges (24,602)
Capital Element of Finance Lease Payments (133)
Release of Government Grant (710)
Net Expenditure / ( Income) 3,792

3. Contributions to Capital Financing Account
This shows the amount of revenue resources used to finance capital expenditure during the year and the repayment of the principal instalment from the
Loans Fund, offset by depreciation/impairment charges (net of Government Grants credit) and the amount of deferred charges written off to revenue.

2003/04
£'000
16

327

343

13,498
125
(13,697)
(757)
621
(210)

133

2004/05

£'000

Capital Financed from Current Revenue - General Fund 41
Capital Financed from Current Revenue - HRA 274
Capital Expenditure Financed from Current Revenue 315
Principal Loans Fund Instalment 13,749
Capital Element of Finance Lease Payments 133
Depreciation/Impairment (14,367)
Deferred Charges Written off to Revenue (559)
Release of Government Grant 710
Reconciling amount for loans fund repayment (334)
Total Contribution to Capital Financing Account (19)

Page 10



JRNEAIN 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 55

CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

4. General Fund Balance Carried Forward
The following committed sums are included within the General Fund balance carried forward of £15.120m:-

Waste Management PPP

Corporate Property Strategy

Modernising Government Fund

Digital Communities

Area Budgets

Governance and Risk Unit

E-Procurement Project

Three Islands Partnership

Community Safety Partnership

Local Action Fund

Social Work Funding

School budgets carried forward as per revised Devolved Management of Schools, Scheme of Delegation
IT Top Slice

Change Management

Sums Committed to Meet the Cost of Teachers Early Retirement
Reserve Committed for 2005/2006 budget

Provision for capital financed from current revenue still to be utilised
MGF2 - Young Scot Project

Total Committed Funds

5. Finance and Operating Leases
5.1 Finance Leases
The authority holds various vehicles under finance leases. The finance lease payment for the year amounted to £146,702.

2003/04
£'000
147 Vehicles
147 Total

5.2 Operating Leases

£'000
1,640
30
9%
217
14
34
50
44
151
61
1,603
410
210
77
164
1,975
190
68
7,094

2004/05
£000
147

147

The Council uses land, buildings, vehicles, plant and equipment financed under the terms of an operating lease. The amounts paid under these

arrangements in 2004/05 were as follows:

2003/04
£'000
95 Land and Buildings
892 Vehicles
313 Plant and Equipment
1,300 Total

6. Significant Trading Organisations

2004/05
£000
129

883

250
1,262

Details of trading units where the service manager is required to operate in a commercial environment and balance their budget by generating income

from other parts of the authority or other organisations are as follows:

6.1 Roads and Lighting Trading Account

The Council runs it's Roads and Lighting Service on the basis of agreements concluded between the Service Managers, the relevant Council
Departments and external organisations. The Service maintains the road network throughout Argyll & Bute excluding Trunk Roads (which are the

responsibility of the Scottish Executive). The Trading objective is to breakeven over a three year period.

2004/05 2004/05 3 Year 3 YearActual

Actual Target Target Performance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Turnover 11,241 9,925 33,980
Expenditure 11,224 9,888 33,865
Surplus/(Deficit) 17 37 115

Page 11



AN 20042005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 56

CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

6.2 Waste Management Trading Account

The Council runs it's Waste Management Service on the basis of agreements concluded between the Service Managers, the relevant Council
Departments and external organisations. The Service includes Waste Collection, Street Sweeping and Skip Services. The Trading objective is to
breakeven over a three year period.

2004/05 2004/05 3 Year 3 YearActual

Actual Target Target Performance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Turnover 5,266 5,037 14,850
Expenditure 5,255 5,029 14,837
Surplus/(Deficit) 1 8 13

6.3 Leisure Trading Account
The Council runs its Leisure Trading Service on the basis of an agreement concluded between the Service Managers and the Community Services
Department. The Service is responsible for the running of all Council owned Swimming Pools, Halls and Sport Centres. The Trading objective is to
breakeven over a three year period.

2004/05 2004/05 3 Year 3 YearActual

Actual Target Target Performance

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Turnover 2,742 2,692 7,987
Expenditure 2,742 2,692 7,977
Surplus/(Deficit) - 10

6.4 Catering and Cleaning Trading Account

The Council runs its Catering and Cleaning Service on the basis of agreements concluded between the Service Managers, the relevant Council
Departments and external organisations. The Service provides Catering and Cleaning to all Schools, Council Offices as well as providing a Cleaning
service to external clients such as Police Stations and Outdoor Centres. The Trading objective is to breakeven over a three year period.

2004/05 2004/05 3 Year 3 YearActual

Actual Target Target Performance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Turnover 7,479 6,637 20,365
Expenditure 7,478 6,620 20,345
Surplus/(Deficit) 1 17 20

6.5 Building Maintenance Trading Account

The Council runs it's Building Maintenance Service on the basis of agreements concluded between the Service Managers, the relevant Council
Departments and external organisations. The Service provides Building Maintenance to all Council owned buildings as well as providing a service to
external clients such as the Fire Brigade. The Trading objective is to breakeven over a three year period.

2004/05 2004/05 3 Year 3 YearActual

Actual Target Target Performance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Turnover 2,695 2,097 6,013
Expenditure 2,692 2,095 6,000
Surplus/(Deficit) 3 2 13

Page 12



Argyll

COUNCIL

2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005

Page 57

7. Local Government Act 1986 - Separate Publicity Account
The Council is required under Section 5 of the Act to maintain a separate account for publicity. Expenditure of £0.630m was incurred during 2004/05
and is included within service expenditure as follows:

2003/04 2004/05
£'000 £'000
333 Staff advertising 363

42 Leaflets and publications 35

69 Statutory notices 99

134 Other 133

578 Total 630

8. Agency Income

The Council received £0.026m from the Authorities Buying Consortium as part of a general return of reserves to member Councils to assist in funding
participation in the West of Scotland collaborative buying initiative. There is also an ongoing agency agreement with Scottish Water to collect domestic
water and sewerage charges. During 2004/05 income from these agreements amounted to £0.281m.

2003/04 2004/05
£'000 £'000

1 Scottish Veteran Garden City Association and Margaret Blackwood Housing Association -

180 Scottish Water 255
Authorities Buying Consortium 26

181 Agency Income 281

9. Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970
The Council is empowered by this Act to provide goods and services to other public bodies. Income from these services amounted to £1.281m. The
goods and services provided during the year were as follows:

Income Expenditure
Name of Body Purpose of work £'000 £'000
North Lanarkshire Council Cleaning and Catering - Kilbowie OC 145 130
Strathclyde Police Cleaning of Police Stations 101 90
Strathclyde Fire Maintenance of Fire Stations 569 481
Various Public Bodies Grounds Maintenance 66 59
Various Councils Provision Of Science Packs And Health Packs 8 15
Various Councils Provision of Auxiliary Support 16 16
Lomond & Argyll Primary NHS  Provision of Care for the Elderly 116 116
Trust
West Dunbartonshire Council ~ Provision Of Special Education Needs 260 248
T 1281 T 115

10. Health Act 1999 Pooled Funds and Similar Arrangements

The Council has a joint working arrangement with NHS Argyll and Clyde whereby it provides certain types of care of the elderly and services for those
with learning disabilities or mental health problems. During 2004/05 income from this source amounted to £3.623m and the related expenditure was
£4.700m. These sums can be analysed as follows:

Income Expenditure

Purpose of Service £'000 £'000
Care of the elderly 1,501 2,091
Provision of services for people with learning disabilities 1,580 2,028
Provision of services for people with mental health needs 542 581
3,623 4,700

Page 13



VAN 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 58

CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

11. Teachers Pensions - Administered by Scottish Public Pensions Agency
This is an unfunded scheme administered by the Scottish Executive. The pension cost charged in the accounts is the contribution rate set by the
Scottish Executive on the basis of a notional fund.

2003/04 2004/05

2,989 Amount paid over (£'000) 3,927
Rate of contribution (%) :

7.40% 1 April - 30 September 12.50%

12.50% 1 October to 31 March 12.50%

445 Amount of added years awarded by the Council (£'000) 1,013

Discretionary payments made by the council (£'000)

From 1 April 1999 the Council became responsible for the “Strain on the Fund” costs resulting from early retirals, and during 2004/05 these amounted to
£452,750.

12. Members' Allowances
The total amount of members' allowances paid by the Council during the year was:

2003/04 2004/05
£'000 £'000
210 Basic Allowance 219
215 Special Responsibility Allowance 234
425 Total Allowances 453
13. Officers' Emoluments
The number of employees whose remuneration, excluding pension contributions was £40,000 or more in bands of £10,000 were:
2003/04 2004/05
No Remuneration Band No
32 £40,000 - £49,999 64
18 £50,000 - £59,999 24
3 £60,000 - £69,999 3
4 £70,000 - £79,999 4
£80,000 - £89,999 -
1 £90,000 - £99,999 1
£100,000 - £109,999
1 £110,000 - £119,999 *

* This comprises salary and redundancy payments for an employee who left the Council’s service during 2003/04.

14. Waste Management Public Private Partnership

The Council has entered into a Public Private Partnership for the provision of its waste disposal service. This agreement requires the provider to
upgrade or replace three waste disposal sites, two transfer stations and five civic amenity sites. In addition, the provider will also provide composting
facilities to meet waste diversion targets. When the agreement ends in September 2026 the provider will hand back to the Council the waste disposal
facilities with a life of 5 years.

The Council has paid a service charge of £4.170m which represents the value of the service provided from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005. Under the
agreement the Council is committed to paying the following sums:

Period £000
2005/07 9,935
2007112 25,497
2012117 28,265
2017122 31,396
2022127 29,980
Total 125,073

This equates to £5.685m per annum over the life of the contract.

Page 14



RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

COUNCIL

Page 59
HIRIBI(S] NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005

15. Fees Payable to Audit Scotland

In 2004/05 the following fees relating to external audit and inspection were incurred:

2003/04 2004/05
£'000 £'000
235 Fee§ payable to Audit Scotland with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed 279
auditor
235 272
16. Related Party Transactions
During the year transactions with related parties arose as follows:
Income Expenditure
£'000 £'000
Central Government and Agencies:
Revenue Grants: Revenue Support Grant 116,677
Non-domestic Rates 34,145
Housing Benefits / Support Grant 14,984
Council Tax Benefit Subsidy 10,467
Other Government Grants 28,720
T 204993
Capital Grants: European Grants 1,929
Sportscotland 862
AIE - Campbeltown Community Project 429
School Buildings Improvements Fund 1,541
Other Government Capital Grants 6,884
11,645

Related Bodies:
Transactions with related bodies during the year totalled

Of these, transactions with the following exceeded £10,000:
Joint Boards (see note 1 for further details)

Strathclyde Passenger Transport - Concessionary Fares
Argyll, the Islands, Loch Lomond, Stirling and the Trossachs Tourist Board
Bute Council on Alcohol

COSLA

Dunoon and Cowal Youth Project

Islay and Jura Community Enterprise

Mid Argyll Community Enterprises

NHS Argyll and Clyde

Oban and Lorn Enterprises - Atlantis Leisure

Oban Youth and Community Association

Other Related Party Transactions:

Transactions in which members have a significant interest

Expenditure
£'000

17,885

15,100
1,964
177
44
78

16
75

21
54
308
17

85

Page 15



Argyll

COUNCIL

Page 60

2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005

17. Pension - Local Government Superannuation (Scotland) Scheme
As stated in note 3 of the Statement of Accounting Policies, the Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by the City
of Glasgow Council's Strathclyde Pension Fund. This Fund provides members with defined benefits relating to pay and service. The contributions are
based on rates determined by the Fund’s professionally qualified actuary and based on triennial valuations of the Fund. The following transactions have
been made during the year in relation to the Local Government Pension Scheme :

2003/04
£'000

6,054
23

773
3,783

9,014
(7,748)

(4,942)

6,957

Net Cost of Services:

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Settlements and Curtailments

Provision for Teachers Premature Retirement Scheme

Net Operating Expenditure:
Interest Cost
Expected Return on Employer Assets

Amounts to be met from Government Grants and Local Taxation:
Movement on Pension Reserve

Actual amount charged against Council Tax for pensions in the year:

Employers Contributions Payable to the Scheme

2004/05
£'000

9,165
45

616
1,111

13,546
(15,407)

(1,088)

7,988

Further details on pension assets and liabilities are provided in Note 16 to the Balance Sheet and Note 7 to the Statement of Total Movement on

Reserves.

Page 16



Page 61
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

EIR{01SY| HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

2003/04 2004/05 2004/05
Actual Actual Budget
£'000 £'000 £'000
Expenditure
4,549 Repairs and Maintenance 4,755 4470
4,230 Supervision and Management 4,814 4,628
4,382 Capital Financing Costs 3,193 4,303
684 Void House Rents 579 563
115 Bad Debt Write Off 51
501 Other expenditure 390 307
327 Contribution to Capital Financing Account 274 -
56 Pensions Interest Cost and Expected Return on Pensions Assets (76)
(60) Transfers to / (from) the Pension Reserve (30) -
14,784 Total Expenditure 13,950 14,271
Income
13,714 Rent of houses (gross) 13,435 13,625
88 Non-dwelling Rents 83 102
149 Housing Support Grant 111 103
78 Decrease in Provision for Bad or Doubtful Debts 17 -
939 Other Income 824 431
14,968 Total Income 14,470 14,261
184 (Deficit) / Surplus for Year Prior to CFCR 520 (10)
327 Contribution to Capital Financing Account 274
511 (Deficit) / Surplus for Year after CFCR 794 (10)
423 Balance on Housing Revenue Account Brought Forward 474 474
10 Interest Earned on Balance 21
184 (Deficit) / Surplus for Year 520 (10)
(143) Contribution to General Fund
474 Balance on Housing Revenue Account Carried Forward 1,015 464

Page 17



Page 62
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

1. Gross Rent Income
This is the total rent income for the year. Average annual rent charges were £44.27 per week in 2004/05 (2003/04 £42.65)

2. Housing Stock

2003/04 2004/05
No No

198 Sheltered Housing 198
3,001 Other Houses 2,897
1,556 Tenement Flats 1,512
1,277 Other Flats 1,099
6,032 Total Housing Stock 5,706

3. Rent Arrears and Bad Debts
Rent arrears at 31/3/2005 were £0.275m (31/3/2004 - £0.324m) and this equated to an average rent arrears per house of £46 (2003/04 - £54).

In accordance with the latest assessment of potential recovery and in order to reflect due prudence, the provision for bad debts, in respect of rent
arrears, has been adjusted to £0.173m (2003/04 - £0.189m); this represents a decrease of £0.016m. The share of the sundry debtor account provision
for bad debts has decreased by £0.001m.

Page 18



Argyll

Page 63

2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

EIB{UIS]  COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

Shows the net income raised from council taxes levied under the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

2003/04
Actual
£'000

46,151

(253)
(7,530)

(1,786)

36,582

837

37,419

Gross Council Tax Levied and Contributions in Lieu

Less:

Council Tax Benefits (Net of Government Grant)
Other Discounts and Reductions

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

Total for 2004/05

Adjustment to Previous Years' Community Charge and Council Tax

Transfers to General Fund

2004/05
Actual
£'000

48,163

(8,046)

(1,201)

38,916

1,478

40,394

Page 19



Page 64
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

CEIBIUIS]  NOTES TO THE COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

1. Calculation of the Council Tax

Dwellings are valued by the Assessor and placed within a valuation band ranging from the lowest "A" to the highest "H". The Council Tax charge is
calculated using the Council Tax Base, Band D equivalent as below. This value is then decreased or increased dependent upon the band of the
dwelling. The charge for each band for 2004/05 was as follows:

Band Valuation Band % Band D £ per year
A Under £27,000 67% "7
B £27,000 - £35,000 78% 836
C £35,000 - £45,000 89% 956
D £45,000 - £58,000 100% 1,075
E £58,000 - £80,000 122% 1,314
F £80,000 - £106,000 144% 1,553
G £106,000 - £212,000 167% 1,792
H Over £212,000 200% 2,150

2. Calculation of the Council Tax Base 2004/05

Council Tax Base A B (o D E F G H Total
Total Number of Properties 8127 9511 9361 5508 6,660 3444 2296 216 45123
Less Exemptions / 1019 690 1125 411 524 173 121 31 4,094
Deductions
Adjustment for Single 904 964 T34 404 348 147 82 5 3,588
Chargepayers
Effective Number of Properties 6,204 70857 7502 4,693 5788 3124 2003 180 37441
Band D Equivalent Factor (ratio) 69 79 89 99 119 139 159 1809
Band D Equivalent Number of Properties 4136 6,111 6,668 4,693 7,074 4,512 3,488 360 37,042

Add Contribution in lieu in respect of Class 18 dwellings (Band D Equivalent)

Nominal Tax Yield 37,042
Less Provision for Non-Collection - 4.94% 1,853
Council Tax Base 2004/05 - Number of Band D equivalents 35,189

Page 20



Page 65
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

CEIBJUIS] NON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

Shows the income from the rate levied under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975 as amended by the Local Government Finance Act 1992 on
non-domestic property.

2003/04 2004/05

Actual Actual

£'000 £'000

27,691 Gross rates levied 34,106
Less:

(2,182) Reliefs and other deductions (4,494)
(300) Payment of interest (5)
(389) Provision for bad and doubtful debts 190

24,820 Net Non-domestic Rate Income 29,797

2 Adjustments for years prior to introduction of national non-domestic rate pool 2
7,71 Contribution from / (to) national non-domestic rate pool 4,346
32,533 Guaranteed Rate Income 34,145

NOTES TO THE NON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT

1. Analysis of Rateable Values

2003/04 2004/05
£ £
3,392,020 Industrial and freight transport subjects 3,383,850
36,355,931 Miscellaneous including Telecomms, Rail, Gas and Electricity Companies 33,247,591
Commercial subjects:
9,519,550 Shops 9,579,410
4,517,005 Offices 4,703,535
6,596,840 Hotels, Boarding Houses etc. 6,399,955
5,462,395 Others 5,586,700
7,951,411 Formula valued subjects 7,705,885
73,795,152 Total Rateable Value 70,606,926

2. Non-Domestic Rate Charge

2003/04 2004/05
Pence Pence
47.8p Rate Per Pound 48.8p
0.6 Supplementary Rate Per Pound for Properties over £25,000 0.3

3. Calculation of Rate Charge for Each Property
The rates charge for each subject is determined by the rateable value placed upon it by the Assessor multiplied by the Rate per £ announced each year
by the Government.

Page 21



Argyll

Page 66

2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

EIBJUIS] CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2005

COUNCIL

2003/04 2004/05
£'000 Note £'000
Fixed Assets
22 Intangible Fixed Assets 1 28
Tangible Fixed Assets
Operational Assets 21
64,724 - Council Dwellings 68,370
162,223 - Other Land and Buildings 177,024
4,862 - Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 5,956
63,163 - Infrastructure Assets 75,771
329 - Community Assets 1,690
Non-operational Assets 2.2
212 - Vehicles, Plant and Equipment Under Construction 327
9,800 - Infrastructure Under Construction 9,244
3,014 - Buildings Under Construction 5,391
13,487 - Non-operational Land and Buildings 14,035
321,836 Total Fixed Assets 357,836
559 Deferred Charges 6 -
1,464 Long Term Debtors 7 1,419
323,859 Total Long Term Assets 359,255
Current Assets
652 Stock and Work in Progress 678
11,270 Debtors 8 18,055
- Investments -
850 Cash and Bank 13,128 31,861
336,631 Total Assets 391,116
Current Liabilities
(3,702) Short Term Borrowing 9.2 (4,517)
(34,347)  Creditors (44,433)
(3,670) Bank Overdraft (3,850) (52,800)
294,912 Total Assets less Current Liabilities 338,316
(192,574) Long Term Borrowing 9.2 (193,771)
(700) Deferred Liability - Finance Leases (567)
(424) Provisions 10 (388)
(26,794) Liability Related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 16.1 (81,535) (276,261)
74,420 Total Assets less Liabilities 62,055
Financed by:
83,220 Fixed Asset Restatement Account 104,772
296 Capital Financing Account 6,168
359 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 467
13,238 Deferred Government Grants and Contributions 23,881
(10,203) Deferred (Premiums) / Discounts (9,653)
(26,794) Pensions Reserve (81,535)
12,193 General Fund Balance 15,120
474 Housing Revenue Account Balance 1,015
1,637 Repairs and Renewals Funds 1,820
74,420 Total Net Worth 62,055
3* Bruce West

Head of Strategic Finance
21 June 2005

Page 22



RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

COUNCIL

Page 67
HIRIBI(S] NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET for the year ended 31 March 2005

1. Movement in Intangible Assets

Purchased Software

Licences
£'000
Original cost at 31/03/04 22
Other -
Net Book Value at 31/03/04 22
Movement in 2004/05
Expenditure in Year 10
Disposals -
Depreciation 4)
Net Book Value at 31/03/05 28
21 Movement in Operational Fixed Assets
Other Vehicles
Council Land & Plant & Infrastructure =~ Community Total Total
Dwellings Buildings  Equipment Assets Assets 2004/05 2003/04
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Certified Valuation at 31/03/04 64,724 182,407
Accumulated Depreciation (20,184)
Accumulated Impairment
Net Book Value at 31/03/04 64,724 162,223 4,862 63,163 329 295,301 295,310
Movement in 2004/05
Expenditure in Year 3,401 3,800 2,695 1,586 335 11,817 10,287
Assets Acquired Under Finance Leases - 801
Disposals (2,617) (90) (2,707) (3,445)
Revaluations 5,020 17,747 992 23,759 5,152
gs;zs;go/ié sfz;” Non 777 14,193 34 15,004 916
Depreciation (2,158) (7,523) (1,511) (3,171) (14,363) (13,697)
Net Book Value at 31/03/05 68,370 177,024 5,956 75,771 1,690 328,811 295,324

The opening balance for Vehicles Plant and Equipment has been reduced by £0.022m to reflect the value of intangible fixed assets now shown

separately on the face of the balance sheet.

2.2 Movement in Non-Operational Fixed Assets

Vehicles
Plant & Non
Equipment Infrastructure Buildings  Operational
Under Under Under Land & Total Total
Construction Construction Construction Buildings 2004/05 2003/04
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Certified Valuation at 31/03/04
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment -
Net Book Value at 31/03/04 212 9,800 3,014 13,487 26,513 17,694
Movement in 2004/05
Expenditure in Year 115 13,637 3,253 28 17,033 9,580
Disposals (90) (90) (660)
Revaluations 545 545 816
Transfers (to) / from Operational Assets (14,193) (876) 65 (15,004) (916)
Depreciation - -
Net Book Value at 31/03/05 327 9,244 5,391 14,035 28,997 26,514

Page 23



AN 20042005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 68

CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

2.3 Valuation of Operational Fixed Assets
Council dwellings were revalued at 31 March 2005 by the District Valuer for Scotland South West, W.R Duthie, F.R.I.C.S., on the basis of Existing Use

Value for Social Housing as defined in Practice Statement 4.1 of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual, the
definition of which is as follows:

"Existing Use Value for Social Housing is defined as an opinion of the best price at which the sale of an interest in property would have been completed
unconditionally for cash consideration on the date of the valuation.”

During the current year, revaluations on operational land and buildings were carried out by Hugh Blake, M.R.I.C.S., Estates Manager for Argyll and Bute
Council, in accordance with the Council's rolling programme of revaluations. The basis of valuation is set out in the Statement of Accounting policies.

The following statement shows the progress of the Council's rolling programme for the revaluation of operational fixed assets:

Other Vehicles

Council Land & Plant & Infrastructure = Community Total

Dwellings Buildings Equipment Assets Assets 2004/05

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Valued at historical cost 5,956 75,771 1,690 83,417
Valued at current value in:

2004/2005 68,370 97,785 166,155

2003/2004 16,395 16,395

2002/2003 29,377 29,377

2001/2002 50 50

2000/2001 32,112 32,112

1999/2000 1,247 1,247

Valuations inherited at 01/04/96 58 58

Total 68,370 177,024 5,956 75,771 1,690 328,811

2.4 Valuation of Non-Operational Fixed Assets

During the current year, revaluations on non-operational land and buildings were carried out by Hugh Blake, M.R.I.C.S., Estates Manager for Argyll and
Bute Council, in accordance with the Council's rolling programme of revaluations. The basis of valuation is set out in the Statement of Accounting
policies.

The following statement shows the progress of the Council's rolling programme for the revaluation of non-operational fixed assets.

Non

Vehicles Plant & Infrastructure Buildings  Operational
Equipment Under Under Under Land & Total
Construction Construction Construction Buildings 2004/05
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Valued at historical cost 327 9,244 5,391 14,962

Valued at current value in:

2004/2005 721 721
2003/2004 3,135 3,135
2002/2003 3,118 3,118
2001/2002 5,175 5175
2000/2001 1,096 1,096
1999/2000 778 778
Valuations inherited at 01/04/96 12 12
Total 327 9,244 5,391 14,035 28,997

Page 24



COUNCIL

Argyll 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
EIR{01(sY| NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET for the year ended 31 March 2005

Page 69

2.5 Fixed Assets Information on Assets Held at 31/03/05

2004/05 2004/05
OPERATIONAL BUILDINGS No. OPERATIONAL EQUIPMENT No.
Administrative Buildings 52 Vehicles and Heavy Plant 311
Depots 34
Social Work Homes for the Elderly 7 INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS
Social Work Children's Homes 5 Highways (miles) 1,406
Hostels 6 Bridges 954
Primary Schools 78 Car Parks 138
Secondary Schools 10 Vessels 5
Special Schools 3
Nursery Schools 3 COMMUNITY ASSETS
Halls 8 Parks/Play Areas 60
Sports Centres 1 Civic Regalia (Provosts' Chains) 4
Swimming Pools 4 Civic Regalia (Bailies' Chains) 1
Museums and Libraries 10 Cemeteries 125
Community Centres 8 War Memorials 54
Crematoria 1 Works of Art 299
Public Conveniences 7
Travelling Persons Sites 3 COUNCIL DWELLINGS 5,706
Airports 1
The above is a selection from the asset register of the main asset categories.
3. Summary of Capital Expenditure and Financing
31 March 31 March
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
Opening Capital Financing Requirement 226,322 227,091
Capital Investment
Operational Assets - Expenditure 11,848 10,287
Operational Assets - Finance Leases - 801
Non-Operational Assets 17,003 9,580
Deferred Charges - 898
Intangible Assets 10
Total Capital Investment 28,861 21,566
Sources of Finance:
Capital Receipts (5,651) (5,499)
Government Grants (11,353) (2,108)
Capital Financed from Current Revenue (315) (343)
Repayment of External Loans (13,749) (13,595)
Capital Element of Finance Lease Payments (133) (125)
Capital Receipts from Useable Capital Receipts Reserve (359) (400)
Other (5) (265)
Total Funding (31,565) (22,335)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 223,618 226,322

Page 25



Page 70
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

4. Assets Held Under Finance Leases
The following values of assets are held under finance leases by the authority, accounted for as part of Tangible Fixed Assets:

Vehicles, Plant and

Equipment

£'000

Value at 1 April 2004 700
Additions -
Depreciation (133)
Disposals -
Value at 31 March 2005 567

Outstanding obligations to make payments under these finance leases (excluding finance costs) at 31 March 2005, accounted for as part of long-term
liabilities, are as follows:

Vehicles, Plant and

Equipment

£'000

Obligations payable in 2005/2006 133
Obligations payable between 2006/2007 and 2009/2010 434
Obligations payable after 2009/2010 onwards -
Total liabilities at 31 March 2005 567

5. Assets Held Under Operating Leases
The authority was committed at 31 March 2005 to making payments of £1.308m under operating leases in 2005/2006, comprising the following
elements:

5. Assets Held Under Operating Leases

Other Land and Buildings Vehicles, Plant and

Equipment

£'000 £'000

Leases expiring in 2005/2006 23 134
Leases expiring between 2006/2007 and 2009/2010 51 825
Leases expiring after 2009/2010 onwards 54 221
128 1,180

6. Movement in Deferred Charges

Written off to Balance at

Balance at  Expenditure revenue in 31 March

1 April 2004 in year year 2005

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Wheeled Bins 559 - (559)
Total Deferred Charges 559 - (559)

7. Long Term Debtors
31 March 31 March

2005 2004
£'000 £'000
House Loans 601 679
Waste PPP Historic Contamination Fund 818 785
Total Long Term Debtors 1,419 1,464

Page 26



Argyll

2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

COUNCIL

Page 71
HIRIBI(S] NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET for the year ended 31 March 2005

7. Long Term Debtors Cont'd

At the start of the PPP contract during the 2001/02 financial year, a joint bank account was set up with Shanks Group PLC. Only Shanks Group PLC can
draw on this fund during the 25 year contract period, Argyll and Bute Council are required to keep the bank account balance "topped" up at £0.750m. At

the end of the 25 year contract period the £0.750m will be available to Argyll and Bute Council.

The movement in the bank account balance during the year can be analysed as follows:

£'000
Balance at 1 April 2004 785
Contribution to General Fund
"Top-up" payments during the year
Withdrawals by Shanks Group PLC
Interest earned on bank account 33
Balance at 31 March 2005 818
8. Debtors
2004/05 2003/04
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Arrears of Local Taxation Council Tax 11,983 11,683
less: provision for bad debts (9,741) (11,091)
2,242 592
Community Charge 7,636 7,697
less: provision for bad debts (7,636) (7,697)
Non-domestic Rates 1,573 1,513
less: provision for bad debts (920) (1,327)
653 186
House Rents 275 324
less: provision for bad debts (173) (189)
102 135
Debtor Accounts 2,833 2,742
less: provision for bad debts (392) (411)
2,441 2,331
Government Grants 1,420
VAT Recoverable 2,775 2,349
Other Debtors 9,842 4,257
Total Debtors 18,055 11,270
9. Analysis of Borrowing
9.1 Source of Loan
31 March 31 March
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
Public Works Loan Board 171,560 169,178
Money Market 25,755 25,755
EIB 437 830
Other Loans 536 513
Total Outstanding Loans 198,288 196,276

Page 27



Page 72
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

9. Analysis of Borrowing Cont’d

9.2 Maturity of Loans
31 March 31 March
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
Borrowings repayable on demand or within 12 months 4517 3,702
Borrowings repayable on demand or within 12 months 4,517 3,702
1-2years 4,012 4,054
2 -5years 4,263 8,272
6 - 10 years 23,638 14,294
Over 10 years (see graph) 161,858 165,954
Total Long and Medium Term Loans 193,771 192,574
Total Outstanding Loans 198,288 196,276

The following graph shows an additional analysis of how the £161.858m of long term loans over 10 years, shown in the table above, is repayable.

180

m 51-55years - £35.176m
m 46-50years - £11.800m
0O 41-45years - £5.244m
| 36-40years - £2.000m
@ 31-35years - £13,799m
W 26-30years - £5.000m
0 21-25years - £28.984m
0 16-20years - £25,757m
m 10-15years - £34.087m

160
140+
120

100
80+
60+

401

20+

10. Provisions

Liabilities have continued to arise in respect of the former Strathclyde Regional Council's operations. Cost sharing arrangements are in place with the
other eleven authorities that make up the former Strathclyde Region. Argyll and Bute Council's share of liabilities, which materialise in the future, will be
approximately 4.75%. At present, potential liabilities in respect of insurance claims and various legal actions could cost the Council £0.088m. Full
provision for this amount has been made.

Liabilities have also arisen in respect of employees who will be made redundant as a result of restructuring. According to the SORP's (Statement of
Recommended Practice) guidance on Provisions for Restructuring Costs: -

"The authority must also have raised valid expectations in those affected by announcing the features of the plan or actually starting to implement it.
Allowable costs are restricted to costs that would not have been incurred if the restructuring had not taken place, less any costs associated with on-going
activities."

This provision complies with the requirements of Financial Reporting Standard 12 - "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" and meets
the following criteria:

- Thereis a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
- Itis probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; and
- Avreliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Page 28



Page 73
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

10. Provisions Cont’d

Opening Movement Closing

Balance in Year Balance

£'000 £'000 £'000

SRC Insurance Claims (100) 12 (88)
Reorganisation Redundancy Costs (324) 24 (300)
Total Provisions (424) 36 (388)

11. Analysis of Net Assets Employed
As at 31 March 2005

General Fund HRA Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

Assets
Intangible Fixed Assets 28 28
Tangible Fixed Assets 289,438 68,370 357,808
Deferred Charges
Long Term Debtors 1,419 1,419
Stock and Work in Progress 678 678
Debtors 17,764 291 18,055
Investments
Cash at Bank and in Hand 13,128 13,128
Liabilities
Short Term Borrowing (3,684) (833) (4,517)
Creditors (43,193) (1,240) (44,433)
Bank Overdraft (3,850) (3,850)
Long Term Borrowing (158,028) (35,743) (193,771)
Deferred Liability Under Finance Leases (567) (567)
Provisions (388) (388)
Liability Related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (78,192) (3,343) (81,535)
Total Net Assets Employed 34,553 27,502 62,055

12. Contingent Gains and Liabilities

The Council has inherited a number of applications for equal pay at various stages of completion at Industrial Tribunals. The final outcomes of these
applications are unknown at this time, although there is the possibility that the Council may lose at least some of these cases. There is also potential for
other equal pay claims whose costs will be met by the Council. No financial provision has been made in the 2004/05 Accounts given the uncertainties

that surround both the final outcomes and the settlement levels.

The Council has entered into a Public Private Partnership with Shanks Group PLC for the waste management of landfill sites. Under this agreement, the
Council retains an element of residual responsibility in respect of specific environmental rectification, which may be necessary in certain circumstances.

The Council is of the view that any future liabilities arising from these circumstances should be covered by grants funding.




VAV eA% !N 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 74

CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

13. Commitments Under Capital Contracts
At 31 March 2005, the Council had commitments on capital contracts of £8.262m. This expenditure will be funded from a combination of government
grants, borrowing, income from selling assets and contributions from Revenue Accounts.

£'000
ICT and Financial Services 138
Community Services 2,346
Infrastructure and Transport 4,878
Operational Services 900
8,262

14. Trust Funds and Other Third Party Funds
The Council acts as sole or custodian trustee for 75 trust funds and 6 common good funds. In neither case do the funds represent assets of the Council,
and as such have not been included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Funds for which Argyll and Bute Council act as sole trustee:

Income  Expenditure Assets Liabilities
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Campbeltown Common Good Fund 27 20 770 770
Oban Common Good Fund 50 32 825 825
Inveraray Common Good Fund - - 1
Lochgilphead Common Good Fund - - 5
Dunoon Common Good Fund 1 6 6
Rothesay Common Good Fund 11 6 135 135
Argyll Education Trust 22 9 238 238
GM Duncan Trust 3 1 78 78
McDougall Trust 21 - 497 497
Various Other Trust Funds 19 2 423 423
Total Trust Funds 153 7 2,978 2,978

Purpose of Common Good Funds:
These funds are held for the benefit of residents of the former Burghs within Argyll and Bute.
Purpose of Trust Funds:

GM Duncan Trust: for the provision of fuel, clothing and foodstuffs for the needy of Campbeltown. McDougall Trust: for the provision of sheltered
housing on the Ross of Mull.  Argyll Education Trust: this is made up of a number of small trusts to award prizes, bursaries, etc. to pupils and ex-pupils
of schools within the former Argyll County Council area. Further information on the Common Good and Trust Funds, administered by Argyll and Bute
Council, can be obtained from Strategic Finance within the Chief Executive’s Unit.

15. European Monetary Union

As at 31 March 2005, the Council had incurred no expenditure and had made no commitments in respect of the costs associated with the introduction of
the Euro. Prior to entry into full Euro trading, a significant review of all systems will require to be undertaken. Consequently an estimate of costs is not
available at this stage.

16. Pension Assets and Liabilities - FRS 17 Disclosure
In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard No 17 - Retirement Benefits (FRS 17) the Council is required to disclose certain information concerning
assets, liabilities, income and expenditure related to pension schemes for its employees.

The Council participates in two formal schemes: the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Glasgow City Council, and the Teachers
Scheme administered by the Scottish Executive. The Council is not required to record information related to the Teachers' Scheme as the liability for
payment of pensions rests ultimately with the Scottish Executive. In addition, the Council has liabilities for discretionary payments outside the main
schemes.

Due to the timing of salary processing, not all employee and employer contributions have been paid to the Pension Schemes by the 31 March 2005.
These payments have been accrued and are included within the creditors figure on the balance sheet. These will be paid within April. The amounts are
as follows:

Local Government Pension Scheme - £805,579

Teacher's Scheme - £478,399

Page 30



JRNEAUIN 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 75

CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

16.1 Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Pension Scheme is a funded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a
level estimated to balance the pensions liabilities and investment assets. The Strathclyde Pensions Fund Office oversees the operation of this scheme.

The latest formal valuation of the Strathclyde Pension Fund for funding purposes was at 31 March 2002. An actuarial valuation is being carried out as at
31 March 2005, this will be reflected in future years. Hymans Robertson has assumed that employees have continued to earn new benefits on the same
basis as the latest formal valuation and that the employer's pensionable payroll over the year to 31 March 2006 remains substantially stable with new

entrants replacing any leavers. The assumptions used by Hymans Robertson (Independent Actuaries) at 31 March 2005 are as follows:

31 March
2005

% per annum

31 March
2004

% per annum

Price Increases 2.9% 2.9%
Salary Increases 4.4% 4.4%
Pension Increases 2.9% 2.9%
Discount Rate 5.4% 6.5%
Assets of the employer's share of the fund are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments, and consist of:
Fund Value Expected
Return within  at 31 March Return
2004/2005 2005 2005/2006
Assets (Employer Share) % per annum £'000 % per annum
Equities 7.7% 178,580 7.7%
Bonds 5.1% 32,306 4.8%
Properties 6.5% 23,146 5.7%
Cash 4.0% 7,680 4.8%
Total 71% 241,712 7.0%
The net pension asset / (liability) of Argyll and Bute Council as at 31 March 2005 is as follows:
31 March 31 March
2005 2004
£'000 £'000
Estimated Employer Assets 241,712 217,495
Present Value of Scheme Liabilities 302,810 231,472
Present Value of Unfunded Liabilities 20,437 17,386
Total Value of Liabilities 323,247 248,858
Net Pension Asset / (Liability) (81,535) (31,363)

The Net Pension Liability on the face of the balance sheet for 2003/04 is £26.794m, whereas in the note above the liability at 31 March 2004 is
£31.363m. As noted in Point 3.4 of the Statement of Accounting Policies, for the 2004/2005 Statement of Accounts, a rate based on the current rate of
return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to scheme liabilities has been used. Application of this rate has resulted in an
increase in liabilities measured at today’s prices of £4.569m. The change in the liabilities does not require a prior period adjustment, however, the note

above represents the comparative Net Pension Liability using the revised discount rate.

Local Government legislation provides that local authorities have an obligation to meet the expenditure of the Joint Boards of which they are constituent

members. As a consequence Argyll and Bute Council has additional liabilities arising from the pension deficits of:
= Strathclyde Police Board

= Strathclyde Fire Board

= Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Board

Further information regarding these deficits can be found in the annual report and accounts of the relevant bodies.

Page 31



Page 76
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

CEIBJUIS] STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

Capital Reserves Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 Note 4
Useable

Fixed Asset Capital Capital Deferred Deferred Total

Restatement Financing Receipts Gov't (Premiums)

Account Account Reserve Grants  Discounts
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 2004 83,220 296 359 13,238 (10,203) 86,910
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for year (19) 10,643 550 11,174

Prior year adjustments 41 (41)

;J:Srgtashsed gains/(loss) from revaluation of fixed 24304 24,304

Impairment gains/(losses) arising from revaluations
Capital Receipts transferred to/from Useable Capital

Receipts Reserve 399 (359)
Other Adjustments 4 (47) (43)
Effects of disposals of fixed assets:
Cost or value of assets disposed of (2,797) (2,797)
Proceeds of disposals 5,620 467 6,087
Net Surplus/(Deficit) (2,797) 5,620 467 3,290
Balance at 31 March 2005 104,772 6,168 467 23,881 (9,653) 125,635
Revenue Reserves and Funds (Note 5) Note 5
General HRA Repairs and Total
Fund Balance Renewals
Funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 2004 12,193 474 1,637 14,304
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for year 2,927 520 183 3,630
Revenue Interest 21 21
Other Adjustments / Reserve Transfers
Balance at 31 March 2005 15,120 1,015 1,820 17,955
Pension Reserve
£'000
Balance at 1 April 2004 (26,794)
Effect of Change of Discount Rate (4,569)
Revised Opening Balance 1 April 2004 (31,363)
Reversal of Provision for Teachers Premature Retirement Scheme 2003/2004 3,783
Transfer to Revenue (1,088)
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) in Pension Plan Note 7 (52,867)
Balance at 31 March 2005 (81,535)

Page 32



Page 77
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

EI2{01(s) NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES
(SOlONISIT for the year ended 31 March 2005

1. Fixed Asset Restatement Account

This account reflects the difference between the book value of assets prior to the implementation of the new system of Capital Accounting and the
revalued amounts. Any subsequent revaluations are also recorded here. It is not a revaluation reserve and does not represent resources available to

the authority. It cannot be used in any way to finance revenue or capital expenditure and can only be reduced by either writing out the book value of
assets or a downward revaluation.

General HRA Total

Fund Balance
£'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 2004 83,220
Surplus on revaluations, etc 19,284 5,020 24,304
Disposal of Fixed Assets (180) (2,617) (2,797)
Prior year adjustment 4 4
Other Adjustments 4 4
Balance at 31 March 2005 104,772

2. Capital Financing Account

The Capital Financing Account contains the amounts which are required by statute to be set aside from capital receipts for the repayment of external
loans as well as the amount of capital expenditure financed from revenue and capital receipts. It also contains the difference between amounts provided

for depreciation and that required to be charged to revenue to repay the principal element of external loans. As with the Fixed Asset Restatement
Account it does not represent resources available to the authority.

General HRA Sub Total
Fund Balance Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2004 296
Appropriations: Capital Financed from Current Revenue 41 274 315
Repayment of External Loans 13,749 13,749
Capital Element of Finance Lease Payments 133 133
Depreciation Write-off (12,209) (2,158) (14,367)
Deferred Government Grants Write-off 710 - 710

Deferred Charges Write-off (559) - (559) (19)

Proceeds of Disposals 5,620

Capital Receipts transferred from Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 359

Prior year adjustment (41)

Other Adjustments (47)

Balance at 31 March 2005 6,168

3. Deferred Government Grants

The Deferred Government Grants Account represents the balance of grants applied to the financing of fixed assets, awaiting amortisation to the asset

management revenue account to match depreciation on the relevant assets. As with the Fixed Asset Restatement Account it does not represent
resources available to the authority.

£'000
Balance at 1 April 2004 13,238
Grants received during the year to finance capital projects 11,353

Credit to revenue account during the year (710)
Balance at 31 March 2005

23,881

Page 33



Page 78
Argyll 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 9
EIR{0ISY NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES
(SOlONISIT for the year ended 31 March 2005

4. Deferred (Premiums) / Discounts

The "Loans Early Repayment Premium" represents the premium paid to the Public Works Loans Board and other external bodies upon the early
redemption of debt. As part of a loans restructuring exercise, debt at a relatively high interest rate was replaced by new debt at a more attractive rate of
interest. These costs associated with the early redemption of debt are charged to the Council's loans fund over the period of the new debt borrowed.

£'000
Balance at 1 April 2004 (10,203)
New (Premiums) / Discounts -
Debit / (Credit) to Asset Management Revenue Account 550
Balance at 31 March 2005 (9,653)

5. Repairs and Renewals Funds
Balance at  Contribution Interest Appropriation  Balance at
31 March from CRA Earned to CRA 31 March
2004 2005
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000

Revenue Funds:

Repairs and Renewals - Education 809 570 28 (462) 945
Repairs and Renewals - Vehicles 43 12 2 57
Repairs and Renewals - Land Contamination 785 33 818
1,637 582 63 (462) 1,820

6. Revenue Reserves and Funds

Revenue reserves are made up of the annual movements in the Consolidated Revenue Account and Housing Revenue Account and also Repairs and
Renewals Funds. Revenue reserves can be used to meet both capital and revenue expenditure.

7. Public Private Partnership Surplus

The General Fund balance includes a surplus of £0.028m. This relates to the Waste Management PPP where there was a surplus of funding over
expenditure in the 2004/2005 financial year. The following analysis provides more detail on how the surplus for the year was arrived at:

Expenditure £'000
Payment under the contract:

Service Cost 4170

Landfill Tax 609
Historic Contamination -
Total Expenditure 4,779
Funding
Argyll and Bute Council Revenue Budget 1,263
Level Playing Field Support 1,290
Strategic Waste Fund - Direct Grant 827
Strategic Waste Fund - Revenue Support Grant (from 1st October 2004) 827
Capital Virement 600
Total Funding 4,807
2004/05 28

8. Actuarial Gain / (Loss) in Pension Plan
The Pension Reserve includes an Actuarial Loss in the Pension Plan. The following analysis provides more detail on how this loss was arrived at,

measured as absolute amounts and as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31 March 2005. Comparative figures are also noted for the previous two
financial years:

2002/2003 2003/2004 2004/2005
£'000 % £'000 % £'000 %
Diff bet the Expected and Actual
rierences between e Sxpecied and Acka (34762)  (33.44%) 19,563 14.15% 8,174 3.38%
Return on Assets
Diff bet tuarial ti bout
2lierences between actuana’ assmprions abol (14501)  (10.01%) (512) (0.32%) (3,449) (1.07%)
liabilities and actual experience
Changes in the demographic and financial
) . . (57,592)
assumptions used to estimate liabilities
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) in Pension Plan (49,263) 19,051 (52,867)

Page 34



Argyll

COUNCIL

Page 79

2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
CEIBIUIS] CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2005

2003/04
Actual
£'000

106,820
107,460
7,243
995

222,518

6,623
36,059
30,078

126,569
21,278
7,759
23,935
3,784
256,085

33,567

14,782
22
14,804

372
372

(14,432)

11,342
4,606
15,948

5,783
2,099

344
8,226

(7.122)

REVENUE ACTIVITIES

Cash outflows

Cash Paid for and on Behalf of Employees

Other Operating Cash Payments

Housing Benefit Paid Out

National Non-domestic Rate Payments to National Pool
Total Cash Outflows

Cash inflows

Rents (after rebates)

Council Tax Income
Non-domestic Rate Receipts
Community Charge

Revenue Support Grant

DWP Grants for Benefits

Other Government Grants
Cash Received for Goods and Services
Other Operating Cash Receipts
Total Cash Inflows

Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) From Revenue Activities

SERVICING OF FINANCE
Cash outflows

Interest paid

Interest element of finance lease
Total Cash Outflows

Cash inflows
Interest received
Total Cash Inflows

Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) From Servicing of Finance

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

Cash outflows

Purchase of Fixed Assets
Other Capital Cash Payments
Total Cash Outflows

Cash inflows

Sale of Fixed Assets

Capital Grants Received
Other Capital Cash Receipts
Total Cash Inflows

Cash Inflow (Outflow) From Capital

Continued on next page.

Note

2004/05
Actual
£'000

118,583
113,093
6,968

238,644

6,292
33,511
33,085

719
117,175
19,835
28,187
24,065
2,514
265,383

26,739

13,400
14
13,414

491
491

(12,923)

20,274
20,275
5,526
10,592
560

16,678

(3,597)

Page 35



Page 80
RN e2A% 18| 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS g

CEIBIUIS] CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2005
COUNCIL

Continued from previous page.

2003/04 2004/05
Actual Note Actual
£'000 £'000

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES
2,000 Liquid Resources

13,413 Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) Before Financing T 10,219
FINANCING
Cash outflows
43,073 Repayments of Amounts Borrowed 6,365
125 Capital element of finance lease 133
43,198 Total Cash Outflows 6,498

Cash inflows

21,846 New Loans Raised 8,377
21,846 Total Cash Inflows 8,377
(21,352) Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) From Financing 1,879
(7,939) Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash 3 12,098

Page 36



COUNCIL

Argyll 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
EI2{01(sY| NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2005

Page 81

1. Other Government Grants

2003/04 2004/05
£'000 £'000
149 Housing Support Grant 198
Private Sector Housing Grant 1,839
342 Public Transport Grant 430
112 Pre-school Education Grants 163
- Pre-school Gaelic Education Grants 40
1,974 National Priorities Action Fund 2,352
136 Special Education 143
255 Gaelic Education Grants 284
1,261 Other Educational Grants 1,239
Education Maintenance Allowance 162
Supporting People 16,048
390 Children's Change Fund 663
470 DWP Other Grants 722
475 Social Inclusion Partnership 507
1,792 Strategic Waste Fund 1,137
- Associated Schools Group 46
- Discipline Task Group 178
- Youth Crime 3
403 Other Grants (e.g. Civil Defence) 2,033
7,759 Total "Other Government Grants" 28,187
2. Net Cash Flow Reconciliation
2003/04 2004/05
£'000 £'000
6,486 Surplus/(Deficit) for Year 2,927
511 Add back: Transfer to HRA Balance 794
6,997 3,721
(205) Movements in Reserves 183
20,790 Adjustments Not Involving Movement in Funds 21,749
91 (Increase)/Decrease in Stocks (26)
385 (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors (6,017)
5,509 Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors 7,129
33,567 Revenue Activities Net Cash Flow 26,739
3. Analysis of Net Debt
As at As at
31 March 31 March Cash
2005 2004 Flow
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash at Bank and in Hand 13,128 850 12,278
Bank Overdraft (3,850) (3,670) (180)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash 9,278 (2,820) 12,098
Debt due within one year (4,517) (3,702) (815)
Debt due after one year (193,771) (192,574) (1,197)
(Increase) / Decrease in Debt Financing (198,288) (196,276) (2,012)
Movement in Debt in Period 10,086
Capital Element of Finance Lease 133
Net Cash Flow on Debt and Capital Element of Finance Leases 10,219

Page 37



Argyll

COUNCIL

Page 82

2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
CEIB{UIS]  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2005

4. Reconciliation of Movement in Cash to Net Debt

2003/04
£'000
(7,939)
21,227

13,288

(212,384)

(199,096)

Increase / (Decrease) in Cash in Period
(Increase) / Decrease in Debt Financing
Movement in Debt in Period

Net Debt as at 1 April 2004

Net Debt as at 1 April 2005

2004/05
£000
12,098

(2,012)

10,086
(199,096)

(189,010)

Page 38



JRNEAIN 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 83

CEIB{UIS] STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
COUNCIL

THE AUTHORITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES
The Authority is required:

& to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for
the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Head of Strategic Finance.

¢ tomanage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.
THE HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE'S RESPONSIBILITIES
The Head of Strategic Finance is responsible for the preparation of the authority's statement of accounts, which in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code of Practice), is required to present fairly, the financial position of the authority as
at 31 March 2005 and its income and expenditure for the year ended on that date.
In preparing this statement of accounts, the Head of Strategic Finance has:

#  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

¢ made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

¢ complied with the Code of Practice.
The Head of Strategic Finance has also:

¢  kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

+ taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

This statement of accounts presents fairly the financial position of the Authority at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended

31 March 2005.

Bruce West
Head of Strategic Finance
21 June 2005

Page 39



ANEAUIN 2004-2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 84

CEIBJUIS] STATEMENT ON THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL
COUNCIL

This statement is given in respect of the statement of accounts for Argyll and Bute Council. | acknowledge my responsibility for ensuring that an
effective system of internal financial control is maintained and operated in connection with the resources concerned.

The system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are
authorised and properly recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period.

The system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information, financial regulations, administrative procedures
(including segregation of duties), management supervision, and a system of delegation and accountability. Development and maintenance of the
system is undertaken by managers within the Council. In particular the system includes:

e  comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget which is reviewed and agreed by the Council;
e regular reviews by the Council of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts;
e  setting targets to measure financial and other performance; and
e the preparation of regular financial reports which indicate actual expenditure against the forecasts.
Argyll and Bute Council has an internal audit function, which operates to standards defined in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy's Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom. The work of internal audit is informed by an analysis of
the risk to which the Council is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on the analysis. The Council's Audit Committee endorses the
analysis of risk and the internal audit plans. At least annually, the Internal Audit Manager provides the Audit Committee with a report on internal audit
activity in the Council. The report includes the Internal Audit Manager's independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's
systems of internal financial control.
My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control is informed by:
e the work of Directors and managers within the Council;
e the work of internal auditors as described above; and
e the external auditors in their annual audit letter and other reports.
During 2004/05 and the previous year Internal Audit has identified a number of areas of potential weakness in the systems of financial control. They
are:-
e  Reuvisions to the Contract Standing Orders to overcome the inadequacy of capital control guidelines were originally to be completed by
31 July 2004. Management is currently addressing this issue and revised Standing Orders are expected now to be completed and
approved by the full Council in June 2005.
e  Capital project management disciplines were to be improved. Management has taken some steps to address this issue, but has not yet
fully completed and approved a guidance handbook of procedures. The latest estimate is that it is expected to be completed by July

2005.

e A Risk Management Strategy has been now approved by the Strategic Management Team (SMT) and a Risk Register compiled. They
are to be further developed and implemented during 2005/2006.

e An Information Management and Technology Strategy is now in place and has been approved by the SMT, this is to be further
developed and implemented during 2005/2006.

e  The Council has now approved an Asset Management Strategy. This is to be further developed and implemented during 2005/2006.

e A number of weaknesses were identified in the accounting for property assets in 2003/2004. These have been progressed in 2004/2005
with those remaining weaknesses planned to be addressed throughout 2005/2006.

In addition attention is drawn to the following matter:

e  Although significant resource is allocated towards budgetary control improvements, the continued development of linkages between
budget and service planning processes with a corresponding review of procedures and training, will lead to better overall budget
management.

In summary, the year-end outturn has resulted in a generally satisfactory position and internal audit's annual report allows me to take comfort that other
than as outlined above, reasonable assurance can be placed on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s Internal Financial Control System.

B

Bruce West
Head of Strategic Finance
21 June 2005

Page 40



Page 85

VA% 20042005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

CEIB{UICS] INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
COUNCIL

To the members of Argyll and Bute Council and the Accounts Commission for Scotland

| certify that | have audited the financial statements on pages 6 to 38 under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. The financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out on pages 6 to 8.

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VIl of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the Code
of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of
Auditors and of Audited Bodies prepared by Audit Scotland, dated July 2001.

Respective responsibilities of the Head of Strategic Finance and Auditor

As described on page 39 the Head of Strategic Finance of the Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, a Statement of Recommended Practice ('the SORP'). My responsibilities, as
independent auditor, are established by statute and the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission, and guided by the auditing
profession's ethical guidance.

| report my opinion as to whether the financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Council at 31 March 2005 and its income and
expenditure for the year. | also report if, in my opinion, the Council has not kept proper accounting records, or if | have not received all the information
and explanations I require for my audit.

| review whether the Statement on the System of Internal Financial Control on page 40 complies with the requirements of the SORP. | report if, in my
opinion, the statement does not comply with the requirements or if it is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my audit. |
am not required to consider whether the statement covers all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's corporate
governance procedures or risk and control procedures.

| read the other information published with the financial statements and consider the implications for my report if | become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of Audit Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Part VIl of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the Code of Audit Practice, which requires
compliance with relevant United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board.

An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Head of Strategic Finance in the preparation of the financial statements and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Council's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

| planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which | considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. |n forming my opinion, | also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In my opinion the financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2005 and its income and expenditure for the year
then ended.

O Ca .,

Angela Cassels BA CPFA
Assistant Director of Audit (Local Government)
Audit Scotland
Tth Floor, Plaza Tower
East Kilbride
30 September 2005

Page 41



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87 Agenda Iltem 5

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 9 DECEMBER 2005

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2005 - 2006

1. SUMMARY

An interim progress report has been prepared covering the audit work performed by
Internal Audit up to the 11" of November 2005. The objective of the report is to advise
members of the progress of the Annual Audit Plan. (See Appendix 1).

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1  The Audit Committee is asked to approve the progress made with the Annual
Audit Plan for 2005 - 2006.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1  The progress report contained in Appendix 1, lists the audits scheduled for the
financial year 2005 —2006 and are ordered by section and level of completion.

3.2 Asatthe 11™ of November 2005, of 18 core financial systems audits set out in
the audit plan, 11 have been completed with reports issued. Of the remaining 7
audits, 3 have been started leaving 4 audits still to be commenced.

3.3 A total of 13 non-financial audit areas were identified for this years audit plan.
As at the 11" of November 2005, 4 audits have been completed with reports
issued. Of the remaining 9 audits, 3 have been started of which one is close to
completion. The remaining 6 audits have yet to be commenced.

3.4  Assetout in the Annual Audit Plan a total of 80 days have been set aside for
Other Areas — Follow Up Work. As at the 11™ of November 2005, a total of 62
days have been expended. A total of 80 days have been set aside in the audit
plan for Special Investigations / Contingency audit work. As at the 1 1" of
November, a total of 41 days have been expended on Special Investigation
work.

4. SUMMARY OF AUDIT ACTIVITIES FOR 2005 - 2006

4.1  Having successfully used the services of a contract auditor for Council
Performance Indicator audit work in July 2005, Internal Audit has engaged 2
contract auditors for the period October to the end of December 2005. This
additional resource allied to our own staff input will allow Internal Audit to
maintain progress with the Annual Audit Plan. (See Appendix 1).

4.2 During October 2005, Internal Audit received notice that the section had
achieved a Silver Award in the inaugural year of the Council’s Excellence
Awards. The category for which Internal Audit entered was, “Securing A
Workforce for the Future”. Internal Audit is included with 2 other competitors
for the Gold Award; the winner will be announced at an Awards Dinner in Oban



Page 88

on the evening of 12" December 2005.

CONCLUSION

Progress is being made on audits planned for 2005 — 2006.

6. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: Update on audit plan for 2005 — 06.
5.2 Financial: The audit plan is based on existing budgeted
provision.
5.3  Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Ian Nisbet
Internal Audit Manager 25 November 2005.
25Novprogreport25Nov



Page 89

APPENDIX 1

Assessment of audit days: 2005-2006 strategic plan

AUDIT WORK SCHEDULE AT 11TH NOVEMBER 2005 Year Risk Ranking Estimated Expended Balance
Last Audited Audit Days Audit Days

2005-2006 2005 - 2006

CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEMS

COMPLETE

Stock taking 2005 2 25 20 5

Government & European Grants 2003 1 30 23 7

Purchasing 2004 2 25 29 -4
Cash & Income Banking 2004 2 30 25 5

Budgetary preparation & control (KPMG) 2005 1 20 15 5

Capital Accounting 2005 1 20 21 -1

Capital Contracts 2005 1 20 16 4

Contract Hire & Operating Leases 2003 2 20 17 3

Creditor Payments 2004 2 25 27 -2
Debtor Accounts 2004 2 20 15 5

Tendering Procedures 2004 1 30 23 7

STARTED

Following Public Pound Voluntary Organisations 2005 2 20 2 18
Unified Benefits System 2004 2 30 2 28
Payroll 2004 2 30 3 28
NOT STARTED

Council Tax & NDR 2003 2 30 0 30
Housing Rents 2005 2 20 0 20
General Ledger Operations 2005 2 25 0 25
Treasury management 2005 2 20 0 20
SECTION TOTAL 440 238 202
NON- FINANCIAL AUDITS

COMPLETE

Council Wide Corporate Governance 2004 1 30 26 4

Council Wide Pls 2004 1 60 56 4

Strategic Asset Management 2004 1 30 21 9

Property Asset Management NEW 1 30 22 8

STARTED

Community Services - Care Services NEW 2 30 11 19
Development Services Transport & Infrastructure (KPMG/IA) NEW 1 30 2 28
Corporate Services - ICT - Security (KPMG/IA) NEW 2 25 2 23
NOT STARTED

Chief Executives Unit - Best Value 2004 1 30 0 30
Community Services - NPDO Contract Monitoring (KPMG) 2003 1 30 0 30
Partnership Working 2004 1 30 0 30
Recruitment & Retention of Staff NEW 2 25 0 25
Business Continuity Planning NEW 1 30 0 30
New Legislation NEW 1 3 0

H

0 30
Section Total 410 140 270
|TOTAL DIRECT AUDIT DAYS | 850 379 471

SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS CONTINGENCY | - - 80 39

Community Services 41

Section Total

OTHER AREAS
Risk assessment, strategic plan, annual plans - - 20 10 10
Follow-up External & Internal Audit Recommendations 60 52 8

Section Total

TOTAL 1010 482 528



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91 Agenda ltem 6

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 9 DECEMBER 2005

ADAPTING TO THE FUTURE 2003 - 2004.

1. SUMMARY

The Accounts Commission - Audit Scotland issued a national report towards the end of
August 2004 entitled, “Adapting to the future”. As there were no implementation dates
assigned to the report recommendations, Internal Audit in conjunction with Community
Services management prepared an Action Plan with agreed implementation dates.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1  The contents of this report are noted and to be followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  The Action Plan for this report lists 21 recommendations. As at the 8" of
November 2005, it can be reported that 9 recommendations have been addressed.
(See Appendix 1).

3.2  Asindicated previously by Community Services’ management the remaining 12
recommendations will be addressed through a feasibility study. To achieve this
and other requirements, a decision was taken by the Joint Strategy Group
comprised of both Community Services and NHS representatives to engage a
consultant. After a tendering exercise, AGE Ltd was awarded a consultancy
contract. As part of their brief, Age Ltd was tasked to address the 12 remaining
recommendations.

3.3 Atameeting on the 15" of November 2005, Internal Audit in co-operation with
Community Services management met with AGE Ltd to discuss in detail the
agreed feasibility study issues they were to address. At the same meeting it was
requested of AGE Ltd that their final report include an Action Plan that prioritised
issues, detailed resource requirements and assigned achievable dates for each
recommended action.

3.4  Internal Audit was also able to provide AGE Ltd with findings from a recent audit,
which addressed the wider issues raised by the Audit Scotland national report. The
findings were centred around the impact on Council resources of implementing
good practice and the identification of risk and liability issues particular to the
Council. AGE Ltd is due to issue their final report in January 2006.

4. CONCLUSIONS

Progress by AGE Ltd in addressing the feasibility study recommendations will be
monitored by Internal Audit and reported to the Audit Committee.

S. IMPLICATIONS



Page 92

5.1  Policy: None
5.2 Financial: None
5.3 Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Ian Nisbet
Internal Audit Manager 25 November 2005
25Novfinalreport25Nov



Page 93

APPENDIX 1

Main Report - Action Plan: Adapting to the future

No Recommendation Responsible | Community Services | Implementation
Officer Management Progress as at 8th of
£ November 2005.
Response
Person-centred services
Councils and NHS bodies should
1 | Jointly publish comprehensive information | Jim Robb
on community equipment and adaptations, | Head of
covering: Integrated
. . Development. May 2005.
*  What help is available A joint meeting was held
e Whot tact with Occupational Complete.
0 1o contac Therapy staff on May 11"
* Eligibility criteria to re-write practice The leaflet has now been
guidance and produce produced and arrangements
¢ Who needs to pay and how information leaflets. This | are now in place for the
much exercise will be concluded | Sensory Impairment Team to
. Wh . | by the end of May 2005. transcribe on demand into
at Service people can large print and on to tape.
expect, using information such
as local targets for response
times.
2 | The information in 1 above should be Jim Robb Information above will be | June 2005.
published in different formats and in other | Head of produced in large print
languages as needed by local communities | Integrated and audio tape and other | Complete.
Development. | languages as required.
The leaflet has now been
produced and arrangements
are now in place for the
Sensory Impairment Team to
transcribe on demand into
large print and on to tape.
3 | There should be a review regarding the Jim Robb Overall service requires to | This has been included within
level of demand for out-of-hours services. Head of be reviewed. Feasibility the agreed brief for the
Integrated study proposed and being | feasibility study being
Development. | presented at next Joint conducted by AGE Ltd.
Strategy meeting. Out of
hours services would be
examined within the
study.
How are services organised
Councils and NHS bodies should
4 | Work towards joint information systems Jim Robb Re-implementation of This has been included within
that provide good management information | Head of Carefirst should provide the agreed brief for the
on the community equipment and Integrated more robust information. | feasibility study being
adaptation services within their partnership | Development. | IT provision will be conducted by AGE Ltd.

arca.

examined within a
feasibility study as to best
joint systems.




Page 94

APPENDIX 1
No Recommendation Responsible | Community Services | Implementation
Officer Managsement Progress as at 8th of
Resl%onse November 2005.

5 | Clarify partnership arrangements for the Jim Robb Feasibility study will This has been included within
assessment and provision of community Head of identify required policies | the a}g.re?ed brief fori the
equipment and adaptations ensuring that all | Integrated and procedures. feasibility study being
relevant partners are involved; and Development. conducted by AGE Ltd.
formalise these arrangements in agreed
policies and procedures.

6 | Ensure all relevant staff across the Jim Robb Training for staff would This has beer} included within
respective partner organisations are aware Head of be carried out when the z.ig.rffed brief for‘ the
of the agreed policies and procedures. Integrated policies and procedures feasibility study being

Development. | are in place. conducted by AGE Ltd.

7 | Ensure that community equipment and Jim Robb Community care This has been included within
adaptation services are developed as part of | Head of strategies will be reviewed | the agreed brief for the
their overall community care strategy. Integrated to ensure community feasibility study being

Development. | equipment and conducted by AGE Ltd.
adaptations services are
included as part of the
feasibility study.

8 | Develop protocols, which maximise the Jim Robb Protocols would be This has been included within
ability of staff from different partnership Head of developed following the the agreed brief for the
organisations to access equipment and Integrated feasibility study. feasibility study being
adaptations and reduce the waiting time for | Development. conducted by AGE Ltd.
users.

How are services organised
Councils and NHS bodies should

9 | Jointly review budgets for community Jim Robb Budgets will be regularly | Regular monitoring by each
equipment and adaptations and HIG’s to Head of reviewed through Joint partner has commenced.
ensure that they are set at a realistic level to | Integrated Strategy group.
meet need. Development.

10 | Monitor the performance on equipment and | Jim Robb Robust systems for This has been included within
adaptation services by collecting and using | Head of collecting information the agreed brief for the
robust management information on: Integrated will be identified from feasibility study being

. Cost Development. | recommendations of conducted by AGE Ltd.
0s feasibility study.
e Activity, including waiting times
e Quality of services, including
users’ views.

11 | Record and monitor activity and Jim Robb A charge monitoring This is a multi organisation
expenditure associated with third Head of system will be set up to recommendation. Care &
parties, such as Care and Repair, RSLs Integrated address this Repair have started to monitor
and voluntary organisations, as charges Development. | recommendation. activity and expepditur@. AGE
in these areas are likely to impact Ltd as part of their feasibility

ignificantly on future service delive study will evaluate what has
signi y Ty been prepared and advise on
and resourcing. co-operation with the other
parties.

12 | Develop joint performance indicators so Jim Robb Following feasibility This has been included within
that the service can be evaluated across a Head of study- joint performance the agreed brief for the
partnership area. Integrated indicators will be feasibility study being

Development. | developed. conducted by AGE Ltd.




Page 95

APPENDIX 1
No Recommendation Responsible | Community Services {)mplementationt sth of
Officer rogress as a 0
Management November 2005.
Response

13 | Councils and schools should ensure that Ronald Gould | Wilma Lawn QIO ASN. Complete.
there is training on the inclusion of pupils Head of An annual needs analysis
with SEN and for class and subject teachers informs the provision of

. . . Secondary . . -

and SNAs, in particular, that there is Education our in-service training for

effective development and training to teachers and SEN

support the needs of pupils with SEBD. assistants relating to
pupils with SEN or
SEBD. The annual
strategy is included in the
education policy file
Supporting Children:
Supporting Effective
Learning.

14 | Once trend information is available, Jim Robb Benchmarking with other | Complete.
benchmark with other partnerships using Head of similar local authorities
like-for-like performance measures to drive | Integrated will take place once
forward continuous improvement. Development. information available.

15 | Work together to assess need for major Jim Robb Develop close working As response above at point 11.
adaptations in the future. Head of links with Housing, RSLs, | Care & Repair have started to

Integrated Care & Repair to monitor | monitor trends. AGE Ltd as
Development. | trends to assist in part of their feasibility study
assessing for future will evaluate what has been
adaptations. prepared and advise on co-
operation with the other
parties.
Managing Risk
Councils and NHS bodies should

16 | Ensure stock control systems are in Jim Robb Robust systems for This has been included within

place to track and locate equipment. Head of managing equipment will | the agreed brief for the
Integrated be identified by feasibility | feasibility study being
Development. | study. conducted by AGE Ltd.

17 | Ensure that written instructions on using Jim Robb A joint meeting was held | Instructions have been written
equipment and adaptations are always Head of with Occupational and have been issued within
provided for users and carers, and trained Integrated Therapy staff to re-write the Oban area. They will be
staff always demonstrate their use. Development. | practise guidance and rolled out after AGE Ltd has

produce information assessed the instructions and
leaflets on May 11™. The | any required amendments
whole exercise should be | have been made.

concluded by October

2005.

18 | Consider how best to provide advice Jim Robb A joint meeting was held | An information leaflet has
and support to people in private Head of with Occupational been completed and a
housing market who install major Integrated Therapy staff to re-write comparison exercise has

Development. | practise guidance and commenced comparing the re-

adaptations.

produce information
leaflets on May 11™. The
whole exercise should be
concluded by October
2005.

written guidance elements
with other Scottish Council
guidance documentation for
good practice.




Page 96

APPENDIX 1
No Recommendation Responsible | Community Services | Implementation .
Officer Manasement Progress as at 8th o
Resﬁonse November 2005.
19 | Agree and implement formal policies and Jim Robb Robust systems for This has beeg included within
procedures that include: Head of managing equipment will | the E}g.re?ed brief fori the
. Integrated be identified by feasibility | feasibility study being
*  Recall of faulty equipment Development. | study. conducted by AGE Ltd.
*  Maintenance and repair
arrangements
* Recycling, including infection
control procedures
*  Emergency arrangements.

20 | Ensure management information Jim Robb Robust systems for This has beel? included within
systems contribute to the effective Head of managing equipment will | the agreed brief for the
management of risk. Integrated be identified by feasibility | feasibility study being

Development. | study. conducted by AGE Ltd.

21 | Review user needs once equipment and | Jim Robb Methods of monitoring This has been included within

adaptations have been supplied. Head of and evaluation of service | the agreed brief for the
Integrated require to be identified feasibility study being
Development. | following feasibility conducted by AGE Ltd.

study.




Page 97 Agenda Item 7

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 9 DECEMBER 2005

MAINTAINING SCOTLAND’S ROADS

1. SUMMARY

Audit Scotland issued a national report towards the end of November 2004 entitled,
“Maintaining Scotland’s Roads”. The national report did not have any implementation
dates assigned to its 9 recommendations. In response the Head of Roads & Amenity
Services prepared an action plan incorporating the reports recommendations and added a
further 3 to reflect dependent issues. All 12 recommendations were then assigned an
implementation date. The Head of Service commenced reporting to the Audit Committee
and Strategic Policy Committee (SPC) in December 2004. Set out below is the updated
position.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and to be followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Asatthe 31% of October 2005, of the 12 recommendations reported by the Head of
Roads & Amenity Services to the SPC in December 2004, only 2 now remain to
be implemented. Of these, one has an implementation date of December 2005 and
the other March 2006. Management have reported to Internal Audit that
implementation for both recommendations remains ongoing. See Appendix 1.

3.2 The Audit Committee was informed at the last meeting that the Head of Roads &
Amenity Services would shortly be preparing a report update for the SPC on
progress made; this is provided in Appendix 2. The update report details the
results of the 2004 — 2005 Scottish Roads Maintenance Condition Survey
(SRMCS) together with an Action Plan for 2006.

3.3 The report states that the Scottish Executive has recognised that road maintenance
is under funded and from the financial year 2006 — 2007 an additional £60 million
has been awarded to Scotland’s Councils through additional GAE contribution.

4. CONCLUSIONS
Progress with the implementation of the report’s recommendations will continue
to be reported by Internal Audit.

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: None
52 Financial: None
53 Personnel: None

54  Legal: None



Page 98

5.5  Equal Opportunities: None
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Ian Nisbet
Internal Audit Manager 31 October 2005.
31octfinalreport31oct



Maintaining Scotland’s Roads

Page 99

Action Plan APPENDIX 1
No. Recommendations Current Position Proposed Action Timescale Updatestas
at 31
October
2005
1 Report on the condition of roads and | Reported to SPC 9th Continue to report December | Completed
maintenance backlog. Dec 2004 on annual basis. 2005
2 Determine the size of the structural SCOTS figures shown | Determine the cost, March Complete
maintenance backlog. in Appendix 2 in accordance with 2005
Scottish Executive
approved
techniques.
3 Establish a long-term strategy for May 2004 - Roads Implement further December Ongoing
road maintenance in the overall Asset Management action in association | 2005
context of transportation and roads Plan produced; with Asset
asset management strategies. requires annual Management Unit.
update
4 Meet the recommendations stated in | Road Asset Continue to monitor. | - -
"Delivering Best Value in Highway Maintenance Plan
Maintenance — Code of Practice for | introduced by Council
Maintenance Management". in May 2004.
5 Review budget setting procedures 4 year capital Review Audit March Complete
ensuring appropriate priority to resurfacing Scotland's 2005
structural maintenance to achieve programme compiled | recommendation.
long-term value for money.
6 Conduct an option appraisal for No action. Undertake March Ongoing
procuring and financing road recommendation. 2006
maintenance services.
7 Improve inventory information on Completed Feb 2005 Maintain inventory March Complete
the roads assets. each financial year. 2005
8 Use asset management system On Going — Lighting Refine the Roads May 2005 Complete
linked to GIS and financial system. information in place Maintenance
and Roads to be input | Management
18/04/2005 System.
9 Consider joint working with other Collaborative buying Maintain each March Complete
Councils contracts with financial year. 2005. but an
neighbouring ongoing
Councils, for Bitumen practice
Products and Coated
and Uncoated
Roadstone, have
been undertaken.
10 Review unit costs of various service | Re costed Feb 2005 — | Maintain each March Complete
elements. complete for March financial year 2005
2005
11 Develop a framework of The performance Review April 2005 Complete
performance indicators and indicators within the Performance
outcome targets against which to plan have been Indicators in light of
measure the performance of the reviewed. See Audit Scotland's
road maintenance system. Appendix 3 Report.
12 Complete the Best Value Road On Going — on target | Complete May 2005 Complete
Maintenance Service Checklist. recommendation.




Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101

APPENDIX 2
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE
OPERATIONAL SERVICES 3 NOVEMBER 2005

MAINTAINING SCOTLAND'S ROADS - 2005 Update

SUMMARY

This report provides the details and results of the 2004-2005 Scottish Roads
Maintenance Condition Survey (SRMCS) together with an update of the
"Maintaining Scotland's Roads" action plan.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked to:-

Note the results and detail of the 2004-2005 SRMCS.

Note the update to the Maintaining Scotland’s Roads action plan including the
2004-2005 performance indicators.

Instruct the Head of Roads and Amenity Services to prepare programmes of work
for financial year 2005 — 2006 for approval by Area Committees.

BACKGROUND

For background to Maintaining Scotland’s Roads refer to Strategic Policy
Committee papers:-

Maintaining Scotland’s Roads — Update of Action Plan 5" May 2005
Maintaining Scotland’s Roads 9" Dec 2004

DETAIL

The results of the survey classify the road network into three categories.

Green - roads considered to be in an acceptable condition

Amber - roads considered to require further investigations to establish if
treatment is required.

Red - roads considered to have deteriorated to a point at which repairs to

prolong future life should be considered.

The following table indicates the condition of the Scottish road network as at March
2005.



4.2

4.3

5.

5.1
5.2

5.3

5.4
5.5

Page 102

APPENDIX 2
Red Amber Green Relative Condition
(Red + Amber)
Scotland 11 31 58 42%
Argyll & Bute (20”‘) 17 31 52 48%

The results show a marginal improvement of 1% on the March 2004 figures but this
is below the Scottish average improvement of 2%. For further detail of results and
comparisons of previous years figures see Appendix A.

The Maintaining Scotland’s Roads action plan for Argyll and Bute has been updated
a copy can be found in Appendix B. Part of the plan included Performance
Indicators and targets the results of which are enclosed in Appendix C.

The Scottish Executive has recognised that road maintenance is under funded and
from financial year 2006—2007 an additional £60 million has been awarded to
Scotland's Councils through additional GAE contribution. Argyll & Bute's share is
approximately £1.6 million. A works programme is being prepared and it is
proposed to present to Area Committees in December. The Roads Maintenance
and Asset Management Plan will be used as the basis for formulating these
programmes.

IMPLICATIONS

Policy — None

Financial — In order to improve the condition of Argyll and Bute's roads, substantial
investment will be required.

Personnel — Addition labour will be required to deliver the expanded programmes of
work.

Equal Opportunities — None.

Legal — None.

For further information, please contact Stewart Turner (Tel: 01546 604611).

Andrew R Law
Director of Operational Services
17 November 2004

KEY: As the appendices are extracts from a read only document they could not be
amended for this report.

The Key for A Roads PI 2004 — 2005 should read:

Series 3 = Green;
Series 2 = Amber; and
Series 1 = Red.



APPENDIX 2

Appendix A

Page 103

A Roads P12004_2005

@ Series3
O Series?2
B Series1




Page 104

Appen@b?RENDIX 2

Change In A Roads Plover Time

0 2002_03

02003 04

B 2004_05

70

60




Appen@iI}BENDIX 2

Page 105

B Roads Pl 2004_2005

= Green

O Amber
B Red

20%

10% -

0% -




Page 106

Appené&)szDIX 2

Change B Roads Pl over Time

00 2003_04

B 2004 05

0 2002_03

80
70




Page 107

Appen@iRRENDIX 2

C roads Pl 2004 2005




Page 108

Appen@&’ﬂENDIX 2

Change in C Roads Pl over Time

@ 2002_03

00 2003_04

m 2004_05

80

70

60

50




Page 109

Appen@iRRENDIX 2

Unclassified Roads Pl 2004 2005

= Green

o Amber
m Red




Page 110

Appen@&’]}ENDIX 2

Change in Unclassified roads Pl over Time

m 2002_03
0 2003_04
m 2004_05

90
80 -
70 +

10



Page 111

Appen@iRRENDIX 2

Network P12004 2005

11

\ Sy, %
f T T T T T T T T T T Y Y
X R ® R O® R ® R R RO %s,
o ] (<3} N~ © Yo} < ™ N ~
=




Page 112

@ 2002_03
0 2003_04
m 2004_05

E

Appen@&’]}ENDIX 2

Change in Network Pl over time

12

70
60
50
40 -




Page 113

el

9000z YoJely | ‘uonepuswiwodal MaInay a)e|dwo) 90IAI8S 90UBUBIUIE PBOY BnjeA 1sag ay} a1e|dwo) )
‘Abajeng
‘Hoday s,puepoos 9oUBUBJUIB|\ SPEOY ‘walsAs aoueusjuiew
Hupny jo yb1| Ul s1oledIpu| | 8y} Ul SIojedipul @duewlopad | peod 8y} Jo aouewlouad ay) ainseaw 0} yoiym jsuiebe syabie)
9002 yoiep 90UBWIONS MBINDY [eJanas ale a1ay | aW09]N0 pue siojesipul aduewlopad Jo ylomawely e dojaasq Ll
"uol}BpUBIWO0I)
9002 yotep MBINDY 90/S00¢ 40} 818|dwo) "SJUBLUBIS B2IAISS SNOLIBA JO S}SOD JIUN MBIASY oL
0002 YoJe\ pamalnal VG VEIIIGREY ‘punoy
aq |Im 9y9|dwo) SIY} MaInaY sanunyuoddo yueoyiubis oN S|19UN0Y) Jaylo yim Buiyiom juiol Japisuod) 6
900¢
ludy | uonejuswaldw ‘wosAg Juswabeuepy
[In} 819|dwod aoueuUalUIBI\ ‘woisAs
uononpoJul [eniu| Speoy e 8oNpoJu| ‘uonoe oN [BIOUBUL pUB S| O} pPayul] WalsAs Juswabeuew jasse asn 8
900Z yoJe ‘Alojuaaul aye|dwon ‘Buiobuo yIop "S]9SSe SpeoJ 8y} Uo uoljewlojul Aiojuaaul aaoidu| /
"uol}BpUBIWO0I3) "S9OIAIBS 8ouUBUSlUIRW
9002 yote ayeuapun ‘uoljoe oN peous Buioueuly pue Bulinooud Joj jesiesdde uondo ue 1onpuo) 9
"@oueUdUIBW ‘ARauow
900Z YoJe|\ mainay "uol}BpUBIWO0I3) [BJNJONJ)S JO JUBWDID 10} anjeA wJa}-Buo| aAsIyoe 0} 8oUBUSUIEW [BINJONIIS O}
9)9|dwo) S,pUBI00S JIpNY M3IASY | ue smojje swwelboud [eyde) | Aluoud ajendoidde Bulinsua sainpasold Bupias 106png mainay S
"$002 “Juswabeuep
Ae ul [1ouno) Aq paonpodjul aoueuUSlUIB\ 10} 82110BId JO 9p07) — doueudluiely AemybiH
- "JOjlUoW O} dNURUOD ue|d @oUBUBJUIBI\ PEOY | Ul 8njeA 1sag Bulaalgq, Ul palels Suoiepuswwodal auy} Jos ¥
JHun wawaebeuey ‘solbajells
19SSy YlM uoijeioosse Juswabeuew jasse speos pue uoleuodsuel) JO 1X8jU09 [|eJaA0
600z Jaquiada ul uonoe juswalduw| ‘a]ep 0} uofoe oN 8y} ul @oueuUslUleW peod Joj ABajelis wuel-buol e ysijgeis3 e
‘sanbiuyoa)
panoidde aanooaxg
UsI}J00S YjIM aoueplodoe ‘a|qe|ieAe 194 jou
9002 yotep ul ‘}s09 8y} aulwidleqg S| JUBLUISSASSE 9)eINdJe Uy ‘Bopjoeq aoueUSjUIBW [BINJONIIS DY} JO 8ZIS 8y} aulwldle(g Z
900¢
Aep\ podau 1xau G002 ‘SIseq [enuue
Ae|\ DdS 0} panuoday uo podal 0} anunuon | uonewloul G0/00Z Buniemy ‘Bopjoeq aoueusjUIBW pUB SPEOJ JO UOIIPUOD 8y} Uo Joday L
a[eosawl | uonoy pasodoud uonisod juaung suoepuaWWo29y "ON
g xipuaddy

¢ XIANAddV




Page 114

14

ISIX99YD

¢ XIANAddV




Page 115

Sl

‘awwelboud ‘swuwelboud ‘swuwelboud
UuIyum uoneooje uiypm paje|dwod ale jeyy uoIjONJISU0DSI
%001 %56 %001 %06 %001 %06 leydeo Jo %001 | Jesh [eloueuy e uj Buioeunsal [endeo jo ssauaAoaye S
a)9|dwod 0] 10} paliuUapl saWwayos Jo %, ay) aulwla}ep o] Id1
‘N0 palIed
wxooL/ssi wxooL/gLL wo01/602 woolL/gel wo0L/€6 w001/80¢€ S| 8dueusjulew
aAljejuanald ‘awwelsbo.id
ungLee unyeg un06. unieyy unigye SE S]0949p 3JOM}BU PEOI JO W00 ddoueusjulew sunnol
S]09JOp G8BE | S108J8p 92/ | S109)ep 9601 S]09Jep 8L¥ S}09Jep G/ | Jo Jaquinu ayj ul | Jad suonoadsu Ayeges Buunp 3} JO SSBUBANIBYS ¥
uononpal 8as 0 pauodal s}08)ep JO JaquinN ay) aulwia}ep o] Id1
"JNO pallIBd 8dueuUsjUBW
wXooL/e’s wx00L/8's wxo0L/8v w)ooL/ee woo0L/L'8 | wooL/vCl aAnejuanald Jo [9As)
‘swie|o Ajjqel pue awibaJ uonoadsul
wMGLEZ unpyeg w06/ WGy wzyz | 21gnd jo Jaquinu "}I0M}BU PEO. Ayajes Jo ssauisngou
swiep Gg| swied Ot swiep 9z swiep 6¢ swiep Q¢ | uruononpal Jeak | jo wyQQ| Jod paAiedal swied pue SSauaAoays €
uo Jeak aas 0| Ajnigen ongnd jo JaquinN ay) aulwia}ep o] Id1
"8ouBUSUIBW
aAnoeal
uo juads 19b6pnq ‘paJinbai aoueusjuleWw
%8¢ %L'CY %L 'S¥ %9 %8°9€ %V'9€ anuaAal Jo 9, 9AI}0Bal JO |9A9] 3Y)
ul uoionpal JeaA "186pnq anuanal uo UB|d 90UBUSJUIE\ BU} Z
uo Jeak aas 0| JO 9, se siledas aAjoeayY | 1O 10819 8y} sulwIB}ep O] Id1
‘Ajajes peol 0} spiebal
‘Aep Bupjom yum uonebijgo Aiojnjers
Xau ay} jo pus SH s|ijny [IoUNOD By
ay} Aq syoe4ep jeyy Jsplo ul yum jjesp pue
%G6 %68 %¢€8 %68 %S6 %68 | A1oBoyed ‘Rep Bupjiom jxau payijuspl aJe sissn speol
pauodal 8y} Jo pud ay} Aq pasiedal | 03 pJezey e juasaid yoiym L
|le 0} puodsai 0] sjo8jep | AlobaleD Jo 9, |  s108)8p ||B Jey) ainsus 0] Id1
TIVd3A0 1?1 IMVIN o%4 T8H jabuey
90/5002 G002 G002 G002 G002 G002 aduewlolad Jojedipu] ON
jobue) 1v002 1r002 /¥002 1¥002 1v002 1e207 9duew.oliad |ed07] aAalqo Id
sjebie | pue s.iojedipul 8oUBWIOLS
D Xipuaddy ue|d Juswabeue|) }asSy pue adueudjule|\ speoy

¢ XIANAddV




Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117 Agenda Iltem 8

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 9 DECEMBER 2005

RECENT EXTERNAL AUDIT ISSUED REPORTS 2004 — 2005.

1. SUMMARY
This report contains the executive summary and action plan for new reports issued by
Audit Scotland since the last Audit Committee. Where Internal Audit has performed a
review of the progress made by management in implementing report recommendations,
this has been reported below. (See Appendix 1). These reports will be incorporated into
the reporting system for the next Audit Committee.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  In August 2005, Audit Scotland issued a report entitled “Business Continuity
Planning Review”. The audit covered, business continuity planning
implementation and operation within the Council. The Action Plan, which
accompanies the report, details 3 recommendations for action. The first
recommendation has 3 progress dates with the main date being January 2006.
Internal Audit can report that progress is being made with this recommendation. A
report covering the Council response to a pandemic flu outbreak was approved by
the Strategic Management Team (SMT) on the 30" of August 2005. Progress
continues with the remaining actions within this recommendation.

3.2 The remaining 2 recommendations contained in the Action Plan have been
assigned the status “Ongoing”. As at the 31* of October 2005, management have
advised Internal Audit that implementation of these recommendations is
progressing. The Executive Summary and Action Plan are given in Appendix 1.

3.3  In November 2005, Audit Scotland issued a report entitled “Financial Strategy”.
The general findings of the audit were that the Council has sound arrangements in
place in many areas for determining financial strategy although some key
arrangements have yet to be developed. The Action Plan accompanying the report
details 8 recommendations. Five recommendations have implementation dates of
between January 2006 and March 2007. Three recommendations are to be in place
for the 2007 — 08 budget cycle. The Executive Summary and Action Plan are
given in Appendix 2.

3.4  Atthe end of November 2005, Audit Scotland issued a report entitled “Following
the Public Pound”. The overall conclusion from the audit was that the Council
demonstrated compliance with a number of aspects of the code of practice in
relation to its dealings with arms length external organisations (ALEOs). The
Action Plan accompanying the report lists 18 recommendations. In terms of
priority assigned to report recommendations, 2 are considered high and 16 of
medium priority.



3.5

5.1
52
53
54

5.5

Page 118

The Council response to the report recommendations was that a working group
would be set up to address the recommendations. One outcome from the group
will be a completed Action Plan that lists responsibilities with implementation
dates. In this knowledge Audit Scotland has finalised and issued their report. Audit
Scotland will follow up progress as part of their 2005/06 audit. The Executive
Summary and Action Plan are given in Appendix 3. Internal Audit will provide
support to the working group in addressing the recommendations. Audit Scotland
has indicated that in their national report on Scottish Authority compliance with
the code, Argyll & Bute has been noted for displaying good practice in 2
categories.

CONCLUSIONS

Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal
Audit.

IMPLICATIONS

Policy: None
Financial: None
Personnel: None
Legal: None
Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Tan Nisbet

Internal Audit Manager 1 December 2005
1 Decfinalreport] Dec



Page 119

Argyll & Bute Council — 2004/05 Audit
Business Continuity Planning Review APPENDIX 1

Executive Summary

As part of our 2004/05 audit we have carried out an overview of the Council’s
arrangements for business continuity planning.

The main areas covered by our audit were:

. the operation of a business continuity planning framework;
. the approach to business continuity planning and development; and

. the implementation, testing and maintenance of business continuity plans.

Conclusion

3.

We found that the Council recognises the importance of addressing business continuity
planning. The Strategic Risk Management and Governance Group was established as
a Sub-Group of the Strategic Management Team with a representative at Head of
Service/third tier level from each department together with representatives from
Corporate, Health & Safety Services, Insurance, Purchasing, Legal Services, Internal
Audit, Strategic Finance and Information Security (IT and Financial Services) and the
Council’s Insurers. The group initiated the business continuity planning process.
Initially, the group are focusing on arrangements to ensure effective Council services
can be provided in case of a pandemic influenza epidemic. The group is considering
widening the scope of this work to include addressing other operational risks faced by
the Council.

The group’s remit includes updating the Council’s risk register and overseeing the
formation of Loss Control Groups. Loss Control Groups were established within each
department and are charged with the responsibility for continuing to develop responses
to operational risk issues claims. They will report quarterly to the Strategic Risk
Management and Governance Group on progress as a means of sharing best practice.
These groups will review the risk registers, identify key risk categories such as
financial, human, operational and legal and will cascade information to staff within their
respective departments.

Main audit findings

5.

The Strategic Risk Management and Governance Group are supervising the
development of a business continuity plan. The group is aware of the need to expand
the scope of the current exercise which is focusing on the risks associated with a
pandemic influenza epidemic, to cover other operational risks and to minimise the
impact should these risks occur.

The main findings from audit were:

. scope of the current business continuity exercise should be expanded to include
other risks;

. the Council should ensure that sufficient resources are assigned to the project to
complete the tasks identified in the project plan to the agreed timetable; and

August 2005 1 Audit Services-Audit Scotland



Page 120

Argyll & Bute Council — 2004/05 Audit
Business Continuity Planning Review APPENDIX 1

. during the course of a business continuity planning exercise the Council may
identify issues affecting several departments; these issues should be addressed
across the Council rather than individual departments developing their own plans
in isolation.

Management action

7.

10.

Detailed recommendations on those areas where controls could be improved are noted
in the action plan that follows. The action plan also describes under the ‘risk exposure’
column the possible consequences of our audit finding. The factual accuracy of the
report and the timescales for implementing our recommendations has been agreed with
officers.

This report to management sets out our findings from the review carried out. The
weaknesses outlined are only those which have come to our attention during the
course of our normal audit work and are not necessarily, therefore, all of the
weaknesses which may exist.

Although we include a number of specific recommendations in this report to strengthen
internal control, it is the responsibility of management to determine the extent of the
internal control system appropriate to the Council. We would stress, however, that an
effective internal control system is an essential part of the efficient management of any
organisation.

The assistance and co-operation we received during the course of our audit is gratefully
acknowledged.

August 2005 2 Audit Services-Audit Scotland



Page 121

PUEJ0OS JIPNY-SSOIAISS JIPNY

G00z 1snbny

900z Aenuer :9)eq
Jabeueiy YSIY pue 92UBUIDAOL)
:Aqisuodsay

'90/90/1€ Aq Aeid ajol Aq dse}
0] 109[gns aq [m ueld uonoe
d0g9 @yl 90/L/Le Aq sysu
ajendoidde [je apnjoul 0] Lodal
dod 8y} puedxs M ONYH
9yl °"1INS @8y Aq penoidde

pue G0/80/0¢ Aq pele|dwod sem
ny olwepued e 1o} 409 9yl

:uonoy

ybiH : oLy

"SYSl
[euonelsado Jayjo bBuissalppe
J0} uoisinold By apnpoul
0} papuedxs aq |Im AUNuURUOD
ssauisng Joj} saniAoe dnolo
90UBUISAOL) pue juswabeuep
ySiy o169)e.1S oy} Jo 8doos ay|

"108dxa suaz|io s
}ey} SO2IAISS JO [9A8| By} JOAIIBP
0} JNdYIp I pulj |iim [IOUNOD
ay) oaoeyd ul sued Aununuoo
ssauisnq Jadoud 1NOYUAN
‘Iouno) 8y} Buioey sysu ulew
ay} Jo Auew 1an09 jou op sugld
Ajnunuod  ssauisng  jualin)

olwapids ezuanjul olwspued
e Joj suejd Aununiuod ssauisng
Jo jJuswdojaasp 8y} pasinledns
pue sdnois |0JjJu0) SSO7 8y} Jo
uoljew.o} ay) mesiono ‘ioisibal
ysu e poonpoisd dnoib siyj
ysu Buibeuew Joy 8|qisuodsal
SI Yyolym ‘dnois) 8ouUBUIBAOLD
pue wswabeuey NN
olbelens e dn-}@s 1oun0) By

9jeq
pue Ajiqisuodsay uonoy

uoIEPUSWWOIDY

ainsodx3 ysiy

Buipuig ypny

‘ON

ue|d uonoy

I XIAN3IddV

M3IADY Buluue|d Aynunuon ssauisng
3PNy G0/#00Z — ['2uno) ang @ ||ABi1y




Page 122

PUEJ0OS JIPNY-SSOIAISS JIPNY

G00z 1snbny

Buiob-uQ :93eq
Jobeue|\ YSIYy pue 92UBUISAOL)
:Aqisuodsay

"sanss| yons

‘uone|osi ul suejd umo Ji1ayy bui
-dojonap sjuswiedap [enplAlpul

aAj0sal 0} yoeoudde sjelodiod Mm%o e LMMMMML b U_H_mocmmo ol :om%wg
Mgmm_.mww_uw M__R,o MM_MB%MMOD_MMM ybBiH : MLoLd '$90IN0Sa1 | SONSS| - 9say}  'sjuauIedap
mmL 499 o 10 uonEjuswedul A T paisem pue Hoye jo uoneoldnp | [eioass Bunjoaye sanssi Ajuapl
d uome aul ‘'s@ouallodxe aJeys pue sysu | 0} pes| Uued  [IDUNOD By} | Aew  IDUNOD By}  BSIDIaXd
ou 1o} UE| uoh Ul [euoneltado uowwod ssalppe 0] | Buloe) sanss| Jopim ssaippe 0] | Buluueld  Aunupuod  ssauisng
:uonay | Jeyieboy yiom |im syuswiiedaq | Buliey pue Buiuueld aanosyeul | 8yy Jo  8sinod eyl Buung o
Buiob-uQ :93eq
Jabeuey YSIY pue 92UBUIDAOL) ‘ueid AunuRuod
:Aypqisuodsay ssauisng ay} ajelauab djpy o}
-sued ay) Bumaua sossa00ld ssauisng aAnoadsal
pue Bupse} pue  Buluel 39U} Jo abpajmou| JUSIOIYNS YIM
: BUIOB JJBl1S 9|gejieAe ayew 0} |Iounod)
0} SjuUBWIWIWOD uiobuo . oyl um  Sjuewpedep (e
ayl Jayealay} pue ued oy ybiy : MLoLg 10] AIBSS508U 94 [[IM )l PABONS
j0 co%m_ano _m:_c_cmﬁ 141N} 0} ‘ue|d 109foid ay) 0] ueid ay} Jo4 ‘ued Aunupuod
mmﬂwwcw_ MW_WQMMH_S%L mww_%wm ul payiuap! sysej ay) a19|dwod ‘Jow aq | ssauisng 8y} oonpoid 0}
0o, payse oq [m ._._>_m\ m\c._. 0} 108loud oy 03 peaubisse | 01 APyun ase dnosb AuNuRUOD | |1IDUNOY By} JO seale Auew WOy
: ale $921Nn0sal uaI1oIYNs | ssauisng a8y} Jo saAnoalqo ay) | indul salinbal asiolexa Buluueld
:UoNIY | 1BY} BINSUS [IM [IOUNOD BYJ | ‘S@ainosal  JusIYNS  INOYNAA | Alnuizuoo ssauisng ayl z
ajeq
pue Ajjiqisuodsay uonoy uoIEpPUBWIIOIDY ainsodx3 ysiy Buipui4 Jpny "ON

I XIAN3IddV

M3IADY Buluue|d Aynunuon ssauisng
3PNy G0/#00Z — ['2uno) ang @ ||ABi1y




/
Page 123 | /

Argyll & Bute Council 2004/05 APPENDIX 2| /

Financial Strategy \\\
Executive summary =4

1. In 2005/06 Argyll & Bute Council will manage a revenue budget of £149 million, with
long term borrowing, as at 31 March 2005, of £194 million and short term borrowing of
£4.5 million.

2.  The Council has sound arrangements in place in many areas for determining financial
strategy although some key arrangements have yet to be developed. These are noted
below. Overall conclusions are that the Council:

 operates a budgeting system that is independent of the council’s corporate
objectives. Although the annual service plans include a limited amount of financial
detail, there is no attempt to align resources to priorities;

. has developed an approach to ensuring the sustainability of its spending decisions
although this focuses on the short to medium term but is limited in relation to
longer term sustainability. This development would be strengthened by the
implementation of the new asset management strategy which was approved by the
Council in April 2005 but has been delayed from 2006 to 2007;

. has demonstrated a relatively pro-active approach to assisting elected members
and managers to be effective financial managers and has recognised the need to
enhance budget monitoring procedures and to provide budget holder training;

. has sound foundations of budgetary control and treasury management on which to
build and develop the financial strategy.

3. The Council has identified its top three financial risks as:

. requirement for investment in council assets;

e pressure on pay costs through affordability of pensions and single status/job
evaluation; and

»  cost of maintaining services in remote, rural and island areas.

4. The Council has well developed procedures in most areas covered by this study.
Examples of particularly good practice already in place include:

» regular, and structured, reporting of material revenue budget variances to both
senior management and members;

. usable reserves which are held for a clear purpose in support of the overall
financial strategy;

*  bi-annual monitoring of progress toward targets established in the corporate plan;
» the establishment of a community planning partnership which operates on both a
pan Argyll and Bute as well as an area basis, obtaining views and feedback from

residents and incorporates these into area plans through the identification of key
themes and priorities; and

e quarterly reporting of service performance to the Strategic Management Team.

1



/
Page 124 | /

Argyll & Bute Council 2004/05 APPENDIX 2 /

Financial Strategy \

5.  Key areas where we consider that arrangements could be further improved include the \\/
need for: —

e clearer links between the overall corporate plan and the individual service plans,
and costing of objectives at a service plan level and reporting thereon;

* a more consistent approach to budget setting and monitoring which is practical for
all service areas. We acknowledge that there is currently a plan to roll out the
principles of a approach in operation within the Community Services Department
and we further recognise that these arrangements need to take account of the
different nature of operations within each department; and

o timely implementation of the recently approved asset management strategy to
ensure capital investment decisions are soundly based.

6. A number of reports have been produced recently highlighting good practice in financial
strategy, including the Controller of Audit's ‘Overview of the local authority accounts
2004’, the Audit Commission’s ‘Improvement through better financial management’ and
CIPFA’s framework/model on ‘Improving financial management in public services’.
These documents provide useful benchmarks on best practice and the Council should
review its own progress against these benchmarks on a regular basis.



Page 125

‘'sjabpnq jejdes pue anuanau
aY) uo paysijqe}ss uopedojje 821nosal
9y} yjm auli| uj paysod aq pjnoys suejd

99IAIBS 9y} ul saway) Aa)] :uoepuUdWWOIdY
‘pojeoo|e usaq arey

$82.nosa. sjeldoidde pue sjenbape Jayjaym
SSOSSk 0] 8/qe Jou vi0jal8y) pue saAljoalqo
82INIBS [enpIAlpUl JO suonedljdwi [eroueuly

oy} Jo aieme Ajnj oq Jou Aew siaquuapy XSy

"SBI}IAIJOB |9A8] 92IAISS |enplAIpUl JO Bulsoo uey)

91942 126pnq Jayjel jabpng |10}, UO SNJ0J B JO aI0W SI alay |
80-2002 ‘Aemuapun Apealje S| sosI0Iaxd aoueul4 ‘sy9bpnq |eyided pue anuanal ay} yym paelbsul
Joj aoe(d U Buiuueld 196pnq pue soinlas ubije o) 198foid v | o1691e11S JO pERAH Ales|o 10u aJe sue|d 991AI18S pue 9)elodio) 'z
"1LINS 8y} O} papiwgns 8q [[IM "saApoa/qo
suodau ssaiboud Jeinbay -ueid 108loud ayy yum aje40d.109 [[esaA0 ay) Buiralyde piemo)
aul| Ul paoONpU0o9 aq |IIM aseyd yoes Jo uonenjeAa] aInqLuUo9 saway) Aay ay) moy ajedipul ALieajd
-5dS PUE LIS o1 A panoidde ued pinoys suejd a2iA18S (UOCEPUBWILWIOIDY
£ 1998l0ud ayj ul paalbe se ‘saseyd ul pajuswajdwi ‘[1ouUNoY
90/ A9 aq [|IM YJomawel) Juswabeue|y aouewlopad ay | 8y} Jo sanljoalqo Jjeseno ayj 0} buinqluoo
HonsIueLeIdu 'SOA05[G0 S0IAISS PUE 8)e10dI0D seale m%\.ﬂwmm%bmwﬂw,w::\wmm: mm\,,w%wm m_ m:.ctoa m\gm
s0/z1 Aq usamlaq SYUl| ale a1y} 8INSUd ||IM JUBWNJ0P . [enpiApUl 1EY) r 7oy ey L Sl
2dS pue JINS SIyl “Jomawel juswabeuel\ aouewlouad ‘sue|d 921AI8S |ENPIAIPUI Ul PBYSI|gR)}Sd Saway)
Aq panoidde s [1ouno) a8y} jo Jed se dew Abajelis sjelodiod | uebeuelp ABsjens A8y ay] pue ue|d 8)e10dI09 ||BJOAO B} Ul 1IN0 18S
ued 109loig e Buidojonap Apualiing ae Abajens pue Aoljod pue Aoljod SOAN09[go ay) usamiaq syulj Jesjp ou ale aldyl | |
salbaje.ys ajeio0diod yjim abeyui
199140
ajep uonoy uonjoe paaibe @ asuodsay a|qisuodsay uoljepudawwoddl R Ysi ‘anss| | 'ON

ue|d uonoy




Page 126

9042 186pnq

80-200¢
Joy aoe|d u|

‘sosinold Buiuueld esay ubie

0} Aemuspun Apualing j09loud ayy wody sebisws
1ey) ssaoo0ud Buiuue|d 126png pue a2iAI8S 8y} Ojul
1Ing a9 |m Buiaes sieaA aininy Jo AjljigeAsiyoe
pue joedwi 8y} JopIsuod 0} Juswalinbal v

aoueUIl4
o169)e)S JO pesH

Joedwi siy) asiwiuiw

0} 190 Ul [9A3] BDIAISS B Je pauluLIv)ap
sbuines Aoualolyo ajqeralyse pue paiapisuod
aq pinoys deb buipuny ajeisodiod pajoafoid
ay} jo joeduwi jenpuajod oy :UOHHEPUBWIUWIOIDNY

‘suoinjoefoid anusnal oijsijeal Uo paseq Ajpunos
Jou 8jqeurejsns pue ajqepJioye aq jou Aew
soAoalqo ajeiodiod wiia) Buoj 0] wnipsyy Xsiy

'sieaA ainmny ur deb Buipuny ay} Jo

10edwi ay) Ajpuapi 0} Jdwene ou usaq sey alay}
196pnq 90/500Z @Y} Hoddns 0} |oA8| 82IAISS B

1e payjuapl usaq aAey SBUIABS JS[IUM [9AS] SpIM
[1ounod e je deb Buipuny aje10dioo e paliuapl
aney 80/.00¢ Pue £0/900z 4o} s}obpnq pajosloid

9042 186png

80-2002
Joj 9oe|d u|

‘sasioloxa buluueld 196png pue
2oIA18s ubije 0] 109(oid ay) Jo Led se padojonap
aq |m |opow Buluued jeroueuly wis} Jabuo) y

aoueul
o169)e.S Jo peaH

‘sonssj oyroads

404 Buijjapow pue suoijoafoud sajeiodiooul
yaiym bujuueyd jeroueuly wao) sobuoj dojarsp
pINoys [19UnNo) aYy ] :UoepuUdWWOIY

‘uozioy

Bunebpnq Jesh-ea.y) ay) puokeq senioslqo
analyoe 0} AjljIge ay) JoLSal pinod SUoISIap
Buipuads snoina.id jo suoneaydwi wisj-18buoj
8y} josloid 0} ainjiej JOABMOH S)UBLLIB[)OS
[eroueul wiey poys Jo jybil ayy ui yndiyip

s1 buiuueid wus) Buoy jey) paesiubooa. si } XSiy

‘uozuoy Bunebpnq Jeak-aaliy)
e 0] pajouysal Ajjesauab s| Buluued wis) Buo

Aypqeureysng

ajep uonoy

uonoe paaibe g asuodsay

199130
a|qisuodsay

UOIJEPUSWIWODIAI @ YSII ‘ONSS|

\




Page 127

‘'sanssl |eloueuly uo swwelbolud Juswdojaasap

aoueul

‘uopnesjueb.io ay) ssoloe

ooejd ul asniadxa [eloueulj oy} Jo Mmalnal
Jeinba. e ayepiopun pue sanssj [ejoueuly uo
buiuresy pue Juswdojanrap yejs jo awweibosd
painjanJys pue buinuiuod e aanpoJjul
pInoys [19Unoy) ay | :UonepudW W o9y

‘Juswabeuew [eloueul) aAIJO8Ye
Joddns o) esipadxa jeloueuly jo Sjona] buijsixe
8y} urejurew o} ajqeun aq Aew [10UN0Y aY :XSly

‘panoiduw
Jayuny aq p|inod uonesiuebio sy} Ssoloe SIS

900Z aunr 0¢ Jeis painjonas pue Buinunuod e dojeaeq | o169)e4)S JO peoH |leroueuly Buidojansp o} yoeoudde s [1ouno) ay | 9
diysiapes| jeuabeuew pue [eai3ijod
‘uonejuawaldwy
sy uil Aejop sayping Aue asnwuiw
‘ssalboud 0} udye) aJle sainseaw pue AyioLd jo iopew
JOJlUOW [|IM SJaquiaw S}l puB J0) 93)1IWW0o)) e se pajeau) sI Abaje)s yuswabeuew josse
1PNy 8y 0] pajussald aq [|Im a|gelawi] SIy | oy} jo uonejuswajdwi 8y :UCREPUIWIWIOINY
500z 9187 swajsAs Joyndwon -G ‘AbBaje.js 8)210d.100 ||BI8N0 8Y)
) Y}IM JUB}SISUOD 10 paseq A|punos jou aie yaiym
200z Aue3 lesieidde suondo ¥ apelw aq Aew SUOISIOBP JUBWISAAUI [e)iden) XSy
900¢ 8¥ET osnjessy ¢ *J00Z O} PAPUSIXd USaq 9oUIS SBY 9|easall}
900Z PIIN sbunsoo pue suonipuo) ‘g Sy} JeAnemoy 900z Ul payuswa|dwi aq o0} pasodoud
) Ajleuibuo sem ABsjedis syl 'g00z |Udy Ul [1ouno)
90 Asenuer 409y sseudjeldwod | ayl Aq panoudde sem ABajedis ay| -Abejens
:saseyd oAl wloj [Im ABajens Juswebeuew jasse ue Jo uoieuswadwi
Juswabeuew jasse ay) Jo uoneyuswaldwi ay | ay} pJemo} Buiyiom Ajjualing ale |IDuUno) ay | S
1391y}0
ajep uonoy uonjoe paalibe @ asuodsay a|qisuodsay uoljepusawiwoddl R Ysil ‘anss| | "ON

\




Page 128

900¢ 8unr O¢

‘slop|oy 196pnq 1o} Buiuiedy
Y}IM SB2IAISBS ||B 0} IN0 pajjoJ 8q 0} Bulojuow
196pnq 821A18g Ajlunwiwo) Jo sajdiduuyg

aoueul
olBelel]S Jo pesH

3y} JO ainjeu Jualaylp 8y} JO JUNOJOe aye)

0] poaU B a( [|IM alay) 1ey} ‘Jenamoy ‘pasiubooal
SI}] 's@2IAeg Ajlunwwo) Agq pajdope Apualind
yoeoudde ayp 1n0 ||04 O} SI BAI93[qO ||BJono

ay] -Buiuies Jopjoy 186png Jo uoisinoid ay) os|e
pue Buuojuow pue Bumes 196pnq 0} yoeoidde
JUS]SISUOD BPIM BDIAIBS B JO uoljeyuswaldwl

ay} 0} bune|al [1PUNOY dY} UIYIM play

u@aq aAeY suoissnosip Aleulwiald “sjuswyedsp
90IAISS S,|1ouno) 8y} Jnoybnouy) [013U0D
Aieyabpnq 01 yoeolidde paliea e Ajjualind sl alay |

£00C YIe L€

‘uoneyuswsa|dwi ||} 840)9q

Bunojid pue juswdojanap Jo poliad e apnjoul

AN -Buluued 196png pue ao1ales Jo Juswubije
1e Bunjoo| dnoub Aq 1no paLIed yiom wol) abiswe
[IIM pue ue[d uoljoe anjeA 1sag Jelp ul papnjou|

aoueul
oi169)ens Jo peaH

‘'SyJewiyosuaq 4o syab.ie}

jsurebe asuew.opiod pue ‘pusi) o) uonejal ul
Alieinanaed yuswoabeuew Joiuas pue sioquiawl
03} Bunuodal 1oy spuswaainbai wnwiuiw ay)
Ap10ads pinoys siyy ‘j1ounos ayy Aq paydope
aq pinoys buniodal asuew.iopiad pue jeroueuly
0} yoeoidde pajeibajul uy UOCREPUBWIUIOIDY

‘ajo4 Aunnios

J1ey) wuopad Ajejenbape 0} uonewLIojul JUBIOIYNS
yum paiiddns jou aie siaquisyy ‘S82.N0Sa.

JO 8Sn ul anjeA }saq 0} 8)nqLiuo9 jou Aew

pue dA1}9840 Jou SI BuLIOjIUOW 82UBWIOLS XSIY

‘siaquiswl
ay} 0} pauodad s| ssalboud ue|d e1esodio)
siseq |enuue-iq e UQ ‘juswabeuew Jojuas

0} payodal Ajuo si Buniodas esuewsopad is|iym
sleqwaw pue juswabeuew Jojuas 0} payodal si
Buliojiuow |eroueul{ “Aj@jeledss payodal Ajualind
aJe Buuoyjuow souewlopad pue |eloueul

BuliojluoWw pue uoljewWLIOUI [BIDURUIS

ajep uonoy

uonoe paaibe g asuodsay

199130
a|qisuodsay

UOIJEPUSWIWODIAI @ YSII ‘ONSS|

\




Page 129

‘ssaoo0.d ayj} buirosduwir

Jayjiny Je pawie S| uojepuawiwioddd siy} jey)
pue aAnosayae si joyuod Aieyabpnq o) yoeoudde
jua.LInd ayj jey) pasiubooau s1 )] -yoeoidde
Sy} jo uonejuswoaldwi ay) uo sajeasawin)
Jewoy Bunyas 1apisuod pjnoys pue aauepinb
Aay jo Jno jjoi ay} pue Buiures Japjoy 3obpnq
Jo uoisinoud ayj) piemoy} uejd o} anunuod
pINoys [19Uno) 8y :UORepPUdWIWOIDY

‘yoreo.idde jusjsisuod
e pue aauepinb ‘syis ejeldoidde jo soussqe
8Y) ul pauayeam aq pnoa [0.3uod Aiejebpng :ySIy

"Jeak |epueuly
90/500¢ ®U} Jo Ja)enb puooss auy) ul Ino |joJ [emul
ue 1o} papuajul SI JI JoASMOY YSE} SIU} 0} pajeoo|e

usa(q aAeY So|eISaWl} [ewloj oN “sainpaoold
pue so|nJ Jo }as pibu e uey} Jayjel saulepinb
pue sajdiould Aoy Juswajdwi 0} papusjul

S|}l 810J818Y] "SO2IAIBS BY]} JO yoes ul suoljesado

ajep uonoy

uonoe paaibe g asuodsay

199130
a|qisuodsay

UOIJEPUSWIWODIAI @ YSII ‘ONSS|

‘ON

\
/ \ ,ﬁ
\ /




Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



Executive summary

Overall conclusions

We consider that the Council has demonstrated compliance with a number of aspects of the code
of practice in relation to its dealings with arms length external organisations (ALEOSs).

Main strengths

The Council has a variety of effective arrangements in place. These include:

) standard Grant Application forms and contracts

. detailed service level agreements, of a standard format. These include target outcomes for
objectives which are drawn up in respect of higher level funding agreements

. adequate vetting and regular monitoring procedures.

Areas for improvement

We consider, however, that the following areas merit renewed management attention:

. the decision to award funding is purely a “political” one. Our review established that there is
no pre-determined, clear or transparent scoring methodology or option appraisal process
which ensures that the Council’s objectives are best served by a particular organisation or to
ensure an optimum balance of funded organisations which serve individual sub-objectives

. officers involved in dealing with ALEOs currently receive no training in this area

o many organisations do not require to adhere to a given timetable for achievement of
objectives

. there is no central quality control operated to oversee the monitoring process

. there is no central point of knowledge in relation to grants in the council

o a number of key areas could be clarified through additional policy initiatives. These include :

) the standing orders do not currently outline the approvals process

o there is no policy outlining situations where it is appropriate for officers or members to act on
an ALEO

o I)hered is no policy which outlines minimum skills requirements for staff acting on ALEO

oards.

Marnagement action

An action plan contained within this report details areas where improvement could be achieved.
The contents of this report have been discussed with relevant officers to confirm factual accuracy.
The assistance and co-operation we received during the course of our audit is gratefully
acknowledged.

David Jamieson
Senior Audit Manager
September 2005



ybiH

‘pauie)qo si suolesiuebio Jo sadhy
JOo @ouejeq wnwido ue ey} ainsus o)
pauiwislapaid ag osje pjnoys seAnasiqo
-qns oyads 1o} sunowe Buipung

'ssao0.d Bupjew
uoisioep 8y} o) Aousiedsues; apinosd
0] I8pio Ul ‘S8Ald9[go [|BJoAO S |IoUNno)
ayl yum 1y Asy} }seq moy jo swue Ul
suoneoijdde juelb Bunoos jo ABojopoyiaw
e dojgAsp 0} %99S pINoys |IounoD a8y

Page 132

A4

wnipajy

‘sysenbau Buipuny Joy Ajuoyine Alojnjels
8y} Jnoge Jes|o ale sjueo|dde pue siaolyo
‘siequiswl Jey} ainsus |im siyj “parosdde
pue Joj peydde s; jueiS 8y} yoiym
Japun sismod Alojnjejs sjeudoldde sy) 0}
adualaal Ulejuoo siepa| jeaotdde Buipuny
pue suodas espiwwod ‘syoed uonesiidde
juelb jeyy eunsus pjnoys PUNOD ByJ

'SOFTV 0} spuny Buluisjsues) 10} suOseal s)1 INoge Jes|o Si [IouNnod ay} :esoding | ajdiouild

ue|d uonoy




*19]0BJBUO PUNOS JO 8.1 S{enpIAIpUl UMOUY
jey} pue soeyd ui s| ainonys ajeudosdde
ue jey} ainsus 0} suonesiuebio papuny
Jo uonisodwoo juswoebeuew Jo sjiejep
Bunsenbal Jopisuod pnoys |1ouno)d syl

(g1 "ou ue|d uoioe yyim uonesidnp 9joN)

"louno) 8y} 0} 3s09 jeroueul dqissod
Aue jusasid o0} Jeplo ul ‘uonesiuebio
pepun} a8y} Jjo Aujqisuodsas  8jos
ay) ale swie Jo Ayjqel Aue jey} seiels
UoIUM JOBHUOD pIEpUE)S 8Y) Ul asnejo e Jo
UoISN|OUl 8Y} JBPISUOD pINOYS |1IdUNoY ay |

Page 133

‘pajjouod
pue pessaippe  Ajpjeudoisdde  oq
uBd SHSi 9S8y} 1By} ainsus 0} wsiueyoalu
[ewlto; e opmosd [m syl esibal
ysu ajelodiod ayy Buidojeasp ul unoooe
OJul U®ME} pue passasse ‘payiuspl
aie suonesjuebio Aiejunjon o} Bupeal
S)SIl || JBey} ainsus p|noys [1ounod) syl

-a0ejd Ul swibai Juswebeuew [BIoUBUL }SNJOI PUE JBo & sey

[ilounod ay} :awbai eidueul :Z ajdiould

‘Buipuny
elb jo j0edses ul ssaoold [eaoidde say)
sauiino Apes|o ‘suonenbau jepueuly pue
slopio Buipuels sy} aoejdals 0y padojonsp
Buleq Apussaid ‘JUSWNIOP UOIN}HISUOD
8y} 1Byl aunsus pjnoys 1Iouno) ayj




ubiH

‘POAIBD3I Usaq
aABY SjUNooSoe jenuue pue suodal juelb
Jo pus ‘spodas Buuopuow usym piodal
0} peppe g OS[e P|nod spdl Joyung
"gjiejep joejuod Auosialedns pue sjunowe
Buipun} pancidde jo sjiejap piodal O} pasn
aq pinoo yoiym ‘Burpuny jueib o} uoneel
ur sseqgelep obpsmouy |ejued B O
uoljealo 8y} JepIsuod pnoys {lounod syl

33

wnIpajy

‘uoIsusWIp [0Jjuod
Aljenb e apiaoid 0} Japio Ul [IDUNOD 8Y)
ssosoe soejd ul ssaooud Bunojuow ay)
Buimalnel J8pISUOD pjnoys [Iounod 8yl

ol

Page 134

wnipapy

"Jeuwlio} 8Siou0d B Uf Uofjew.loju Jo
junowe palinbal ayy Aiddns suonesiuebio
Jeyy ednsue 0} Jepio Ul Jodal
welb Jeak Jo pus 8y} Jo} (IOUNOD BY)
Aq pasinep aq pinoys sjejdwa) piepue)ls vy

wnipapy

'SO3 1V 0} uoiie|al
ul ale ssoljod [1OUNOD jeum Ajoexs
j0o sieme ale suopesiuebio yoiym Aq
wisiueyosaU e apiaoid pinoys 1ouno) syl

SOV Ui

m diysuonejel sy Buuonuow 1oy sjuswiabuelle jsngols sey [1ounocd auy :Buniojiuoly ¢ ajdiound

winipajy

SOOIV
yim Buiesp ui paajoAul  siaoyjo  Aq
asn .o} jenuew aouepinb e jo uoneledaid
|8y} JopIsSucd  pinoys  |Iouno) 8yj




wnipey

‘O3 TV 8yl pue [Punoy
ay} yog o} saniiqisuodsal aAljoadsal

Jay)  puejsiepun  Aeyl ey} ainsus
0} SOV Uim Buijesp ui paAJOAUL SISDIJO
jle o} pepinoid aq pinoys Buiulesy jewuod

Gl

wnipsiy

'ssassod pjnoys sO3J TV Uo |Iounod
ay) Bunussaidal o} s|gisuodsal SI8dIYO
yoiym opesd pue oousuedxs ‘s|is
JO JusWwaNbal wnwiuIW B SBUlINo YyoIym
Aoljod jewo} B 9SIASp PINOYS [IDUN0D 8yl

147

Page 135

St oo

wnipspy

"wea}
Juswsebeuew Jo pieoq 8y} O} sisquiawl 1o
sJa01j0 Julodde 0} suswalinbal s jlouno)
ay} lJoy uoisinoid epnjoul 0} papuswe
8q pinoys sjuswoaliby [oA8T 90IAIBS

€l

wnipaly

‘pepincid aq pjnoys yaiym poddns
JO jJunowe 8y} uo suofollsal apinold pue
POAIOAUI SBJ01 JoBX@ 8y} aulpno Apes|o
pinoys Aojjod 8yl 'O3FTV ue jo pleoq
10 wes} Juswabeuew sy 0} pajuiodde aq
0} sJ9o1)j0 Jo siequiawl Joj ajeudoidde aq
PINOM }I BI8UM SUOENYS 8U]} Slilep Yoiym
Aoljod |[euLIo) B 9SIASP PINOYS |10UN0D 8y L

cl

SGEAST

“loUN09 8y} Jo SeAnYalqo sy} 0} pieBal anp yum saniqisuodsal Jisyy ableyosip
soAejuesaidal pue ‘sQIY UO uojejusseldal Jequisw o Jedljo Aue jo esodind ey) Jnoge Jesjo si Iounod By} :uonejuasaiday :p 9jdiound




‘gpeuwl suolepusluliodst ON

‘JIpne [eula)xs Aq sseooe ajge}ins 1o} sjuswabuele seyeuw |Iounod sy} :Ajjiqe3unody g ajdiouild

Page 136

wnipoy

(g ~ou ueld uonoe yym uonesiidnp ajoN)

"[IoUN0Y) 8y} 0} }SO9 [eidueUl
Aue jusnsid 0} leplo uj ‘uonesiueblo
pepunj 9y} Jo Ajjgisuodsal  9|0S
8y} aie swie Jo Ayjiqey Aue jey} sejels
UoIym JOBLIUOD pJBpUB)S 8Y} Ul 8Shejo B Jo
uoISN|oUl 8y} JOpPISUOD pInoys [Iounod ayl

8L

wnipajy

"saA1}08(qo ejels0diod s jiouno)
84} JO JuswanaIyoe 8y} 0} SNGIUCD asay)
1By} ainsus 0O} Jeplo Ul a|qejswl) pasibe
pauiwlaiapald B Uiyim SaAioalqo ansiyoe
0] palinbas aie sadiAles oywads apinoid
0} Buipun} 8AI8o81 yoiym suolesiuebio
Jey} ainsus 0} %88sS pjnoys [1ouno) ayl

Ll

"'SOA}09[qo s} Jo

JUSLIBABIYOR 8Uj} JoJ Bgejawll) B UMOp sAg| Iounco ey} ‘OF TV Ue UiM jusuwijwiwos Buipuny jenuesgns e ojul Buusius ul :suonepwi :§ ajdioulid

wnipsiy

"asLe
Aew jseiajul JO IDIJUOT Jedjd B alaym
suopenys Ul padejd Jou aie SIadIYo jey]
9INSUd 0} JapJO U} ‘}Saidlul JO uopeleRsp
Jo Jesibes ayy ubis 0] palinbal ale
SOJTV Uim Bulesp ul paAjoAUl SIad1J0
||e 18y} 8INSUa 0} ¥88S P|NOYS |Iounon) ay |

9l




Page 137 Agenda Iltem 9

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 9 DECEMBER 2005

EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2004 — 2005.

1. SUMMARY

The Internal Audit Annual Plan requires that follow up reviews be conducted for all
audits completed. Internal Audit documents the progress made by departmental
management in implementing agreed recommendations made by both Audit Scotland and
Internal Audit. Set out below is the results from a review performed by Internal Audit for
recommendations due to be implemented by the 31% October 2005.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Appendix 1 is split into 2 documents la & 1b and provides a statistical summary
of the 2003/04 and 2004/05 issued audit reports. The first document refers to all
reports with recommendations due July to October 2005. The second document
lists action points outstanding from the previous Audit Committee. These are
points that should have been implemented by the 30th of June 2005 for the last
Audit Committee. The same layout has been used for the reporting of Audit
Scotland report recommendations in Appendices 3 & 4.

3.2 Appendix 2, details under each report’s title the recommendation that is still to be
implemented the department and Head of Service responsible, and an explanation
for the delay, the level of risk, original and a revised implementation date.

3.2 All new external audit reports issued by Audit Scotland to the Council are reported
initially separately to the Audit Committee with their executive summary and
action plan. Thereafter they will be included in the summary list in Appendices 3

& 4 of this report.
4. CONCLUSIONS
Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored and reported
by Internal Audit.
5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Policy: None
5.2 Financial: None
5.3 Personnel: None

54  Legal: None



Page 138

5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Alex Colligan or Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit (01546
604271 or 604216)

Ian Nisbet
Internal Audit Manager 25 November 2005.
25Novfinalreport25Nov



Page 139

] 9 14" 1eJo L
( snbny) $S9INpadoid
G8vH [4 0 4 S00¢ ¥ V)L JUNOD) Y00}S PUS IBBA JO MBIADY
90/5002
Joquieosq) suonesadQ
0 0 b ¥00c 189 a6 Buipes] jueoniubig Jo mainay
0 I I (5002 Yyosen) g1 SjuaY VYH Jo malney
13 l I 4 (500z Jequieoaq) 0L sjijsuag payiun JO MalnaY
( snbny) SEVEEN
¢8I0 4 b € 5002 ¥ V) 02 9 Juswdinb3g jo 8seyoind Jo MaIrayY
0 L L (500z 1snbny) 61 juswainoold-a JOo MaInay
0 4 4 (gooz Aen) 21 9po) [enuspnid
$0/¥002
wo:ou__“>u__w._ww“_t:w:_ G M N T 5002 1990320 1€ JaquinN Joday Jpny
: T Kq pauonoe sjuio Aq pauoijoe aq o} sjuio, :
/aINpayas puiyeg q pauon julod q pauol} q 0} sjulod

V | XIAN3ddV

G002 1970300 O1 A[n[ W04 ang Suoiepuawioddy UM sHoday

Kiewiwing - dn Mmoj[jo4 Joday JIpNy [euJaju|




Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 141

g | XIAN3ddVv

Ll 6 0z 0z [ejo ]
G4 L 0 L l (5002 Y2Ie) €1 S}USY V4H JO MalAay
zd l 0 ! ! (#00z dos) 9 uol}eoNp3 - S8OUBMOJ|Y JeD)
69 l l z z (¥00z 28Q) 8 G0/¥00Z MBIADY BNn[eA }sag
6%9.'CY 3 ¥ . Ji (500Z AeiN) 21 8poD [epuspnid
8jeq o] s}ioday 61 §0/v002
0 l 1 l (€00z 19qwia28Q) 01 sasea] bunesadQ JO Mainay
0 | l | (#00zZ ®unr) /2 sleusiel\ g Juswdinb3 jo eseyoind
0198'S'v'eD S 0 g G epusby aining
(+00z Aen) 92 juior a8y} jo ssaiboid 8y} Jo malnay
0 1 1 1 a|doad buipoddng
(#00Z 1Hdv) L2 - SJUBIS) JUBSWUIBA0D) JO MBINSY
0 ! ! ! (#00Z Y21BIN) 0T N4/ Juswabeuey Apadoid
Spiodoy 8z ¥0/£002
paAladal ?9lwmwo)
22UdpINS ajep 5002 1390320 pny
jualdynsuy| uonejuawa|dwi 1€ Aq pauonoe | snoinald wou Jlaquinp JModay Hpny
/3Inpayoss Kq pauonoe sjuiod 9 0} sjulod BuipuelsinQg
pulyag 1I3S syulod

390y JIPNY SNOIAGId Woi4 BUIpuejsynQ sjuiod




Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 143

aoueulH *JO} paJUN0JJE 8q 0] S}osse
"9ske(q 18SSE S,|1Iouno) ayy AjieA 0 | o1691e.S JO peaH Jo anjea pue adA} ay) Jo
G00Z JoquianoN G00Z dunr og |elale asI0J1oxa oY) Jo Jed se panss| a4 ||IM 80U Y suoljeoljloads ou ale aiay | 6
‘Buiuren
Jojalep e siabeuew 1099(oud |eyded
abueuie 0y Y4dID "9s1n02 Buluiely e Buisiuebio Jolew Joy juswebeuew ysu Ul
UM UOISSNOSIP Jo ssaooud By} ul ale 9N palilUSpl usaq aoueulH Buiuiesy oy pasu ay) Jo spew
ul Apuang G600z @unr og |eualen aney buiuies buuinbal sjdoad jo seweu ay] | 21691E1S JO pROH us9( Sey JUsWSSasSe ON /
‘9)ew}sa
196png ym pasedwod
9g uIn}No |eul} [enjusAd
‘pasodoud sI swayos
B USUM [IDUN0Y 0} d|gejieAe
syebpng |euden a( 1098 anuanal bulob
pue anuaAay /0/900Z @u} jo uonesedaid aoueulH uo ‘padojarsp aq sawayos
900z Adeniga4 G600z aunr og |euale ay} Jo ued se jno pawied Buieg si syl | 21691E4S JO pROH [endeo jo uonesijold €
a)ep a)ep
92IAI9S JO
uonejuawsajdwi | uopejuawajdwi Buipe.io Aejap 10} uoneuejdxy uonesijduwy / Julod uondy oy
peaH / jJuswedaqg
pasinay JeuiblLQO sy

9p0J [elUaPNId 3} JO MIIASY — Y/

JIPNY [EUIS3U[ — S[NPALDS puIyag SjUIod UOROY

¢ XIAN3dddV




Page 144

"susyolIy [ooyog "B°e sjuswysijgelss
uosJad auo ul s|qissod sAemje 1ou S|

‘BaJe auo Aue 0}

pajolsal Jou sem }| "aoi3oeld
uowwod aq 0} paleadde

sIy} paxoayo sidwes ay}

JO "WJoy Joplo ay) Buisiioyine
pue spoob Buiuonisinbal

5002 Buiubisiajuno) "saoinIag [euoneladQ B Jo) | S821AI8S Alluswy yjoq Sem Jaolyo awes ay}
900z Aenuer Jaquisydss 0¢g [ejuswepun4 | 1s1 Aiojeubig pasuoyiny bunepdn Ajuaiiny | g speoy Jo pesaH 8JBYM S92UB]SU| BIaM BJay | l
a)ep a)ep
99IAISS JO
uonejusawajdwi | uonejuswajduwi Buipein Aejap 10} uoneuejdxgy uonesidwy /Julod uondy | joy
peaH / Juswedaq
PasIAY leulbLQ Sy
sjeldje\ 2 Juawdinb3g Jo aseyaind JO MaIAdY— D
"Jaquiadaq ul ‘uo payodal Jo pajuswaldwi
1dS 0} Lodal e juasaid 0} mou si }ab.ey ay AJInj usaq J0u aney Malnal
"J18g0J00 Ul DS 0} Hodal e 106 0} 9|qIssod | SO2IAISS BAIJ0B)0Id | SIU} WOl suoioe paalbe ay |
GO0z Jeqwaoag | 00z Adenuer Lg |euale jou sem } senuoud Buadwod Jayjo 0} eng © |eba7 Jo pesH 6
aep aep 92IAISS JO
uonejuswajdwi | uopejuswajdwi Buipe.ios) Aejap 10} uoneue|dx3y INISS 3 uonesijduwyj / Juiod uondyY | Joy
peaH / Juswiedaq
pasinay JeuiblLQO sy

¢ XIAN3dddV

G0/V00C MIIADY dnjeA jsag — g




Page 145

EIRER

Buiurewsal ayy 0} 1no pajjoJ Buiaq pue YIoAA
[eIO0S pue uoleanp3 yjoq ul uoizesado ui si
pue padojanap uaaq sey saulapinb Jo jos

"swie|o

M3U Y/ "90/S00Z Ul JNO paLlied aq 0} uoljoe S92INIOS |[9ABJ} JO UOISSIWQNS pue
ue se (SD4|) S82IAI8S [013U0)) |eloueulH Alunwwon uone|dwoo ayj 0] piebal yum
[euIdlU| GO/Y00¢ Juswlledaq sooIAIeS - 90IAJBS JO sauljepInb oiseq ayj Jo aleme
900z Adenuer 00z loquwadaq EIRENEI AjJlunwwon 8y} Ul paliluspl Sem uonoe siy] | spesH ajeudoiddy | eq jou Aew jyejs awos Z
ajep ajep
99IAI3S JO
uonejuawajdwi uonejuawajdui Buipeio Kejap Joj uoneue|dxy uonesijdwyj / Julod uondy | Joy
peaH / Juswedaqg
pasiaay JeulbLO Asiy
uoneonpg - SEOUBMO||Y Je) JO MIIADY — d
"I19pus}
aAlnadwood Aq pajosjes
usaq aAey Aew siolddns
JBY}O ‘Mo| ale paseyaind
Buiaq saolAles 10 spoob
JO sanjeA ay} asneosaq pasn
ale sJalddns |BoO| swog
‘|ealolsIy usaq aney Aew
sJayjo Ing wniosuo) buiAng
sanoyiny ayy Aq payiddns
sJalddns panoidde jo
1S1] 8y} Uo aq pjnom sialjddns
3y} Jo 1soj\ sJalddns mau
G002 I1sl| sauojeubis | s8a1AIBS Ajluswy asn 0} Ajlloyine pey oym o}
900z Aenuer Jaquieydasg g [ejuswepun pasLIOyINy Mau ay} Jo Jed Swoj SIY| | R SPeoy Jo peaH Se ainsun aJam sjuswpedaq z
ajep ajep
99IAIBS JO
uonejuawa|dwi | uoneuswajduwi Buipe.io Kejap Joj uoneue|dxy uonjesijduwy / Julod uonoy Joy
peaH / Juswiedaqg
pasinay leuibo Asiy

¢ XIAN3dddV




Page 146

'900¢

Asenuer 61 NO OdS 04 siu} Ind 0} papusjul
S1}| "OdS 03 06 pjnoys } suone||dwi
[eloUBUL SBY SIY} 90UIS "JOqUIBAON

gz uo wea] juswabeuel |eyuswiledaq
AQ pamo||o} ‘G00Z JOqUIBAON GLUO Wwes |
uswabeuepy BuisnoH Aq paiapisuod aq 0}

‘a1epdn pue malnal

900Z YoIely L€ G00Z |udy 1 JOUIN ‘500z 1snbny payelp aouepinb [einpadold BuisnoH jo peaH alinbai sainpasoud abieyoay S
a)ep a)ep
uonejuswajdwi | uonejuawajdwi Buipe.io) Kejap 10} uoneuejdxy 90IAISS jo d uonesidwyi / Juiod uondy | joy
pasinsy leutbuo sy ol e
SIUSY VHH JO MIIASY — 4
"anuluo9
M 1ipny  [euldjul  Ym  uosielq 'Jadlo
juswdojenag sujeuag ayy Ag pojidwod
3ll} 8y} pamalras sey uosiad s|gisuodsal "S]UBLWA]L]S UOI].I[IDU0D3I dU}
G002 pajulodde s,uo0i09S 8dueuld{ 8yl ‘G002 uonelauabay 0} @ouapina dn-yoeq Ayiuapl
S00¢ JoquaAON Jaquiaydag og Joully | JaqwianoN Ul sulbeq )pne GO/#00Z @Yl | Ajunwwo) jo pesH 0} Jojipne ayj Joj }nolyip si |
9iEp 9iEp 92IAIS JO
uonejuswajdwi | uonejuawajdwi Buipein Kejap 1o} uoneue|dxy : d uonesidwyi / Julod uondy | joy
pesiny leuiBLIQ STy feln] [

¢ XIAN3dddV

S0/¥00¢C Ss}jsuag payiun Jo MIIASY — 3




Page 147

*MdIASJ SNONURUOD aJinbal
s|oA8| [B20] pue ybiy je yjoq
sjuswabuelle Juswabeuew

ol pajeroosse pue saoIAIBS
juiol jo uonejuaws|dwi

alen pue juswdojansp
900z AINrLg 00z aunr €0 [elieN ¢ Jaqunu Jad sy | pajelbaluy| jo pesH ay} jo uoissalboid | g
‘sdojonap epusby
alen ainjnd juior ayj se AJea
900z AInrLe 00z aunr €0 EBEET ¢ Jaquinu Jad sy | pajelbau| Jo pesH [IM dJomawel) [eloueuly ayl | v
'G00¢
JBqWIBAON (| uo pjay Buiaq adualiajuo)
o1691e.1S UI0r B YBNnouy) [9A8] 9AIIN0SXD
pue [aA9] |eanijod Joluas je uanib aq
[lm snadwi Jayung "900g Jewwns 0} G00Z
Jaqueydag jo ajeosawi e sey swwesboud
MJIOM Y] "S8II[BO0| SSOJOB SaAlelIul
ol Jo saues e Jo Juswabeuew jo9(oid
Bunioddns aje oym wes | Juswaroidw|
julor 8AlINO8X3 YSIoos 8yl sepnjoul 9 Jo
diysiaquiap ‘dnolg diysiauyed juior ayj Jo
Jleyaq uo (9)r) dnolis uonejusws|dwy| uiop
e ybnouyy usaup Buiaqg ale Juswabeuew
a)buis juiof jo syoadse |je jo uoneoldde ‘sj@bpnq pajood
|eonoeld pue aAlNOSXT YSIoOS ay} Jo 1O UOI3ONPOJIUI Y} 840)3(]
Hun ainin4 juior ayi Aq paaoidde Ajjew.oy alen uoneJapisuod alinbau |Im
900z AINrLg 00z aunr €0 |euale u9ag sey YJoMawel |[eloueuld ay| | paledbsiu| jo pesH | sainpadoud j0J3u0d Aseyebpng €
a)ep ajep
99IAISS JO
uonejuswajdwi | uonejuswajdwi Aejap 10} uoneue|dxy uonesijduwyj / Juiod uondyY | Oy
peaH / Juswiedaq
pasiaay JeulbLO Buipelo ysiy

¢ XIAN3dddV

epuaby ainyn4 juior ayj} jo ssaiboid ay} Jo MaInaYy — O




Page 148

G00c

%08y0 swa)sAs |je jo ued se malnal

90INIBS

O spesH y1oq
yum uonounfuod

“Jayuny paaosdwi
aq p|nod |00d ybingsus|aH

Jaqwieoa( Lg 600z 1snbny g Joul 0} |00d ybingsuajoH lisiA 0} pauueld si}| ul JobBeueyy soueul B S|0JJUoD Sple) WIMS | G
90INIBS

JO speaH yjoq “Jayuny panoidu

002 308y SwajsAs |e Jo ued se yum uonounfuod aq p|noo s1exon Alla4
Jaquwiada( L€ 600z 1snbny L¢ Joul M3IABI 0} |leH s, uaanp) JIsIA 0} pauueld s1}| | ullebeuely aoueuld | oepeD Joj adeld ul Sjouod) | ¥

aep aep 92IAISG JO
uonejusawa|dwi | uonejusawajdwi Kejap 10} uoneuejdxgy : uonesidwy /juiod uondy | oy
peaH / Juswpnedag
pasiAay leulbLO Buipeto ysiy
S$2iNPads0id JUNOY YJ0}S pualea  JO MAIASY — H
"/00Z 1890100 AQ UOISIaA D1UOII09| Ue
0} papesbdn pue 900z yoie LE Agq (NHOI)

paaN JueAs|ay JO J0JedIpU| JUBWISSOSSY "JUBWISSasSSE paleys

)SIY JO UonIpPE 3y} SBPN|OUI MOU MBIABI a|buis jo uonejuawa|dwi

snonuiuod pue jobie} Uo SI JUBLISSOSSY alen ay} ul palinbai sdays
900Z YoJel Lg G00Z YoJteny Le |euale paleys o|buis jo uonejuswsa|dw] | pajesbau] jo pesy Aoy JoJaquinu e ale aiayl | 0Ol

‘uone|dwod

pue uoljejuswWnNIop

juswdojaAap Jaypuny salinbal

Buroinosa. juiol buipieba.

alen }Jomawel [eloueul{ juior
900Z AINrLe #00Z dunr €0 [ejuswepun4 ¢ Joaqunu Jad sy | pajelbaju| jo peaH 8y} Jo sjuswae jueoiubls | 8

¢ XIAN3dddV




Page 149

V € XIAN3ddVY

Z 6 Ll |ejol

0 g g MBIAIBAQ g9

90/6002

0 [ [ MBINDY Juswabeue|y uolew.IoU|

G0/¥002

sd F b c UPNY £0/2002 8y} uo poday
[48) | 0 l ssaupaledald Juswulonob-a

€0/200C

PaAIa29] 92UBPIAD
jusidynsu|
/3INpayas puiyag

ajep uonejuawsaldwi  GOOZ 129030 LE Aq
Kq pauonoe sjuiod pauoljoe aq 0} sjuiod

upny

500¢ 1990390 O} A|n[- W04 ong SUOHEPUIWIIOddy UM SHoday JIpNny [eula)xg

Kiewiwing - dn Mo||0 Ji0day JIpNY [eula)xXg




Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 151

g € XIaN3ddVv

€ 0l 0l |ejoL
yigolg 4 6 6 ¥0/€002
() @oueuianog) g Alueinbay
v l l 5 8poJ |epuspnld

EEIITT X}

POAI9D3L 92UIPIAS T e 5002 4990300 Jpny
juaioyynsu| 1€ Aq pauonoe SNOIAaId woa] Jpny
Aq pauopnoe sjuiod
/eInpayds pulysg 9q 0} sjuiod Buipuejsino

1I3S sjulod

39JIWIlo) JIPNY SNOIAGId Woi4 BuipuejsynQ sjuiod




Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 153

|[enuew ainpadsoid
HINQ 8y} pue suone|nbay
‘seaJe ||e ul Bunepdn sauinbai [lenuew [EIOUBUIS [IDUNOD)
sainpaosold YINQ "YEels Jueasjal ||e 0} Ino soueUlq oy} 4o £doo e yum papiroid
900z Joquisydes | GO0z Atenuer Lg | MmO Jues 8q |Im suonenbey (eroueuld palepdn | oibejens jo peay q PINOYs ye1s 800 |
sabueyo yejs
'G00¢ 109|}81 0} Ajjeoipoliad pajepdn
Jaqweoa( |L¢ Aq payajdwod aq ||Im asiolexd a8 p|noys asay | ‘s|ooyos
ay} ey} padoy st }| "pauinjas buleq jo ssadoid A1epuooas |[e o} pajidwod
8y} ul aJe swioj 8y ‘seuojeubls pastioyne ag pjnoys ‘sainjeubis
|le @yepdn o} as1oJoxe apim Juswiedap aoueul ajdwes Buneiodiooul
G00Z Jeqwiaoaq | 00z Aenuer g MO e BuloBiepun Ajusiind aie wes) soueuld 8y o16a)je.g Jo pesH ‘sys1| Alojeubis pasuouyiny | 0L
ajep ajep Buipelig 89INIOG 4O
uonejuawajdwi | uonejuswajdwi ysiy Aejap 104 uoneuejdxy : uonesidwyi / Juiod uondy | joy
: peaH / juswedaq
pasinay [euibuiQ
¥0/€002 (€) @2ueulanog 3 Ajeinbay-— g
‘Splemuo 20/900¢ ssoao0.d |esieidde uondo
J0} swwelbold |eyden pasinal sy} bumes oouBUI4 100l01d a|genns e juswsa|dw
900z Atenige4 G00Z YoIel L€ wnipepy | Ul PasN aq im ssaooud |esiesdde Byl | o Fejeng jo pesH pue 8sIA8p O} 8Je s1aoIO | S
9iep 9iep 99IAIS JO
uonejusawd|dwi | uonejuswajdwl Buipeio Kejap 10} uoneuejdxy peoH }:mEtwnmn_ uonesidwy /Julod uondy | 9y
PasiAaYy JeulbLIO S

¥ XIANIddV

apoJ [epuapnid- v

Spoday pUejods JIpNY - 9[NPayds pulyag SJulod UORIY




Page 154

‘pajuswa|dwi

pue pajuswnoop

aq pjnoys jusuwuiedw

10} pamalnal Ajjeanewa)sAs

‘sjebpng [enden ainjonuseu| usaq aney sjesse
pue snusAsyY /0/900Z 8u) Jo uonesedsid % uonepodsuel | Jey) Ajlenuue bunesisuowep
900z Alenigs4 ¥00C YJBIN LE |  wnipsyy | eu) jo Hed se no psuies Buisq si SIYL 1O pesH loj sdeys jeopoeid 8yl | ¢
ajep ajep Buipeig
99IAIS JO
uonejusawd|dwi | uonejuswajdwl Sy Kejap 10} uoneuejdxgy uonesydwy /Julod uondy | joy
peaH / juswyedag
pasinay leuiblQ
HpNY £0/200Z 3y} uo Joday — g
epuaby JuswuIdN0D
Anua) 1s1g 8y} Jo} pJemioy
‘9002 10 uwniny Aq a4ua) joeju0) Aem 8ay) 1o9)o4 0} uoloe
Buluonouny ANy B SABY pNOYS oM pue aye) pue uolsod juaiind ay)
ssoooid Bulepus) ayj unbaq sey [1OUNOD $S9SSE p|Noys |1ouUno) 8y}
ay] ‘Aemuspun [jom sI Juswdojaasp aqus) ‘poalbe Ajeulblo ssjeosawly
10BJUOD) By "paule}qo usaq sey Asuow ¢ 90UBUION0D) 0] bBuipioooe  Buissaiboid
pun4 juswuiaAos) Buisiulepoly "paysiiqelsa Y SOJIAISS jou 109(oud a1uao
900 uwnny $00Z AINC L€ wnipay usaq sey pJeog Isli4  Jawoisnd | dljeJoowsa( JO peaH | JOBJUOD JBWOISNd 8yl YIM | 2
ajep ajep Buipeio
99IAIS JO
uonejusawd|dwi | uonejuswajdw Sy Kejap 10} uoneuejdxgy uonesidwy /Julod uondy | joy
peaH /juswyedag
pasinay leuibliQ

¥ XIANIddV

www:vmw._mﬂw._& JUSWIUIBAO0D)-9 — )




Page 155 Agenda Item 10

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 9 DECEMBER 2005

REVIEW AND CONSOLIDATION OF OUTSTANDING AUDIT
RECOMMENDATIONS RELATED TO BUDGETARY CONTROL

1 Given status of budgetary control as a core finance system and its
importance in terms of the internal financial control framework it is
understandable that over the period there have been a number of audits
carried out by both internal and external audit into the Council’s budgetary
control systems. Generally these audits have identified that adequate
arrangements are in place and in some cases examples of good practice
have been identified. However it is acknowledged the arrangements in
place are not perfect and that in certain areas there is room for
improvement. Following the conclusion of each audit an action plan will
have been prepared with agreed improvements to the arrangements for
budgetary control. In some case the same or similar recommendations
have appeared in a different reports. Most recommendations have been
actioned but there a few recommendations where delays have been
encountered in their implementation. At the last Audit Committee it was
agreed that a separate note should be prepared consolidating the various
outstanding recommendations on budgetary control and setting a new
baseline for future reporting.

2 The approach to ongoing monitoring and reporting on budgetary
performance is most developed in Community Services and this has been
the area that has been given greatest scrutiny. This has acknowledged
the improvements in place compared to the previous arrangements in
place within the former education Service. The Finance Team in
Community Services are currently reviewing the process adopted in
Community Services to ease the administrative burden associated with
the process whilst maintaining or improving the utility of the process.
They are developing and testing their changes over the course of the
current financial year. Following this pilot within Community Services the
approach will be rolled out to other departments with suitable adjustments
where appropriate to reflect the different nature of the business,
operations and risks within these departments. A key element of this roll
out will be the development of training materials and delivery of training to
budget holders. Both the roll out of the new procedures and preparation
and delivery of training will be completed before June 2006.

3 The other key area for improvement is the extent to which service and
financial plans and monitoring reports are linked. Currently the Council
prepares a fairly comprehensive budget pack that contains information on
its corporate plan, area strategies, service plans and budgets. However
the priorities in the service plans are not costed. Furthermore although
the Strategic Management Team consider quarterly service performance
reports and revenue budget monitoring reports at the same meeting the
quarterly service reports do not contain information on the budgetary
performance against each of the priorities in the service plan. The



Page 156

Strategic Policy Committee established a Valuing Performance Review in
August 2005 with a remit to consult key stakeholders in the development
of an approach that would lead to priorities identified in the planning
process being costed to make explicit the financial implications associated
with priorities and that monitoring reports would also report on financial
performance relative to each priority. The Valuing Performance review
team are due to report draft proposals to the Strategic Management Team
in December with an agreed approach being developed by February 2006
with rollout and implementation of the new approach to link service and
budget planning and monitoring information for the 2007-08 budget and
2006-07 quarterly performance reports.

4  The revised action plan relative to the above is noted below.

Ref Action Point Responsibility | Risk Grading Date

1 Complete pilot testing of | Head of Fundamental | June
new budget monitoring | Strategic 2006
approach within Finance
Community Services
and roll out of new
budget monitoring
procedures over all
departments

2 Development of training | Head of Fundamental | June
materials and delivery of | Strategic 2006
training to budget holder | Finance
son budgetary control
generally and the new
procedures

3 Valuing performance Head of Fundamental | For
review team to develop | Strategic 2006-07
an approach to Finance quarterly
establish costing of reports
priorities in service and
plans and reporting of 2007-08
such in quarterly reports budget

Bruce West

Head of Strategic Finance
30 November 2005




Page 157 Agenda Item 11

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chief Asset Manager, Development Services Department November 9th 2005

Report on Asset Management

The Audit Committee, on the 2nd of September 2005 requested an update on progress with the
asset register and implementation of asset management strategy/planning. This report identifies
the main elements of asset management planning and progress to date.

Requirement:

This report provides an update to the report provided in September 2005 to the Audit Committee
that details the process being followed for the production of the Asset Register.

Progress:
In summary terms implementation of the asset management strategy is being taken forward in 5
broad areas. These are:

1 Completeness check

2 Conditions and costings
3 Asset use

4 Options appraisal

5 Computer systems

Each of the broad areas can be broken down into more specific issues. The specific issues and
progress against each of these is noted below along with responsibility.

1 Completeness check | Current Position Responsibility | Action dates
1.1 What assets do we Cross checking of capital accounting register Strategic Sept 2005 — complete
own, lease and use? to title deeds nearing completion. Expected to | Finance,

be finalised by 30 September 2005 for audit of

Annual Accounts. Once the capital accounting | Legal & Sept 05 - complete

register and title deeds reconciled, further Protective,

cross checks against property maintenance User Depts.

records, rent roll and non-domestic rate

register/valuation roll, will be carried out. At

this stage the capital accounting register will

also be reviewed with Fleet Management and

Information Technology to reconcile entries

for vehicles and IT equipment.
1.2 Who is the A detailed list of Assets were provided to Strategic Oct 05 commenced
owner/user for each Services in October, for confirmation and Finance, Legal | Jan 06 completion
asset? verification of Service owned Assets. Some & Protective,

responses have been received, and discussions | User Depts

are on going.




Page 158

2 Conditions and
Costing

Current Position

Responsibility

Action Dates

2.1 What condition are
assets in?

Information on the school estate is already
available through the School Estate Asset
Management Plan. Information on roads is
already available through the SCOTS study
and Roads Asset Management Plan.
Information on fleet and IT equipment will be
reviewed as part of the asset completeness
checks outlined above. Property condition
surveys have already been completed for
shared offices and will be completed for
leisure properties by 31 March 2007, (this is
being carried out over a 3 year period).
Property condition surveys for depots will be
carried out in 2006-07. A reduced scale, (to
reflect the properties in question) is being
undertaken in house for public conveniences
and will be completed by October 2005. In
terms of social work properties whilst
condition surveys have been undertaken
further work is required to generate all the
information necessary for asset management
planning. It is intended that on an ongoing
basis property condition surveys will be
carried out on a 5 yearly basis.

Service data collection activities (condition)

1. There is a rolling programme for Property
Condition Surveys

2.Roads have an annual Condition Inspection
& Maintenance programme.

3. Street lighting operate a rolling program for
asset inspection, condition and asset
replacement,

4. Fleet management have a rolling
programme for vehicle inspections

5. Infrastructure assets have a rolling
programme for Bridge inspections reported
through SCOTS

IT, Fleet Mgt,
Property,
Roads &
Health &
Safety

Schools Estate condition Surveys
Complete -December 2004

Shared office accommodation
Condition surveys

Complete October 2005

7 Roads Depots
Complete October 2005

(A rolling count of 139 Asset
Condition Surveys as of Nov

2005).

Update still to be obtained on

Public conveniences
December 2005

Complete Nov 2005

Completed July 2005.

Complete Nov 2005

Complete Nov 2005

Completed July 2005

2.2 Are assets fit for

Assets fitness for purpose will be assessed by

User Depts, IT,

Expected time frame for

purpose? services based upon a combination of factors Fleet Mgt, reporting is June 2006
such as condition surveys, suitability, service | Property,
delivery, operational requirements, desired Roads &
performance levels, and stakeholder’s views. Health &
Safety
2.3 What do we need to | Financial spending is dependant upon the IT, Fleet Mgt, Expected timeframe for
spend to make assets fit | assessment of requirements and information Property, reporting is June 2006
for purpose? obtained within sections 2.1 and 2.2. Roads &
Health &

Safety




Page 159

2.4 What do we need to
spend over the lifecycle
of our assets?

For Schools Estates and some properties
whole life costs information is currently
available through the condition survey reports.

There is a rolling programme to obtain
property condition survey reports, which will
provide lifecycle cost information.

IT, Fleet Mgt,
Property,
Roads &
Health &
Safety

Schools Estate Completed
December 2004

Complete Nov 2005

2.5 What does it cost to
run and operate our

Operational costs for assets based upon a
number of cost elements which are reported to

User Depts, IT,

assets? Services directly or indirectly Fleet Mgt,
Property,
Operational cost elements: Roads &
Health &
Energy cost information for Schools Estate Safety Schools Estate:
Asset Management Plan is currently reported Current Schools Estate reporting
annually, as part of the requirement on core Complete January 2005 (for
facts. 2004 year)
Energy management information is available Energy Management: STARK
In various formats, for other property assets. April 2006 is the anticipated
A STARK energy management system is timeframe for reports via the
currently being purchased which will provide STARK system.
structured reporting.
Asset Maintenance Costs Complete Nov 2005
Costs for reactive, planned and statutory
property maintenance are reported monthly.
Cleaning & Janitorial cost information Complete Nov2005
Fixed charges for property are charged
directly to the Finance ledger.
Asset property rate charges Complete Nov 2005
Annualised charges are sent out to Services
Fleet management Complete Nov 2005
Fuel costs for vehicles are reported weekly.
Hire charges for vehicles are reported on 4
weekly basis.
3 Asset Use Current Position Responsibility | Action dates
3.1 What use do we This will commence once the asset User Depts. Expected timeframe for
make of our assets? completeness checks above are complete. reporting Dec 2006
This will be based upon user demand and
Service planning /operational requirements.
3.2 What are our future | This will commence once the asset User Depts. Expected timeframe for

asset requirements?

completeness checks above are complete.

reporting Dec 2006




Page 160

4 Options Appraisal Current Position Responsibility | Action dates
4.1 Do we need this A review of appropriate approaches to and User Depts, IT, | Expected timeframe for
asset/What are the development of an initial approach to options | Fleet Mgt, reporting Oct 2006
alternatives? appraisal will take place in 2005-06 as per the | Property,
draft Best Value Audit Improvement Plan. Roads &
This will require review, refinement and Health &
further development from 2006-07 onwards. Safety
5 Computer Systems Current Position Responsibility
5.1 Identify systems to | Scoping study currently being carried out by User Depts, IT, | Nov 2005
be put in place to the Chief Asset Manager and scheduled for Fleet Mgt,
manage recording, completion by 30 September 2005. There will | Property,
transfer and be a second stage to this to implement Roads &
management of data decisions based on the scoping study. Health &
related to asset Safety.
management. Update November 2005
The asset management group’s direction is to
specify a corporate level system based upon a
prioritised list of strategic finance and
operational requirements.
A number of Service based computer systems
are currently in use for Asset management
activities.

The tasks above in essence are about establishing a process rather than completing a task. Once
the actions above have been completed the Council will have an established process and a sound
basis in place for managing its assets and collecting and using the information necessary to do
SO.

Out-with the above, further tasks related to asset management are underway and these include
input by the Asset Management Team to reviews on rationalisation of council properties and
regeneration projects in Helensburgh, Oban, Campbeltown and Dunoon.

John MacNicol
Chief Asset Manager
9™ November 2005.



Page 161 Agenda Item 12

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 9 DECEMBER 2005

HMIe REPORT 2004 — 05

1. SUMMARY
The Education Service of Argyll & Bute Council was inspected during the period
December 2004 to January 2005 by HM Inspectorate of education (HMlIe), as part ofa 5
year national inspection programme of all local authorities in Scotland. In June 2005
HMlIe issued their inspection report. This outlined service key strengths plus areas
requiring improvement.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and to be followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1 A copy of the HMIe report was provided to the Audit Committee on the 2™ of
September 2005. The HMIe review found that Argyll & Bute Council
demonstrated good and improving performance across many different aspects of
its work. Overall, from a sound base, the Education Service was strengthening its
impact on meeting the Council’s key aim of being recognised as Scotland’s
leading rural area.

3.2  Inresponse to the HMIe requirement, the Education Services management at the
beginning of September 2005 agreed an Action Plan. This was then presented and
approved by the Strategic Policy Committee (SPC) on the 8" of September 2005.
See Appendix 1.

3.3 The Action Plan contains 4 main action points, which have sub sections detailing
areas of concern, management comment, the responsible officer and
implementation dates. Three of the main action points have implementation dates
within the academic year 2005 — 2006. It should be noted that the August 2005
action date within Action Point 3 has been addressed The remaining action point
has 2 issues with agreed implementation dates of March and July 2006.
Management have reported that progress is ongoing with all action points.

4. CONCLUSIONS

Internal Audit will monitor progress by Education Services management as they
address the issues contained in the agreed Action Plan.

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: None
52 Financial: None

5.3 Personnel: None



Page 162

54  Legal: None

5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)
Ian Nisbet

Internal Audit Manager 25 November 2005.

25Novfinalreport25 Nov



Page 163

G00C ¥39IN31d3S

soAljejuasalday Juaied =

SUOIIBIDOSSY |BUOISSDJOld =

S9OIAISS JBUlEd PUB SB2IAI9S AJlUNWWOY) Ul JEBIS [IoUN0) =
slayoea| pesH =

sJ19010 Jswaroldw| Ajjend pue Jebeuey splepuels Ajenp ayl =
90INIBS JO SPESH pue $82IAI8S Allunwwo) ‘Jojoalig 8yl =
sJioquial\ pa1oda|gJ pue uosiadseyodg uoneonp3 ay] =

‘uonejuswaldwi sy ul pajeroaidde Ajjealb pue pawoojom ale
1oddns pue juswaAjoAul BuloBuo ‘suonngriuoo Jisy| “ueld uonoe siy) Buidojaasp Jo sseooid 8y Ul pa)NSU0D alem siapjoyayels Buimoljo) ay |

NV1d NOILDV

SAILIRIOHLNV TVIOT 40 SNOILONNA NOILVYONA3 3HL 40 NOILO3dSNI

NOILYONA3 :S3JIAUFS ALINNNINOD
TIONNOD 31Ng ANV TIAD™V

I XIANHAddV



Page 164

‘alng pue [|ABJ1y ul 8jdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyo 1o} Juswuiepe
pasiel BuNdas Ul S|00YOS JO SSBUBAINDSBYS Y} JOUOW |IM pue JuswaAoldwi snonuiuod Jo Ajuoud Aay 8y} ssalppe S|00yos pue slayoeas |
peaH ey} ainsua 0} Joddns pue uonoalip Jeajd apiAoid ||Im siaoiO JuswaAocidw) Ajijend pue wes | juswabeuel S,801AI8S uolleonp3 ay |

"'$80IAI9S AJIUNWWOY Ul 82IAI8S JO SpeaH pue Jojoaliq ‘uosiadseyodg
uoneonp3 ‘eapiwwo) Aoljod 21Ba1ens syl Aq palojuow Aj@soo aq |im pue Ajoud Jolew uaAlb aq [jim uejd uonoe ay) Jo uoneyuswa|dw|

“JINH Ag pauiuap! uonoe Joy syuiod ulew sy} Buissaippe uo pue

JuswaAalyoe [Idnd pue [ooyos pue a9130eid aAlleAOUUl JO BAR03YS Bueuspun pue buiziubooal =

Buyew uoisiosp Buiouanjjul pue abueyod jeuoneonpa Jo s}oadse uo smalA Buluieb ul siapjoyayels yum buibebus =

Jsaq snoinaid wouj JuswaAoiduwl, Jo ainyno e bunioddns pue Buijowosd =

juswaAosdwi Buluies| uo joedwi Jisy) Bunenjeas pue sanuold pue saAleniul ‘saloljod Asy Jo uonejuswa|dwi a8y} Buuojuow =

:ul sjuswianoidwi Buinuiuos uo

//9002 PUe 9/500Z Sueld juswaAoidw] |o0YydoS =
900Z Pue g00z ‘Alloyiny uoneonpg ay) Jo saAnoalqo uswaoidw| [enuue 8y} =

8-G00Z ue|d Juswanoidw| 9JIAIBS 3y} ]

:WO0J} SBWO02)NO0 JO AloAljap
8y} uo j10edwi Jueoliubls aAey pue wlojul |IM 8Bus|jeyo siy) Jo sjuswa|e Asy a8y} 1By} 8insus 0} SI Ue|d uoloy siy) Jo asodind BuiAspun ay |

‘Buiyoes) pue Buiuies| Buinoidwi pue sjuswaAsiyoe
Jiay} buluspeouq ‘Quswuiene sjidnd Buisies uo s1ao1O Juswaroidw] Ajljeny) Jo swea) ay) Jo 1oedwl 8y} Jojluow 0} 8nuljUOD 0} pue S|00YIS
Alepuooas ul Auenoned ‘quawuiene Jo s|aAs| ybiy bunsixa ayy anosdwil Jayrny 0] Si }J@aW 0} SpPaau |1Iouno) ay} abusg|ieyo Bulyoielano ay |

‘eaJe |ednl Buipeg)

S,puej0og se pasiubooal Buieq Jo wie A8y s, [Iouno) ay) Bunesw uo 1oedwi s) BulusyiBusss Sem 82IAI8S UOBONPT 8Y) ‘@Seq punos e Wo.j
‘lledanQ “4om syl Jo syoadse jualayip Auew ssoloe aouewdopad Buiroidwi pue poob pajelisuowsp 10UNo) aing pue ||ABJy 18yl punol JIAH

AJVININNS JAILND3IXE



Page 165

'900¢

yotey Aq payejdwod
‘9]0A0 Buiuueld
90IAJIBS JUBLIN)

"S1901L0O
swanosdw| Ajllend
‘1obeue

sa2IAI8S Buunoooy
‘1obeue

spsepuels Ajenp
‘uoneonpy

— 90IAIBS JO SpesH

‘saniold uejd aoinies paalbe
0} Jaja1 sue|d Buipuads ainsu]

‘sjobuie) ue|d

a22IAI8s Bungaw ul ssalboud
uo uolnewJlojul Sapnjoul
Buloyuow 1obpng ainsug

"saAljeul d33S o} buljdde
syuelb oyoads |le Apyuap|

"Juswdojarap jo seale Ajlold
|[euoneN |[e 0} sjuswalinbali
82Jnosal |eloueuly Alddy

‘uoljesado jo ease Ajoud
yoeas 0} paldde ale sjuswajels
196pnq ||elaA0 ainsug

‘2oe|d ul SI paAalyoe ale

sanuoud se 1oedwi pue
puads j96pnq BuLiojiuow
JO wa)sAs Jsngol alow

‘sjuswdojanap

pauue|d 81noas 0}

seale Ajuoud o) payojew
ale suoleodo|e 196png

‘saljoud ue|d 92IAI8S
pue 186png 01 payolew

uonewJojul Jo uonejussaid

pue uolje||0o ay} anoidw|

ajessawi]

a|qisuodsay suosiad

juswanouduw
uoddng o) ABajens

joeduw

juswdo|anaq 10} seauy

Buiuue|d 186png pue ad1AIes usamiaq uoljeiBajul J18so|0 YsI|gelsT : | UOIoY 104 Julod Ul

uoioadsu| yY3N| Buimojjoj uejd uonoy

NOILYONA3 — S3JIAUFS ALINNANINOD - TIONNOD 31Ng B TIAD™UV




Page 166

"Juawdo|ansp

a|geule)sns pue juswabeuew
90IN0Sal BAIJ08Y8 ‘@oueuIdN0b
puUNOS ‘UoIBNSUOD UO

sSno20j e Yym Buluue|d 991A18S
0} sayoeoudde anje) 1sag

Jo Juswdojanap ay} a10|dx3

‘'sassaoold

Buiuueld aoiAleS pue

ajelodio) usamiaq AouslsISuod
anoidwi o) Jabeuely

ABajens pue Aoljod s,|lounod
ay) pue Jabeue|y spiepuels
Ajienp ayj usamyaq Bujiom
juiol eAnoaye dojaasp Jayung

‘'saonoeld
paalbe JO SSBUBAIOBYD

‘pPaysligelsa

pue paaibe ale Buiuue|d
92IAIBS 0} yoeoludde anjep
1seg e ainsua 0} salbajel)s
1By} uaas uaaq ueod j|

“JUSpPINS
SI S92IAJBS |IOUN0)D

"Jobeue| pue joedwi 8y} Uo uolew.IoUl ssouoe Buyiom julof
Abajeng pue Adijod alow apnjoul 0} sanuold paAosdwl pue sa2IAIaS
‘1ebeue A8y uo ssalibo.d buiuodal pauue|d 0} payoeoidde ‘Buiuodey pue buluueld
'000Z AInr Ag spiepuels Alenp 10} Ylomawel) 8y} MaIAay BAISBY090 aJoW Y ‘Juawanoidw| 82IAIBS
juswanoiduw
aJeosawil] a|qisuodsay suos.iad uoddng o) ABajens joeduw juswdojana 10} seauy

Buiuue|d 196pnq pue 8oIAI8S usamaq uoljelBa)ul J8So0 Ysi|geis | UoIjoy 10} Julod ulep

uonoadsu| yY3N| Buimojjoj uejd uonoy

NOILYONA3 — S3JIAUFS ALINNANINOD - TIONNOD 31Ng B TIAD™UV




Page 167

‘Buiobuo
pue 9002/S00¢ uolssag

2duewlolad

© Buluue|d Jo pesH
100l04d

Buipung |eyde) jo pesH

"gouew.lolad
© Buluue|d Jo pesH

‘sjuswanoidwi Bulpjing
|[ooyos Buiobuo ay) Jano
s|ooyos ul siabeuew Joluas
pue sadlAles Auadoud ‘yels
OQdN 8y}l usamiaq suolje|al
Bupom aAjoayse ainsug

‘Ajlloyine ayj uly)Im sjooyos
paluap! buioe|dal Joj aAlenUl
OQddN 8y} jo uoiejuswa|duwil
dAI}08Y)d 8y} woddng

"S|00yos oynads ul Bulules)
10} JuswuoliAud ayy Buinosdwil
0} Alsnoawiy puodsal 0}

paau 8y} pue a)e)sa |0oYyds ay)
JO Juswabeuew ay) 0} bunejal
suoisioap Ajuond Ayuap|

"sBulp|ing mau 0} p|o
W04} SUONISUEB.) Yjoows
pue aA1108)8 ale alay |

"S19SN WoJ} uoljoejsies
Jo s|aAd] ybiy yim

aoe|d ul sI a)e)se s|oo0yos
ay} ul sjuswanoiduwi
Bunuawadwi

pue Buluueld 0] yoeoudde
Jljewa)sAs alow vy

‘Buluies) JoJ JUBWIUOIIAUS
paAoidwi ue Bulrsiyoy

‘Buiobuo
pue 900¢/S00¢ uoissag

"@ouBWIONS
© Buluue|d Jo pesH

‘'sbuipjing jooyos Atewud

ul Ayoedeosano Buisealoul
ssalppe 0} sainpadoud |eanoeud
pue Jesjo ‘Abejens ajeis]

s |00YyoS 8y} uiyum dojaasq

's|idnd |[e jo Jyduaq ay}

Joj pasiin Ajgjelndoidde
pue A||n} Ayloeded ajqejieae
Buiney se sjuesald ajeisa
|[o0yos ayj Jo ajiyoid ay |

‘sjooyos Asewud
ur Ayoedessano bBuissalppy

a|eosawil]

a|qisuodsay suosiad

juswanoiduw
uoddng o) ABajens

joeduw

juswdojana( 10} sealy

S|00Y0S Ul JuswUoJIAUB [eoisAyd ay) pue Ajloeded Jo sanssi 8y) SSaIppy :Z UOIJOY 10} Julod Ulep

uonoadsu| Y3N| Buimojjo} ue|d uonoy

NOILYONA3 — S3JIAUFS ALINNANINOD - TIONNOD 31Ng B TIAD™UV




Page 168

'9002/500¢
UoISS8S W0

‘wea |
wawanoidw| Ayenp
‘J1obeue

spsepuels Ajenp

‘Juswaoidwi Bulinoss
ul siebeuew |00yos JO 8]0J 8Y)
JO SSauBAIjoay e 8y} Bullojuo

"S|00YDS |BNpPIAIpUI Ul pue
Ajluoyine ayj ssoluoe panoiduwil
a( 0} salinbal Juswanalyoe

pue juswuie)je a1aym wnndLINd
JO seaJe JO uoneoyuap|

‘'suoloadsul [ooyos

JINH Pue SMaIAey |00YIS ‘SYUSIA
ealy A9y ‘Uoilew.lojul Juswuieye
Jo sisAjeue ybnouy) ssuewlopuad

Buiyoed) pue BulioHUO

‘poddns pue abuajjeyo

0] Uolje[aJ Ul S|O0YDS Yul] YlIm
sdiysuone|al uado pue aAlIsod
dojansp Jayuny [Im (SOID)
SJ90140 JuBwaoidw| Ajllend

"s|jooyas Ajuoyine |e

Ul JUBPIA® S| JUBWBASIYO.
pue juswuiepe

pue Buluies| pue Buiyoes)
‘diysiepes| |ooyos ul
JuswaAoldwi Snonuiuo)

‘@ouewJopad |ooyos Jo
sjoadse JO malAal pauue|d

a|eosawil]

a|qisuodsay suosiad

juswaAoaduw|
ypoddng o) ABajens

joeduw

juswdojana( 10} sealy

sjooyos Aiepuooas Buipnjoul sjooyos ||e jo souewlopad ay) Bunenjeas pue Bullojiuow Joy sainpaoold usyibualg ¢ UOIJOY 10} Julod Ul

uonoadsu| Y3N| Buimojjo} uejd uonoy

NOILYONA3 — S3JIAUFS ALINNANINOD - TIONNOD 31Ng B TIAD™UV




Page 169

L

"G00Z 1shbny

'9002/500¢ uolsseg

‘Buiobuo
pue 9/G00¢ UoIssag

"1obeuep
spsepuels Ajenp

‘Aoueynsuo) ajA4

"1ebeuep
spsepueig Ajenp
‘Alepuooag

— 9JINJISS JO pesaH

"s|ooyos Alepuooss
le 01 8|qe|ieAe spew abeyoed
Buiutes) aAnoBISIUI SOVLS

‘@ouew.load

108lgns anoudwi 0} seshAjeuy

9jA4 pue (SOV1S) sHey) pue
Sa|qe| pJepuels ay} asn 0} pue
Blep s)jnsal uoneulwexs jaidiayul
01 slayoea) |ediould jo Buluies |

"S99)JILUWOD
eale Je siaquis pajosle 0) siseq
[enuue ue uo suoday Ajjenp pue
spJepue)ls jussaid 0} siayoes)
peay Jo} sjuswabuelie Mainay

"}S8Qq snoinalud

uo Buinosdwi 1oy seibajens
|[O0OYDS pue SUOlBUIWEXD YOS

ul @ouewIopad malral 0} OO YUl
pue Jabeuely spiepuels Ajlenp
‘@0IAI9S JO speaH BulAjoAul
S1INS pue siayoea) peay

ypm sbuneaw |ewloy anuiuod)

"S|9A9|
[|e e s}jnsaJ uoljeulwexs
YOS parosdw|

"suoljeulwexa
VOS Ul 8duew.lopad

‘Buiobuo
pue 9/G00¢ uolssag

‘Buiobuo pue
9002/S00¢ uolssag

wea |
wawaAoidw| Ayenp

‘wea |
wswanosdw| Ayienp

‘'sue|d 8sin02 ZS/1LS BuLiaAlap
pue Buimaiaal ‘Bunipne ul
siebeuew |jooyos uoddns 0] SOIO

'SOIO
Aq sysiA Bullojiuow ul papnjoul
aq 0} S}|nsal {,-G UO UoISSNIsI

‘soljewayjew
pue Bupum ul Juswuiene f1-g|
Buisealoul ul sjooyos uoddns 0y

saJnseaw UO SN0} 0} SOID YUl

'ZS

jo pus 8y} Aq pue LS ul

3 [9A9] JO JUBWBAaIYOe 8y}
Jenoiued ul ‘sjuswissasse
|leuoneu 1-g

ul Juswanalyoe

pue juawuiene paoidw|

"ZS/1S Je @ouewIouad




Page 170

‘Buiobuo pue
900¢/S00¢ uolissag

‘wea |
wswanoidw| Ayenp
‘1obeue)

spsepueis Ajenp
‘uoneonpgy

— 92IAIBG JO SpesaH

"s|o0yos Alepuooas ul

Ao1j0d 8y Jjo 10edwi ay) anoiduwi
pue ain}no pue abenbue| gL-¢
JO 10adse olj10ads pue Japeouq
3y} Y1og 109|j81 03 buluiesan
9AI108Y3 40} Buiyoes |, mainay

"SMOIASY |00YoS
pue s}isiA ealy A8y ‘uoneAlasqo
woouisse|o ybnouyy pasoyuow

sI s|idnd uo j1oedwi 8y} ainsug

"s|jooyas ul saoljod
A&y Jo 10edwi ay} Buuojuow
Jo} sainpadsoud juswa|dw|

"JuswaAosdwl

ainoas 0} abua|eyo

pue uoddns ajelidoidde
apinoid pue aouewsopad
|[O0YOS JO aleme

ale Jjejs Ajoyine |eyuan

‘Buiuies| pue
Buiyoes) ul sjuswaAosdw|

‘'s@ousladxas sjdnd

uo salo1j0d jo j10edwi

ay} pue uonejuswa|dwii
Ao1jod Jo jusxe ay)
Bulurejuiew AjjeonewalsAs
Jo} sainpaosoud dojana(

Buiobuo pue
9002/500¢ uolssag

"Jabeuew
spsepueig Ajenp
Aiepuooag

— 9JINISS JO peaH

‘Aluoyine

8y} ul siebeuew Joluas se sa|ol
SJayoeas) peay jo Juswdojarap
Jayun) pue splepuels

Buisiel ‘diysiapes| jooyos
dojanap Jayuny 0} swnioy Jejnbal
ul siayoes) peay Alepuooas

8y} SA|OAUI 0} BNURUOYD

‘laAs| Allioyine je papusixa

sJayoes) peay Jo $9)0l
pue sjo0yos Aiepuodss
ul diysiapes| ejelodiooul
spJepue)s aaosdw|

‘uoneonpa Alepuodss
ul Juswabeuew o16ejeNS
JO Juswdojanap ay




Page 171

‘aswwelboid
adD pue uoisiAocid 821AI8S-Ul UIYIIM

‘Buiobuo yoddns juswdojaAap wnNoLIND
pue pue yeis ajeudosdde ainosas
9002/5002 's1901JO | pue uswdojaaap Jo} sanoud aalbe
uoISsas | jJuawaAosdw| 0] S| d pue siapes| 109lgns yim
wo. Allenp | Bupiomiau aAosye poddns 03 SOID
‘24n}no Buluies)
|euolssajold e Jo Juswdojaaap
‘G002 "S1901JO ay} Bunuoddns pue Buipes) ‘'soousladxa s|idnd ‘woolsseo Alans
Jaqwisydag |  juswanoidw 10} JJomawely e se ue|d Buluiea, panoidwi pue Buluies| pue ul Buiusesa] pue Buiyoes | Ayenb ybiy
wo.4 Aenp s Aluoyine ay} asn [|IM SOID Buiyoea) ul spiepuess ybiH Buninoas ul A6obepad uo snooy asealou|
‘'suonodadsu| J|NH
pue SM3IASY |00YOS ‘S)ISIA ealy Aoy
'S1901JO | :ybnody) paynuapl AloAldp wnNdLLIND
Juswanosdw| pue Bulyoea | pue BuiuiesaT]
Aenp ul 89110e1d BAIj08Y8 BleuIWaSSIp
pue abpajmouoe ||IMm Jjels uoneonp3
"1abeue)
‘Buiobuo spJepue)s ‘'sanoyine 's|o00yos ||e 1sbuowe
pue Aenp JaY}0 ul uoisinoid aAjosys ao1joeld poob saleys jey}
9002/S002 pue aonoeld aA0aYd JO Saljuad | Buppomiau aAoays ybnoayy
uoISSas ‘uoneonp3 pasiubooal Ajjleuoneu ssaooe 0} | painsua aq ||Im seale Joalgns
wo.4 — 90INIBS |  JJe]s |[00ydS pue Ajioyine uoneonpa [le ul Buiuies| pue Buiyoes)
JospeaH | woddns |m Ajuoyine uoneonps ay | ul spiepuejs parosdw| | “aonoeld poob Buneulwassip pue Ajiusp|
a|qisuodsay
a|eosawi] suosiad juawanosdwi Joddng o) AGajesys joeduw juswdojanaq 10} seaay

*JaypN} JUsWaASIYoe pue Juswuleye Buisiel Jo WIe S |louno)) 8y} sAsIyoe
0} sjooyos Alepuodas ul Buiyoes) pue Buiuies| pue WNN2LIND 8y} 4o} Joddns aAlj0sYe alow ainsug :f UOIJOY 10} Julod Ule\

uonoadsu| y3N| Buimojjo} ue|d uonoy
NOILYIONA3 — SAJIAYIS ALINNINNOD T1IONNOD 31Nd ® TI1ADHY




Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 173 Agenda Item 13

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE

STRATEGIC FINANCE 9 DECEMBER 2005

STRATHCLYDE PENSION FUND (SPF) — AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION
UPDATE

1. SUMMARY

1.1 In June 2005 Glasgow City Council (GCC) published a consultation paper
suggesting a scheme for a representative forum for SPF member
organisations and stakeholders. The Council responded to this paper in
August 2005 and the Audit Committee considered this response at its
meeting on 2 September. The Committee also requested an additional
update report to go to its next meeting.

1.2 This report outlines the results of the GCC consultation and the form the
representative forum will now take.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That the Committee note the content of this report.

3. DETAIL
Background

3.1 The SPC on 11 August agreed a response to be passed to the Fund
outlining changes that should be made to the Fund’s proposals for the
representative forum. This was noted by the Audit Committee on 2
September. The Committee Chair and Vice Chair raised concerns about
the Fund’s proposals and these are outlined below:

“The GCC proposal does not address the current ‘accountability gap'. The
Council and other member organisations, other than Glasgow City
Council, will continue to have no executive or management responsibility
over the pension fund. The creation of a Representative Forum, although
a marginal advance on the current arrangements does not address this
issue. Under the proposal, the Representative Forum may still be
overruled by the GCC Pensions Sub-Committee, in the event that there is
a difference of opinion between its members and Glasgow City Council. It
is expected that this issue will be raised at the next meeting of the Audit
Committee.”



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Page 174

The GCC Pensions Sub-Committee met on 7 September to consider the
responses to the consultation and the main outcomes are outlined below.

Results of the Consultation

25 responses were received out of over 200 employing bodies and
stakeholders. Of these 23 expressly welcomed the proposal and 11 of

these offered no further comment.

The GCC Financial Services (Strathclyde Pension Fund) Sub-Committee
met on 7 September to consider the response. Members approved a
revised proposal that broadly adhered to the original suggestion.

The GCC response to the Council’s specific recommendations is shown

below:

Recommendation

Response

1 member from each authority should
be represented rather than 3 from 4
authorities in any one year. This
would enable all 12 member
authorities to be represented rather
than using 3 year rotation.

Accepted.

Glasgow City Council should not be
represented on the Forum as there is
already adequate representation
through the Pensions Sub-
Committee.

Not accepted. ‘There were...
proposals that the Forum should elect
its own chair and that GCC should not
be represented on the Forum.
Equally, at least one respondent
supported continuity in the Chair of
the two bodies.’

The Forum Chair should be drawn
from the general Forum membership
to ensure there is less scope for
conflicts of interest.

Not accepted. See above.

The Chair of the Forum should have
the right to deliver the Forum minutes
to the Pension Sub-Committee and to
speak at the Sub-Committee
meetings on behalf of the Forum

Not accepted. See above.

The proposal should make clear that
the Forum is a public meeting and
that the minutes will be public
documents.

Accepted.




Page 175

Key features of the representative forum

3.6  The full report outlining the position agreed by the GCC Pensions Sub-
Committee on the representative forum is attached (Appendix 1)
3.7  The main features of the new forum are:
Executive responsibility for the Fund rests entirely with Glasgow City
Council.
The forum will act as an interface between stakeholders and the Fund.
The minutes of the forum will be heard by the GCC Pensions Sub-
Committee and will form advice.
The forum Chair will be the Chair of the Pensions Sub-Committee.
This individual will deliver the forum minutes to the Sub-Committee.
The forum will be made up of 28 members:
o 12 local authority (1 from each authority)
o 4 from other ‘Scheduled’ bodies
o 2 from large admitted bodies (no definition of ‘large’)
o 2 from other admitted bodies
o 5 Trade Union members
o 1 Pensioner representative
o Chair and Alternate
Meetings will be on a quarterly basis and will be held shortly before
meetings of the Pensions Sub-Committee. The agenda will be the
same as the Sub-Committee agenda.
All administration costs and member support will be the responsibility of
Glasgow City Council.
Argyll & Bute Council membership
3.8  On 14 November the Council met and appointed Gary Mulvaney to be the
Council’s representative on the forum. Elaine Robertson will act as an
alternate if Gary Mulvaney is unavailable.
Bruce West

Head of Strategic Finance
9 December 2005



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



